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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
RBC Bearings Incorporated

We are a well known international manufacturer axatketer of highly engineered precision plain,eodnd ball bearings. Bearings,
which are integral to the manufacture and operatfanost machines and mechanical systems, reduaetaenoving parts, facilitate proper
power transmission and reduce damage and energgadosed by friction. While we manufacture prodictll major bearing categories, we
focus primarily on highly technical or regulatedaiag products for specialized markets that regsigghisticated design, testing and
manufacturing capabilities. We believe our unigypegtise has enabled us to garner leading positionsny of the product markets in wh
we primarily compete. We have been providing bepsiolutions to our customers since 1919. Over #%t f&n years, under the leadership of
our current management team, we have significammdpdened our end markets, products, customeravabsgeographic reach. We currently
have 19 facilities of which 17 are manufacturingilfes in four countries.

The Bearing Industry

The bearing industry is a highly fragmented muillidn dollar market. Purchasers of bearings inelymloducers of commercial and
military aerospace equipment, automotive and coroialiruck manufacturers, industrial equipment amathinery manufacturers,
agricultural machinery manufacturers and constongtmining and specialized equipment manufacturers.

The increased demand for bearings in the divedsifidustrial market is being influenced by growttindustrial machinery and
equipment shipments and nonresidential construetidivity. In addition, increased usage of existmgchinery will improve aftermarket
demand for replacement bearing products. In thespecce market, aging of the existing commerciatait fleet along with carrier traffic
growth is expected to continue to expand demanddobearing solutions. Lastly, growth in the dastemarket is being influenced by
modernization programs necessitating increaseddépgion new equipment, as well as continued utitireof deployed equipment
supporting robust aftermarket demand for replacerearings.

Customers and Markets

We serve a broad range of end markets where wadmalue with our specialty, precision bearingdpicis and applications. We
classify our customers into two principal categeridiversified industrial and aerospace and defefsese principal end markets utilize a
large number of both commercial and specializedibggroducts. Although we provide a relatively $inparcentage of total bearing produ
supplied to each of our overall principal markets,believe we have leading market positions in mzfrtire specialized bearing product
markets in which we primarily compete. Financidbimation regarding geographic areas is set fortlieim 8, Note 21.

» Diversified Industrial Market (50% of net salesfor the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007)

We manufacture bearing products for a wide rangdivafrsified industrial markets, including constion and mining, oil and natui
resource extraction, heavy truck, packaging ands®rductor machinery. Nearly all mechanical deviaed machinery require bearings to
relieve friction where one part moves relative nother. Our products target existing market appbca in which our engineering and
manufacturing capabilities provide us with a contpet advantage in the marketplace.

Our largest diversified industrial customers indutbplied Materials, Caterpillar, Hitachi Constiioct Machinery, Komatsu
America, Parker-Hannifin Corporation and variougaharket distributors including Applied Industriklaman Corporation and Motion
Industries. We believe that the diversificatioroaf sales among the various markets of the indudtearings market reduces our exposure to
downturns in any individual market. We believe ogipnities exist for growth and margin improvementhis market as a result of increasing
demand for industrial machinery, the introductiémew products and the expansion of aftermarkeissal

e Aerospace and Defense Market (50% of net salesfor thefiscal year ended March 31, 2007)
We supply bearings for use in commercial and peiaitcraft. We supply bearings for many of the caroial aircraft currently

operating worldwide and are the primary suppliemiany of our product lines. This includes militagntractors for airplanes, helicopters
and missile systems. Commercial aerospace custayaaesally require precision products, often of




special materials, made to unique designs andfggaimns. Many of our aerospace bearing produasiasigned and certified during the
original development of the aircraft being serwgtich often makes us the primary bearing suppbetlie life of the aircraft.

We manufacture bearing products used by the U.paiment of Defense and certain foreign governmiemtsse in fighter jets,
troop transports, naval vessels, helicopters, @wdinte engines, armored vehicles, guided weapamdysatellites. We manufacture an
extensive line of standard products that conformmémy domestic military application requirementswell as customized products designed
for unique applications. We specialize in the maotire of high precision ball and roller bearingenmercial ball bearings and metal-to-
metal and self-lubricating plain bearings for tledethse market. Our bearing products are manufattareonform to U.S. military
specifications and are typically custom designedhduthe original product design phase, which ofteakes us the sole or primary bearing
supplier for the life of the product. In additiamproducts that meet military specifications, thesstomers often require precision products
made of specialized materials to custom designsspadifications. Product approval for use on nijitaquipment is often a lengthy process
ranging from six months to six years.

Our largest aerospace and defense customers indltlules, Boeing, General Electric, Lockheed Mari®Raytheon, Snecma Group,
U.S. Department of Defense, United Technologiesvamibus aftermarket channels. We estimate that 49% of aerospace net sales are
actually used as replacement parts, as bearingsgutarly replaced on aircraft in conjunction witlutine maintenance procedures. We
believe our strong relationships with OEMs helwérour aftermarket sales since a portion of OEMsate ultimately intended for use as
replacement parts. We believe that growth and magpansion in this segment will be driven primahiy expanding our international
presence and the refurbishment and maintenancasting commercial aircraft.

Products

Bearings are employed to fulfill several functionsluding reduction of friction, transfer of moti@md carriage of loads. We design,
manufacture and market a broad portfolio of beapiraglucts. The following table provides a summdrgwr product segments:

Net Sales for the Fiscal Year Ende

Segment March 31, 2007 April 1, 2006 April 2, 2005 Representative Applications
Plain Bearings $143,90: $115,09: $93,25( « Aircraft engine controls and landing gear
(47.0%) (41.9%) (38.4%). Missile launchers
» Mining and construction equipment
Roller Bearings $92,12: $96,46¢ $92,28. « Aircraft hydraulics
(30.1%) (35.1%) (38.0%). Military and commercial truck chassis
« Packaging machinery and gear pumps
Ball Bearings $50,46¢ $46,37¢ $41,88. .« Radar and night vision systems
(16.5%) (16.9%) (17.2%).  Airframe control and actuation
» Semiconductor equipment
Other $19,56¢ $16,57+ $15,60¢ « Precision ground ball screws for robotic handtamgl missile
(6.4%) (6.1%) (6.4%) guidance

* Collets for machine tools

Plain Bearings. Plain bearings are primarily used to rectify it@vle misalignments in various mechanical comptsesuch as
aircraft controls, helicopter rotors, or in heavinimg and construction equipment. Such misalignmané either due to machining
inaccuracies or result when components changei@osélative to each other. Plain bearings are peed with either self-lubricating or
metal-to-metal designs and consist of several sagses, including rod end bearings, spherical flaarings and journal bearings. Sales of
plain bearings accounted for 47.0% of our net saléiscal 2007.

Roller Bearings. Roller bearings are anti-friction products thtlize cylindrical rolling elements. We produce éermain designs:
tapered roller bearings, needle roller bearingsreesdile bearing track rollers and cam followers.piEluce medium sized tapered roller
bearings used primarily in heavy truck axle appiarzs. We offer several needle roller bearing desitdpat are used in both industrial
applications and certain U.S. military aircrafttidams. These products are generally specifiediser where there are high loads and the
design is constrained by space considerationsgwifiiant portion of the sales of this productastie aftermarket. Needle bearing track
rollers and cam followers have wide and diversifisé in the industrial market and are often prbscdrias a primary component in articulated
aircraft wings. We believe we are the world’'s




largest producer of aircraft needle bearing tradlers. The sale of roller bearings accounted fhd 3 of our net sales in fiscal 2007.

Ball Bearings. Ball bearings are devices which utilize high smn ball elements to reduce friction in high spegplications. We
specialize in four main types of ball bearings:thpgecision aerospace, airframe control, thin sacind industrial ball bearings. High
precision aerospace bearings are primarily sottisdomers in the defense industry that require rremtenically sophisticated bearing
products, such as missile guidance systems, prayitigher degrees of fault tolerance given thecality of the applications in which they
are used. Airframe control ball bearings are preciball bearings that are plated to resist coomsind are qualified under a military
specification. Thin section ball bearings are splerdd bearings that use extremely thin cross@estand give specialized machinery
manufacturers many advantages. We produce a gdineraf industrial ball bearings sold primarily tiee aftermarket. Ball bearings
accounted for 16.5% of our net sales in fiscal 2007

Other. Our other products consist primarily of precisimear products and machine tool collets. Preni$iimear products are
precision ground ball bearing screws that offeeegpble positioning accuracy in defense, machioks toobotic handling and semiconductor
equipment. Machine tool collets are cone-shape@lmnskgeves, used for holding circular or rodlikeqas in a lathe or other machine, that
provide effective part holding and accurate pacatmn during machining operations. Our other poisiaccounted for 6.4% of our net sales
in fiscal 2007.

Product Design and Development

We produce specialized bearings that are ofteortadlto the specifications of a customer or apptica Our sales professionals are
highly experienced engineers who collaborate withaustomers on a continual basis to develop bgadtutions. The product development
cycle can follow many paths which are dependertherend market or sales channel. The process nigrtakés between 3-6 years from
concept to sale depending upon the applicationttEmdnarket. A common route that is used for majgeMJrojects begins when our design
engineers meet with their customer counterpartseatmachine design conceptualization stage and withkthem through the conclusion of
the product development.

Often, at the early stage, a bearing design consgpbduced that addresses the expected dematius application. Environmental
demands are many but normally include load, sttesat, thermal gradients, vibration, lubricant dypporrosion resistance, with one or two
of these environmental constraints being predontiimatihe design consideration. A bearing designtmpasform reliably for a period of time
specified by the customer’s product objectives.

Once a bearing is designed, a mathematical siroul&icreated to replicate the expected applicaiorironment and thereby allow
optimization with respect to these design varialdlggon conclusion of the design and simulation phaamples are produced and laboratory
testing commences at one of our test laboratofies.purpose of this testing phase is not only tifyvéhe design and the simulation model
but also to allow further design improvement wheeeded. Finally, upon successful field testingh®ydustomer, the product is ready for ¢

For the majority of our products, the culminatidrthds lengthy process is the receipt of a prodypgiroval or certification, generally
obtained from either the OEM, the Department ofddse or the Federal Aviation Administration, or &Awhich allows us to supply the
product to the customer. We currently have in ex@g$82,000 of such approvals, which often givea sfgnificant competitive advantage,
and in many of these instances we are the onlyoapgrsupplier of a given bearing product.

Manufacturing and Operations

Our manufacturing strategies are focused on praeiiebility, quality and service. Custom and starmtproducts are produced
according to manufacturing schedules that ensusénnuen availability of popular items for immediatals while carefully considering the
economies of lot production and special producépital programs and manufacturing methods developare focused on quality
improvement and low production costs. A monthlyieewvof product line production performance assaregnvironment of continuous
attainment of profitability goals.

Capacity. Our plants currently run on a single shift, aigtii second and third shifts at selected locatitmsyeet the demands of ¢
customers. We believe that current capacity lezetsfuture annual estimated capital expendituresguipment up to approximately 4% of
net sales should permit us to effectively meet detavels for the foreseeable future. We also belibat we have the ability to increase
capacity and move to full second or third shiftsewhequired.

Inventory Management. Our increasing emphasis on the distributor/aftek®t sector has required us to maintain greatenitories
of a broader range of products than the OEM mdristbrically demanded. We operate an inventory




management program designed to balance custonieeryedlequirements with economically optimal invenytlevels. In this program, each
product is categorized based on characteristidadimg order frequency, number of customers anelssablume. Using this classification
system, our primary goal is to maintain a suffitiempply of standard items while minimizing warebiog costs. In addition, production cost
savings are achieved by optimizing plant scheduirmynd inventory levels and customer delivery megoents. This leads to more efficient
utilization of manufacturing facilities and miningig plant production changes while maintaining sigfit inventories to service customer
needs.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Our marketing strategy is aimed at increasing salgn our two primary markets, targeting specéigplications in which we can
exploit our competitive strengths. To effect thHimegy, we seek to expand into geographic areagrauviously served by us and we continue
to capitalize on new markets and industries fostaxy and new products. We employ a technicallyfipient sales force and utilize marketing
managers, product managers, customer service egpatives and product application engineers irselling efforts.

We have accelerated the development of our sates tbrough the hiring of sales personnel with pbiearing industry experience,
complemented by an in-house training program. Vienithto continue to hire and develop expert salefegsionals and strategically locate
them to implement our expansion strategy. Todaydoect sales force is located to service Northetica, Europe and Latin America and is
responsible for selling all of our products. Thédlisg model leverages our relationship with kegtomers and provides opportunities to
market multiple product lines to both established potential customers. We also sell our produmtsugh a well-established, global network
of industrial and aerospace distributors. This cleaprimarily provides our products to smaller OEMstomers and the end users of bearings
that require local inventory and service. In aaditispecific larger OEM customers are also servibesligh this channel to facilitate
requirements for “Just In Time” deliveries or “KBan” systems. Our worldwide distributor network yides our customers with more than
2,000 points of sale for our products. We intenddntinue to focus on building distributor salesuvoe.

The sale of our products is supported by a welh#@ and experienced customer service organizatliois. organization provides
customers with instant access to key informatigrareing their bearing purchase and delivery requirgs. We also provide customers with
updated information through our web site, and weetdeveloped on-line integration with specific cusérs, enabling more efficient ordering
and timely order fulfillment for those customers.

We store product inventory in four company-owned aperated warehouses located on the East anddd&sts of the U.S., and in
France and Switzerland. The inventory is locateith@se warehouses based on thorough analysis toheeisdemand to provide superior
service and product availability.

Competition

Our principal competitors include Kaydon Corporatidlew Hampshire Ball Bearings and McGill Manufaiatg Company, Inc.,
although we compete with different companies faheaf our product lines. We believe that for thgarity of our products, the principal
competitive factors affecting our business are pevdualifications, product line breadth, servioe arice. Although some of our current and
potential competitors may have greater financiarkating, personnel and other resources than ubglieve that we are well positioned to
compete with regard to each of these factors ih eithe markets in which we operate.

Product Qualifications. Many of the products we produce are qualifiedtti@r application by the OEM, the U.S. Department of
Defense, the FAA or a combination of these agengiesse credentials have been achieved for thogsafraistinct items after years of
design, testing and improvement. In many casespptetection presides, in all cases there is gthmand identity and in numerous cases we
have the exclusive product for the application.

Product Line Breadth. Our products encompass an extraordinarily braade of designs which often create a critical nodiss
complementary bearings and components for our n&rkais position allows many of our industrial aictraft customers the ability for a
single manufacturer to provide the engineeringiserand product breadth needed to achieve a s#rf@EM design objectives or aftermarl
requirements. This ability enhances our value ¢o@EM considerably while strengthening our overarket position.

Service.  Product design, performance, reliability, avaligh quality, technical and administrative suppare elements that define
the service standard for this business. Our cus®are sophisticated and demanding, as our produetiindamental and enabling
components to the construction or operating ofrthigichinery. We maintain inventory levels of oursthpopular items for immediate sale .
service well over 15,000 voice and electronic cotst@er month. Our customers




have high expectations regarding product avaikgbiind the primary emphasis of our service effisrte ensure the widest possible range of
available products and delivering them on a tinelgis.

Price. We believe our products are priced competitivielthe markets we serve. We continually evaluatensanufacturing and
other operations to maximize efficiencies in orereduce costs, eliminate unprofitable produaisfiour portfolio and maximize our profit
margins. While we compete with larger bearing maotufrers who direct the majority of their businassvities, investments and expertise
toward the automotive industries, our sales initidsistry are only a small percentage of our buissingé/e invest considerable effort to
develop our price to value algorithms and we pricenarket levels where required by competitive puess.

Suppliers and Raw Materials

We obtain raw materials, component parts and sepjilom a variety of sources and generally fromeriban one supplier. Our
principal raw material is steel. Our suppliers andrces of raw materials are based in the U.Sgeuand Asia. We purchase steel at market
prices, which during the past three years haveeasad to historical highs as a result of a reltisv level of supply and a relatively high
level of demand. To date, we have generally manémedss through these raw material price incre@@sesr customers by assessing steel
surcharges on, or price increases of, our bearioducts. However, we have from time to time experés a time lag of up to 3 months or
more in our ability to pass through steel surchaitgeour customers which has negatively impactedymss margins. We will continue to
pass on raw material price increases as competitimditions allow.

Backlog

As of March 31, 2007 we had order backlog of $16ilion compared to a backlog of $160.8 milliontire prior year. The amount
of backlog includes orders which we estimate walifblfilled within the next 12 months; however, erd included in our backlog are subject
to cancellation, delay or other modifications by oustomers prior to fulfillment. We sell many afrgoroducts pursuant to contractual
agreements, single source relationships or long-parrchase orders, each of which may permit eartpination by the customer. However,
due to the nature of many of the products supfdieds and the lack of availability of alternativeppliers to meet the demands of such
customers’ orders in a timely manner, we beliewa ithis not practical or prudent for most of oustomers to shift their bearing business to
other suppliers.

Employees

We had approximately 1,271 hourly employees andséldried employees as of March 31, 2007, of wh2twg@ere employed in o
European and Mexican operations. As of March 3072@pproximately 191 of our hourly employees wemresented by unions in the U.S.
We believe that our employee relations are satisfac

We are subject to three collective bargaining agezes with the United Auto Workers covering subs#diy all of the hourly
employees at our Fairfield, Connecticut, West TaanNew Jersey and Bremen, Indiana plants. Thesemgnts expire on January 31, 2008,
June 30, 2009 and October 31, 2009, respectively.

On February 15, 2006, our RBC Nice Bearings, lnbsiliary and the United Steelworkers of Americ&l(ACIO) Local 6816-12
entered into a shutdown agreement in connectiom euit decision to close operations at our Kulpsyiftennsylvania facility. Under the
shutdown agreement, the union has agreed to taketium against us in connection with such shutdoWre agreement also addresses
closure and other transition issues related toipassworkers compensation insurance, adjustmesigtasce and other matters. The
production that was conducted at the Nice fachiig been moved to other RBC locations.

On February 6, 2007, our Tyson Bearing Company,dabsidiary and the United Steelworkers of Ame(&BL-CIO) Local 7461-
01 entered into a shutdown agreement in conneutitmour decision to close operations at our Glasg¢entucky facility. Under the
shutdown agreement, the union has agreed to taketimn against us in connection with such shutdoiine agreement also addresses
closure and other transition issues related toipeasworkers compensation, adjustment assistamt®ther matters. The production that was
conducted at the Tyson facility has moved to oRRBC locations, and we anticipate no material imexcour production or our ability to
service our customers. The effective date of thaiteation of the union contract with this union Mik the date on which bargaining unit
work related to the union contract is concluded cAMarch 31, 2007, seven union employees wereeaat the Glasgow, Kentucky facility.




Intellectual Property

We own U.S. and foreign patents and trademark tragjisns and U.S. copyright registrations, and haw&. trademark and patent
applications pending. We currently have approximyat® issued or pending U.S. and foreign patents.fNé patent applications and maint
patents to protect certain technology, inventiamd immprovements that are important to the develagrotour business, and we file
trademark applications and maintain trademark tegiens to protect product names that have acHiévand-name recognition among our
customers. We also rely upon trade secrets, knowdmal continuing technological innovation to deyetmd maintain our competitive
position. Many of our brands are well recognizedhby customers and are considered valuable assets business. We currently have
approximately 202 issued or pending U.S. and for&igdemark registrations and applications. Weadmwlieve, however, that any
individual item of intellectual property is matdria our business. See “Risk Factors.”

Regulation

Product Approvals. Essential to servicing the aerospace markeeislility to obtain product approvals. We have lastantial
number of product approvals in the form of OEM awais or Parts Manufacturer Approvals, or “PMAsgr the FAA. We also have a
substantial number of active PMA applications iagass. These approvals enable us to provide prodsed in virtually all domestic aircraft
platforms presently in production or operation. Tsts of obtaining required product approvalsnatedirectly tracked, but are included in
our manufacturing overhead and SG&A costs. We dalinectly pass these costs on to our custometshiey are reflected indirectly in our
overall product pricing.

We are subject to various other federal laws, @gis and standards. Although we are not presamthre of any pending legal or
regulatory changes that may have a material impacits, new laws, regulations or standards or cletwgexisting laws, regulations or
standards could subject us to significant additicoats of compliance or liabilities, and coulduk$n material reductions to our results of
operations, cash flow or revenues.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to federal, state and local enviertal laws and regulations, including those govermlischarges of pollutants into
the air and water, the storage, handling and dapifsvastes and the health and safety of employwesalso may be liable under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatiahl,.iability Act or similar state laws for thests of investigation and clean-up of
contamination at facilities currently or formerlwoed or operated by us, or at other facilities hiclv we have disposed of hazardous
substances. In connection with such contaminati@mnay also be liable for natural resource damagmsrnment penalties and claims by
third parties for personal injury and property dgmaAgencies responsible for enforcing these laave tauthority to impose significant civil
or criminal penalties for non-compliance. We betieve are currently in material compliance withagdplicable requirements of
environmental laws. We do not anticipate matergit@l expenditures for environmental controlsigtdl 2008.

Investigation and remediation of contaminationnga@ing at some of our sites. In particular, stagengies have been overseeing
groundwater monitoring activities at our facilitiesHartsville, South Carolina and Fairfield, Contieut. At Hartsville, we are monitoring
low levels of contaminants in the groundwater cduseformer operations. The state will permit ugéase monitoring activities after two
consecutive sampling periods demonstrate contansirza below action levels. In connection with pliechase of our Fairfield, Connecticut
facility in 1996, we agreed to assume respongybitit completing clean-up efforts previously iniéd by the prior owner. We submitted data
to the state that we believe demonstrates thatimber remedial action is necessary although thie shay require additional clean-up or
monitoring. Although there can be no assurancejaveot expect any of those to be material.

We received natice in 2003 from the U.S. EnvirontakRrotection Agency (EPA) that we had been naepdtentially responsible
de minimis party for past disposal of hazardous substanc® d@perating Industries, Inc.’s landfill in Monggr California. Any such
disposal would have been conducted prior to ouresslnip, and we notified the former owners of a ptiét claim for indemnification
pursuant to the terms of our asset purchase agregenWee are currently negotiatinglaminimis settlement with the U.S. EPA and expect
any settlement, even if we are unsuccessful inimbindemnification, will not be material to orgsults of operations or to our business.

Available Information

We file our annual, quarterly, and current repgutexy statements, and other documents with ther@ss and Exchange
Commission (SEC) under the Securities ExchangeoAt934. The public may read and copy any matefileid with the SEC at the SEC’s
Public Reference Room at 405 Fifth Street, N.W.skitagton, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain infotisraon the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-08B®, the SEC maintains an Internet website toatains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information rdupay issuers




that file electronically with the SEC. The publi@ncobtain any documents that are filed by us at/httww.sec.gov.

In addition, this Annual Report on Form 10-K, adlwas our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curr@ptarts on Form 8-K and any
amendments to all of the foregoing reports, areen@aailable free of charge on our Internet weldbitg://www.rbcbearings.com) as soon as
reasonably practicable after such reports arereldcally filed with or furnished to the SEC. A gopf the above filings will also be provided
free of charge upon written request to us.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Cautionary Statement As To Forward-Looking Information

This report includes “forward-looking statementsthin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securides of 1933 and Section 21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statateether than statements of historical fact aoeward-looking statementgbdr purposes ¢
federal and state securities laws, including amyegtions of earnings, cash flows, revenue or diihancial items; any statements of the
plans, strategies and objectives of managemeffiifare operations; any statements concerning pexpasw services or developments; any
statements regarding future economic conditiorgeoiormance; future growth rates in the marketseree; increases in foreign sales; suj
and cost of raw materials, any statements of helied any statements of assumptions underlyingoétiye foregoing. Forward-looking
statements may include the words “may,” “estimatmtend,” “continue,” “believe,” “expect,” “anti@ate,” the negative of such terms or
other comparable terminology.

Although we believe that the expectations refledteainy of our forwardeoking statements are reasonable, actual resulisl differ
materially from those projected or assumed in dnyuo forward-looking statements. Our future finehcondition, results of operations and
cash flows, as well as any forward-looking statetsiesre subject to change and to inherent riskauaodrtainties, such as those disclosed in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Factors that caxddse our actual results, performance and achiewvtsnor industry results to differ
materially from estimates or projections contaiiretbrward-looking statements include, among othts following:

*  Weaknesses and cyclicality in any of the industnieshich our customers operate;

»  Changes in marketing, product pricing and salegegiies or developments of new products by us ocampetitors;

»  Future reductions in U.S. governmental spendinchanges in governmental programs, particularlytarifi equipment procurement
programs;

*  Suspension or debarment from acting as a governsoppiier;

e Our ability to obtain and retain product approvals;

e Supply and costs of raw materials, particularlgktand energy resources and our ability to passitih these costs on a timely
basis;

e Our ability to address technological advances itathegy or in material advances and introduce peaducts to remain
competitive;

e Our ability to acquire and integrate complementauginesses;

*  Unexpected equipment failures, catastrophic evantspacity constraints;

»  Development of new litigation;

*  Our ability to attract and retain our managemeatt@nd other highly-skilled personnel;

* Increases in interest rates;

*  Work stoppages and other labor problems for uscam@ustomers or suppliers;

»  Contractual limitations on our ability to expand dusiness;

* Regulatory developments in the U.S. and foreigmtries;

»  Developments or disputes concerning patents or gtloprietary rights;

» Actual or anticipated changes in our earnings télatons in our operating results or the failureneet the expectations of financial
market analysts and investors;

 Changes in accounting standards, policies, guidamggpretation or principles;

» Risks associated with operating internationallg|uding currency translation risks;

e The operating and stock performance of comparabigpanies;

e Acts of terrorism or major catastrophic events;

» Investors’ perceptions of us and our industry; and

e General economic, geopolitical, industry and madcetditions.

Additional factors that could cause actual resaltgiffer materially from our forward-looking staents are set forth in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, including under Item 1. “Buesin,” Iltem 1A. “Risk Factors,” Item 7. “Managemant’




Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &®bults of Operations” and Item 8. “Financial Stedats and Supplementary Data.”

We are not under any duty to update any forwardtitapstatements after the date of this report tf@mon such statements to actual
results or to changes in our expectations. All fimaviooking statements contained in this reportamgdsubsequently filed reports are
expressly qualified in their entirety by these tandry statements.

Our business, operating results, cash flows onfire condition could be materially adversely aféetby any of the following risks.
The trading price of our common stock could dectine to any of these risks, and you may lose glaor of your investment. You should
carefully consider these risks before investinghiares of our common stock.

Risk Factors Related to Our Company
The bearing industry is highly competitive, and thé competition could reduce our profitability or limit our ability to grow.

The global bearing industry is highly competitieed we compete with many U.S. and non-U.S. compaaane of which benefit
from lower labor costs and fewer regulatory burdiwas us. We compete primarily based on produdiifiqpadions, product line breadth,
service and price. Certain competitors are largan us or subsidiaries of larger entities and neapditer able to manage costs than us or ma
have greater financial resources than we have.t®tlee competitiveness in the bearing industry ves mot be able to increase prices for our
products to cover increases in our costs, or we fiaeg pressure to reduce prices, which could nalgreduce our revenues, gross margin
and profitability. Competitive factors, includinganges in market penetration, increased price ctitigpeand the introduction of new
products and technology by existing and new cortgrsttould result in a material reduction in owrearues and profitability.

The loss of a major customer could result in a matel reduction in our revenues and profitability.

Our top ten customers generated 32% of our nes slaiieng fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006. Accordinghg loss of one or more of thc
customers or a substantial decrease in such custopuechases from us could result in a materiduodion in our revenues and profitability.

In addition, the consolidation and combination efathse or other manufacturers may eliminate custoimem the industry and/or
put downward pricing pressures on sales of compqueets. For example, the consolidation that hasiwed in the defense industry in recent
years has significantly reduced the overall nuntbetefense contractors in the industry. In additibone of our customers is acquired
merged with another entity, the new entity may aligimue using us as a supplier because of an mgibtisiness relationship with the
acquiring company or because it may be more effidie consolidate certain suppliers within the nefekrmed enterprise. The significance of
the impact that such consolidation may have orbosmess is difficult to predict because we dokmmtw when or if one or more of our
customers will engage in merger or acquisitionvitgti However, if such activity involved our matakicustomers it could materially impact
our revenues and profitability.

Weakness in any of the industries in which our cusimers operate, as well as the cyclical nature of baustomers’ businesses generally
could materially reduce our revenues and profitabity.

The commercial aerospace, mining and constructioipenent and other diversified industrial industrie which we sell our
products are, to varying degrees, cyclical and terdkcline in response to overall declines in stdal production. Margins in those
industries are highly sensitive to demand cyclad,@r customers in those industries historicadlyehtended to delay large capital projects,
including expensive maintenance and upgrades, gledonomic downturns. As a result, our businesssis cyclical, and the demand for our
products by these customers depends, in part, eralblevels of industrial production, general earic conditions and business confidence
levels. Downward economic cycles have affectedcogtomers and reduced sales of our products negittireductions in our revenues and
net earnings. Any future material weakness in dehiaany of these industries could materially rexlaar revenues and profitability.

In addition, many of our customers have historicakperienced periodic downturns, which often hlaad a negative effect on
demand for our products. For example, the severatlon in 2001 in the aerospace industry resultedeiferrals or cancellations in aircraft
orders, which reduced the volume and price of argéaced for products used to manufacture commezic@aft, including our bearings and
other individual parts and components we manufacfarevious industry downturns have negativelycédie, and future industry downturns
may negatively affect, our net sales, gross maagthnet income.




Future reductions or changes in U.S. government spding could negatively affect our business.

In fiscal 2007, 6.5% of our net sales were madectly, and we estimate that approximately an amfutii 15.6% of our net sales wi
made indirectly, to the U.S. government to suppulitary or other government projects. Our failtioeobtain new government contracts, the
cancellation of government contracts or reductiarfederal budget appropriations regarding our potsl could result in materially reduced
revenue. In addition, the funding of defense progralso competes with non-defense spending of tBeddvernment. Our business is
sensitive to changes in national and internatipniakities and the U.S. government budget. A shifjovernment defense spending to other
programs in which we are not involved or a reductioU.S. government defense spending generallidaoaterially reduce our revenues,
cash flow from operations and profitability. If war, our prime contractors for which we are a sulh@mtor, fail to win any particular bid, or
we are unable to replace lost business as a saltancellation, expiration or completion of atract, our revenues or cash flow could be
reduced.

Fluctuating supply and costs of raw materials and mergy resources could materially reduce our revenigs cash flow from operations
and profitability.

Our business is dependent on the availability arstiscof energy resources and raw materials, ptatlgisteel, generally in the form
of stainless and chrome steel, which are commatietgl products. The availability and prices of raaterials and energy sources may be
subject to curtailment or change due to, amongrdttiegs, new laws or regulations, suppliers’ adliens to other purchasers, interruptions in
production by suppliers, changes in exchange etdsvorldwide price levels. Although we currentlgintain alternative sources for raw
materials, our business is subject to the riskriciefluctuations and periodic delays in the delwef certain raw materials. Disruptions in the
supply of raw materials and energy resources camgborarily impair our ability to manufacture oupgucts for our customers or require us
to pay higher prices in order to obtain these raatemals or energy resources from other sourceghadould thereby affect our net sales and
profitability.

For example, we purchase steel at market priceishvaturing the past three years have increasetstorital highs as a result of a
relatively low level of supply and a relatively higevel of demand. As a result, we are currentipdp@assessed surcharges on certain of our
purchases of steel, and under certain circumstangebhave experienced difficulty in identifying stéor purchase. If we are unable to
purchase steel for our operations for a signifigartod of time, our operations would be disruptelich could reduce or delay sales of our
products, and, in turn, could result in a matengaluction in our revenues, cash flow from operatiand profitability. In addition, we may be
unable to pass on the increased costs of raw rabtéoi our customers, which could materially redoigecash flow from operations and
profitability.

We seek to pass through a significant portion efaalditional costs to our customers through steedharges or price increases.
However, even if we are able to pass these steeharges or price increases to our customers, thayebe a time lag of up to 3 months or
more between the time a cost increase goes indotefhd our ability to implement surcharges orepinecreases, particularly for orders alre
in our backlog. As a result our gross margin petags may decline, and we may not be able to imphtmther price increases for our
products. We cannot provide assurances that webwidlble to continue to pass these additional @wste our customers at all or on a timely
basis or that our customers will not seek altemeasources of supply if there are significant @l@nged increases in the price of steel or ¢
raw materials or energy resources.

We may not be able to address technological advarser maintain customer relationships which are neasary to remain competitive
within our businesses.

We believe that our customers rigorously evaluiaggr tsuppliers on the basis of product qualityc@icompetitiveness, technical
expertise, new product innovation, reliability andeliness of delivery, product design capabilihanufacturing expertise, operational
flexibility and customer service. Our success @ipend on our ability to continue to meet our cughs’ changing specifications with resp
to these criteria. We must remain committed to povdesearch and development, advanced manufagtie@hniques and service to remain
competitive. We may not be able to address teclgimdbadvances in metallurgy or in materials sogeocintroduce new products that may
necessary to remain competitive within our busiegser our competitors may develop products supgriour products. Furthermore, we
may be unable to adequately protect any of our ®ehnological developments to produce a sustairabtgetitive advantage.




Our products are subject to certain approvals, andhe loss of such approvals could materially reduceur revenues and profitability.

Essential to servicing the aerospace market ialtiligy to obtain product approvals. We have a tattgal number of product
approvals, which enable us to provide products usedtually all domestic aircraft platforms predly in production or operation. Product
approvals are typically issued by the FAA to deatgd OEMs who are Production Approval Holders ofAFgoproved aircraft. These
Production Approval Holders provide quality contoekersight and generally limit the number of supididirectly servicing the commercial
aerospace aftermarket. Regulations enacted byARepFovide for an independent process (the PMA ps3}, which enables suppliers who
currently sell their products to the Production Apgal Holders, to sell products to the aftermarkair foreign sales may be subject to similar
approvals or U.S. export control restrictions. Altlgh we have not lost any material product appsoiathe past, we cannot assure you that
we will not lose approvals for our products in theure. The loss of product approvals could resulbst sales and materially reduce our
revenues and profitability.

Under certain circumstances, the U.S. government lsahe right to debar or suspend us from acting as d.S. government contractor ol
subcontractor, and if we are suspended or debarreftom acting as a government supplier for any reasarsuch an action would
materially reduce our revenues and profitability.

In connection with our performance of certain Wy8vernment contracts, the federal government aaditdsreviews our performan
pricing practices and compliance with applicabledaregulations and standards. It is possibleahat result of these audits, our revenues,
cash flow or results of operations could be mallgriaduced as a result of lost sales or penalkes.example, the government could disallow
certain costs that it originally reimbursed, andmay be required to refund cash already colledtasl.also possible that a government audit,
review or investigation could uncover improperltagal activities that would subject us to civitiminal and/or administrative sanctions,
including, but not limited to, termination of coatts, reimbursement of payments received, fingeifare of profits and suspension or
debarment from doing business with federal govemragencies. If any allegations of impropriety werade against us, whether or not true,
our reputation could be adversely affected. If wrensuspended or debarred from contracting wittiettieral government, or any specific
agency, if our reputation was impaired or if thegmment ceased or significantly decreased the ahaflbusiness it does with us, our
revenues and cash flow could be reduced. As addx&rnment contractor, we are also subject to uarfederal laws, regulations and
standards. New laws, regulations or standards amgds to existing laws, regulations or standard&lcsubject us to additional costs of
compliance or liabilities and could result in mé&kreductions to our results of operations, cdgWw br revenues.

We have outstanding debt, and may incur additionatiebt in the future for acquisitions or other purposs, which could materially
impact our business.

As of March 31, 2007, we had total indebtednest58f4 million. Our ability to generate cash, ma&kesluled payments or to
refinance our obligations depends on our succefisutcial and operating performance. Our finanaia operating performance, cash flow

and capital resources depend upon prevailing ecnoonditions and certain financial, business attéiofactors, many of which are beyond
our control.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the fufareacquisitions and other purposes, and the dabtgng costs associated with
that indebtedness could have effects on our op@stincluding:

» limit our ability to obtain additional financing tmperate our business;

*  require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaaish flow to payments on our debt, reducing oilityako use our cash flow to
fund working capital, capital expenditures and otineral operational requirements;

« limit our flexibility to plan for and react to chgas in our business or industry;
» place us at a competitive disadvantage relativwtoe of our competitors that have less debt thaands

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse endo@nd industry conditions, including changesiteiest rates or a downturn
in our business or the economy.

The occurrence of any one of these events couldmally impact our business, financial conditioesults of operations and ability
grow our business.

Restrictions in our indebtedness agreements couldit our growth and our ability to respond to changing conditions.
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The KeyBank Credit Agreement contains a numbeestfictive covenants that limit our ability, amawtier things, to:

* incur additional indebtedness and issue prefemi@ksand guarantee indebtedness;

»  create liens on our assets;

e pay dividends or make other equity distributions;

e purchase or redeem capital stock;

e  create restrictions on payments of dividends oeoémounts to us by our restricted subsidiaries;

* make investments;

* merge, consolidate or sell assets;

e engage in activities unrelated to our current bessn

e engage in transactions with our affiliates; and

« sell or issue capital stock of certain subsidiaries

In addition, the KeyBank Credit Agreement contaitiger financial covenants requiring us to maintiminimum fixed charge
coverage ratio and maximum senior leverage ratidst@ satisfy certain other financial conditionsir®&eyBank Credit Agreement prohibits
us from incurring capital expenditures of more tB&20 million per year. These restrictions coulditiour ability to obtain future financings,
make needed capital expenditures, withstand adutawnturn in our business or the economy in géweemtherwise conduct necessary

corporate activities.

As of March 31, 2007, we had $42.0 million outstagdorrowings and letters of credit of $21.4 noifliunder our $150.0 million
KeyBank Credit Agreement. Under the KeyBank Crédjteement, we had borrowing availability of $86.8lion as of March 31, 2007.

Work stoppages and other labor problems could mateally reduce our ability to operate our business.

As of March 31, 2007, approximately 15% of our Hp@mployees were represented by labor unionsarikts. While we believe
our relations with our employees are satisfactagngthy strike or other work stoppage at anywffacilities, particularly at some of our
larger facilities, could materially reduce our &hito operate our business. In addition, any attelny our employees not currently represel
by a union to join a union could result in additdexpenses, including with respect to wages, litsreafid pension obligations. We currently
have three collective bargaining agreements, oreeatent covering approximately 70 employees witliexin June 2009, one agreement
covering approximately 32 employees will expirédotober 2009, and one agreement covering approlyn@2 employees will expire in
January 2008.

Negotiations for the extension of these agreemmatgsresult in modifications to the terms of thegeeaments, and these
modifications could cause us to incur increasedsaadating to our labor force.

In addition, work stoppages at one or more of aust@mers or suppliers, including suppliers of tpmsation services, many of
which have large unionized workforces, for laboptrer reasons could also cause disruptions tbusiness that we cannot control, and tl
disruptions may materially reduce our revenuespofitability.

Our business is capital intensive and may consumash in excess of cash flow from our operations.

Our ability to remain competitive, sustain our gtbwend expand our operations largely depends orasir flow from operations a
our access to capital. We intend to fund our castda through operating cash flow and borrowingeundr KeyBank Credit Agreement. \
may require additional equity or debt financindund our growth and debt repayment obligationsaddition, we may need additional capital
to fund future acquisitions. Our business may rategate sufficient cash flow, and we may not be &bbbtain sufficient funds to enable us
to pay our debt obligations and capital expendsure
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we may not be able to refinance on commerciallgaaable terms, if at all. See “Management’s Disomsand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity arapfal Resources—Liquidity.”

Unexpected equipment failures, catastrophic events capacity constraints may increase our costs angduce our sales due to
production curtailments or shutdowns.

Our manufacturing processes are dependent upacatpteces of equipment, such as furnaces, comtimgasters and rolling
equipment, as well as electrical equipment, sudnaasformers, and this equipment may, on occabemut of service as a result of
unanticipated failures. In addition to equipmeirilufas, our facilities are also subject to the idlcatastrophic loss due to unanticipated e\
such as fires, explosions, earthquakes or violeather conditions. In the future, we may experianagerial plant shutdowns or periods of
reduced production as a result of these typesuipatgnt failures or catastrophes. Interruptiongrimduction capabilities will inevitably
increase our production costs and reduce salesamnihgs for the affected period.

Certain of our facilities are operating at a sirgiét with light second and third shifts, and audial demand may require additional
shifts and/or capital investments at these faeditWe cannot assure you that we will be able toaafdlitional shifts as needed in a timely way
and production constraints may result in lost sdfesertain markets we refrain from making additibcapital investments to expand capa
where we believe market expansion in a particularrearket is not sustainable or otherwise doegustity the expansion or capital
investment. Our assumptions and forecasts regardarget conditions in these end markets may beneows and may result in lost earnings,
potential sales going to competitors and inhibit growth.

The occurrence of extraordinary events, such as aagor terrorist attack, may adversely affect our busness, resulting in a decrease in
our revenues.

Future terrorist attacks cannot be predicted, hatt bccurrence can be expected to negatively ttiececonomy of the U.S. and
other countries in which we do business. Such ledtatay have a material impact on the markets irchviie operate, particularly commerc
aerospace, as increased terrorist activity arobadvbrld is likely to cause a reduction in air ghvor example, in the period following
September 11, 2001, aircraft orders declined siamfly and materially reduced our sales to thesace market. Similar effects are likely to
result if there is a significant increase in teisbactivity around the world, particularly if conemcial airliners are again involved in one or
more major terrorist incidents. Other kinds of #igant terror incidents may also impair our alyilib conduct our manufacturing and other
business activities for extended periods dependimtie nature and severity of the event.

We may not be able to continue to make the acquigihs necessary for us to realize our growth stratgg

The acquisition of businesses that complement para our operations has been and continues to imepamtant element of our
business strategy. We frequently engage in evalusbf potential acquisitions and negotiationspiassible acquisitions, some of which, if
consummated, could be significant to us. We caasstire you that we will be successful in identifyattractive acquisition candidates or
completing acquisitions on favorable terms in thteife for a number of different reasons including increased competition for targets,
which may increase acquisition costs, and consididan our industries reducing the number of asijigin targets. Our inability to acquire
businesses, or to operate them profitably onceisajicould have a material adverse effect on osirtess, financial position, cash flow and
growth.

The costs and difficulties of integrating acquiredbusinesses could impede our future growth.

We cannot assure you that any future acquisitidhemhance our financial performance. Our abildyeffectively integrate any futu
acquisitions will depend on, among other things,¢hlture of the acquired business matching withcoilture, the ability to retain and
assimilate employees of the acquired businesshitigy to retain customers and integrate custobasses, the adequacy of our implementz
plans, the ability of our management to overseeogtate effectively the combined operations arrdability to achieve desired operating
efficiencies and sales goals. The integration gfasquired businesses might cause us to incur eséen costs, which would lower our future
earnings and would prevent us from realizing theeeted benefits of these acquisitions.

Even if we are able to integrate future acquiresiesses with our operations successfully, we daassure you that we will realize
all of the cost savings, synergies or revenue etgraents that we anticipate from such integratiothatr we will realize such benefits within
the expected time frame. As a result of our actjoiss of other businesses, we may be subject tagk®f unforeseen business uncertainties
or legal liabilities relating to those acquired imesses for which the sellers may not
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indemnify us, or be financially able to indemnify. bruture acquisitions may also result in potelyti@dilutive issuances of securities.

We depend heavily on our senior management and othkey personnel, the loss of whom could materiallgffect our financial
performance and prospects.

Our business is managed by a small number of kegwive officers, including Dr. Michael J. Hartnedur future success will
depend on, among other things, our ability to kibepservices of these executives and to hire dtiggaly qualified employees at all levels.
Dr. Hartnett is the only member of our senior mamgnt team with a long-term employment contrace i@mainder of our key executives
are at-will employees.

We compete with other potential employers for erppés, and we may not be successful in hiring atainiag executives and other
skilled employees that we need. Our ability to sssfully execute our business strategy, marketlamdlop our products and serve our
customers could be adversely affected by a shodhgeailable skilled employees or executives.

Our international operations are subject to risks hherent in such activities.

We have established operations in certain countti¢side the U.S., including Mexico, France, Switaed and England. Of our 19
facilities, 5 are located outside the U.S., inahgd8 manufacturing facilities.

Approximately 24% of our net sales were derivednfrgales directly or indirectly outside the U.S.fiscal 2007. We expect that this
proportion is likely to increase as we seek toéase our penetration of foreign markets, includimgugh acquisitions, particularly within the
aerospace and defense markets. Our foreign opesadi@ subject to the risks inherent in such ds/such as: currency devaluations,
logistical and communications challenges, costoafiplying with a variety of foreign laws and regidas, greater difficulties in protecting
and maintaining our rights to intellectual propedifficulty in staffing and managing geographigadliverse operations, acts of terrorism or
war or other acts that may cause social disruptibich are difficult to quantify or predict and geakeconomic conditions in these foreign
markets. We are not aware of any proposed mategalatory changes, but our international operatimay be negatively impacted by
changes in government policies, such as chandas/gand regulations (or the interpretation thérgeftrictions on imports and exports,
sources of supply, duties or tariffs, the introdutiof measures to control inflation and changethénrate or method of taxation. To date we
have not experienced significant difficulties witte foregoing risks associated with our internatlaperations, however, as the size of our
international operations has continued to growgwgect these risks to become increasingly impottantr business operations.

Currency translation risks may have a material impat on our results of operations.

Our Swiss operations utilize the Swiss franc afuhetional currency and our French operationszgtithe Euro as the functional
currency. Foreign currency transaction gains argds are included in earnings. Foreign currenaygdéietion exposure arises primarily from
the transfer of foreign currency from one subsidiaranother within the group and to foreign cucsedenominated trade receivables.
Unrealized currency translation gains and losseserognized upon translation of the foreign subsik’ balance sheets to U.S. dollars.
Because our financial statements are denominatgddndollars, changes in currency exchange ratsgden the U.S. dollar and other
currencies have had, and will continue to havepgact on our earnings. While we monitor excharades, we currently do not have
exchange rate hedges in place to reduce the riak aflverse currency exchange movement. Althougkmey fluctuations have not had a
material impact on our financial performance in past, such fluctuations may affect our financetfprmance in the future. The impact of
future exchange rate fluctuations on our resultspafrations cannot be accurately predicted. Seari@ative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk—Foreign Currency Exchange Rates.”

Our pension plans are underfunded, and we may be qeiired to make significant future contributions to the plans.

As of March 31, 2007, we maintained four nonconitdiny defined benefit pension plans. The plans weerfunded by
$1.1 million in the aggregate as of March 31, 280d $3.8 million as of April 1, 2006, which is thgmount by which the accumulated benefit
obligations exceed the sum of the fair market valuglans’ assets. We are required to make castrilbotions to our pension plans to the
extent necessary to comply with minimum fundinguiegments imposed by employee benefit laws andbtag. The amount of any such
required contributions is determined based on draiaarial valuation of the plans as performedhwyplans’actuaries. The amount of futt
contributions will depend upon asset returns, thement discount rates and a number of other factnd, as a result, the amount we may
elect or be required to contribute to our pensi@mpin the future may increase significantly. Aitdially, there is a risk that if the Pension
Benefit Guaranty Corporation

13




concludes that its risk with respect to our pengilams may increase unreasonably if the plans moatio operate, if we are unable to satisfy
the minimum funding requirement for the plans a¢hié plans become unable to pay benefits, theRémsion Benefit Guaranty Corporation
could terminate the plans and take control of thegets. In such event, we may be required to muak@mediate payment to the Pension
Benefit Guaranty Corporation of all or a substdmi@tion of the underfunding as calculated by Bemsion Benefit Guaranty Corporation
based upon its own assumptions. The underfundilegleded by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corponatiould be substantially greater than
the underfunding we have calculated because, fomele, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation usgya significantly lower discount
rate. If such payment is not made, then the Periggmefit Guaranty Corporation could place liensaanaterial portion of our assets and the
assets of any members of our controlled group. &atibn could result in a material increase inemsion related expenses and a
corresponding reduction in our cash flow and nebime. For additional information concerning ourgien plans and plan liabilities, see
Note 13 to our consolidated financial statementsHe fiscal year ended March 31, 20

We may incur material losses for product liabilityand recall related claims.

We are subject to a risk of product and recalltegldiability in the event that the failure, usenoisuse of any of our products results
in personal injury, death, or property damage erpvaducts do not conform to our customers’ speaifons. In particular, our products are
installed in a number of types of vehicle fleetgliiding airplanes, trains, automobiles, heavyksuend farm equipment, many of which are
subject to government ordered as well as voluneeglls by the manufacturer. If one of our prodietf®und to be defective, causes a fleet to
be disabled or otherwise results in a product fesiginificant claims may be brought against ughaligh we have not had any material
product liability or recall related claims made mgaus, and we currently maintain product liapilisurance coverage for product liability,
although not for recall related claims, we canrsstuae you that product liability or recall relatddims, if made, would not exceed our
insurance coverage limits or would be covered Byiiance which, in turn, may result in material ésseelated to these claims, increased
future insurance costs and a corresponding reduitiour cash flow and net income.

Environmental regulations impose substantial costand limitations on our operations, and environmenthcompliance may be more
costly than we expect.

We are subject to various federal, state and lecalronmental laws and regulations, including thgseerning discharges of
pollutants into the air and water, the storagedhag and disposal of wastes and the health aretysaf employees. These laws and
regulations could subject us to material costsliadities, including compliance costs, civil andminal fines imposed for failure to comply
with these laws and regulatory and litigation coge also may be liable under the federal ComprakerEnvironmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act, or similar stadevk, for the costs of investigation and clean-upasftamination at facilities currently or
formerly owned or operated by us or at other faegiat which we have disposed of hazardous sute$ain connection with such
contamination, we may also be liable for naturabtece damages, government penalties and clairttsryparties for personal injury and
property damage. Compliance with these laws andlaggns may prove to be more limiting and costigrt we anticipate. New laws and
regulations, stricter enforcement of existing lawsl regulations, the discovery of previously unkn@entamination or the imposition of n¢
clean-up requirements could require us to incutscosbecome the basis for new or increased ltaslthat could cause a material increase in
our environmental related compliance costs andi@esponding reduction in our cash flow and netimeolnvestigation and remediation of
contamination at some of our sites is ongoing. Alctwsts to clean-up these sites may exceed orgrdwgstimates. Although we have
indemnities for certain prelosing environmental liabilities from the prior n@rs in connection with our acquisition of severfabur facilities
we cannot assure you that the indemnities will deqaate to cover known or newly discovered preiotpBabilities.

Our intellectual property and other proprietary rig hts are valuable, and any inability to protect themcould adversely affect our
business and results of operations; in addition, wanay be subject to infringement claims by third paties.

Our ability to compete effectively is dependent mpar ability to protect and preserve the intelletproperty and other proprietary
rights and materials owned, licensed or otherwssslby us. We have numerous U.S. and foreign pateatiemark registrations and U.S.
copyright registrations. Our issued patents areebgal to expire by their own terms at various datesmost such patents will not expire for
at least 5 years. We also have U.S. and foreigietnark and patent applications pending. We carssotra you that our pending trademark
and patent applications will result in trademarisegations and issued patents, and our failusetare rights under these applications may
limit our ability to protect the intellectual progy rights that these applications were intendecioteer. Although we have attempted to protect
our intellectual property and other proprietanhtigboth in the United States and in foreign caastthrough a combination of patent,
trademark, copyright and trade secret protectiahraom-disclosure agreements, these steps may ififi¢ient to prevent unauthorized use of
our intellectual property and other proprietanhtgy particularly in foreign countries where thetpction available for such intellectual
property and other proprietary rights may be lihit€o date we are not currently engaged in and havéad any
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material infringement or other claims pertainingto intellectual property brought against us icerg years. We cannot assure you that any
of our intellectual property rights will not be iifged upon or that our trade secrets will not igappropriated or otherwise become know

or independently developed by competitors. We n@yhave adequate remedies available for any sdghgement or other unauthorized
use. We cannot assure you that any infringemeimhslasserted by us will not result in our inteliedtproperty being challenged or
invalidated, that our intellectual property will held to be of adequate scope to protect our bssiaethat we will be able to deter current
former employees, contractors or other parties fooeaching confidentiality obligations and misagprating trade secrets. In addition, we
may become subject to claims against us which c@gdire us to pay damages or limit our abilitys® certain intellectual property and
other proprietary rights found to be in violatiohaothird party’s rights, and, in the event sutigéition is successful, we may be unable to use
such intellectual property and other proprietaghts at all or on reasonable terms. Regardleds ofiticome, any litigation, whether
commenced by us or third parties, could be prodédhend costly and could result in increased litigatelated expenses, the loss of intellec
property rights or payment of money or other darsag#ich may result in lost sales and reduced fltashand decrease our net income. See
“Business—Intellectual Property.”

Cancellation of orders in our backlog of orders cold negatively impact our revenues.

As of March 31, 2007, we had an order backlog a8 million, which we estimate will be fulfilledithin the next 12 months.
However, orders included in our backlog are sulifgctancellation, delay or other modifications loy oustomers prior to fulfillment. For
these reasons, we cannot assure you that ordéusgléacin our backlog will ultimately result in tlagtual receipt of revenues from such orc

If we fail to maintain an effective system of intenal controls, we may not be able to accurately repbour financial results or prevent
fraud.

Effective internal controls are necessary for ugrtavide reliable financial reports and effectivphlgvent fraud. Any inability to
provide reliable financial reports or prevent fraaaild harm our business. To date we have not geteny material weakness or significant
deficiencies in our internal controls over finahciporting. However, we are continuing to evalumte, where appropriate, enhance our
policies, procedures and internal controls. If wi¢tb maintain the adequacy of our internal cdstras such standards are modified,
supplemented or amended from time to time, we cbaldubject to regulatory scrutiny, civil or criralrpenalties or shareholder litigation. In
addition, failure to maintain adequate internaltomis could result in financial statements thando accurately reflect our financial condition.
Inferior internal controls could also cause investo lose confidence in our reported financiabiniation, which could have a negative effect
on the trading price of our stock.

Any reduction of Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offet Act (CDSOA) distributions in the future would reduce our earnings and
cash flows.

The CDSOA provides for distribution of monies cotled by the U.S. Customs Service from antidumparges to qualifying
domestic producers where the domestic producerms t@vtinued to invest in their technology, equiph@rd personnel. We reported
approximately $1.2 million in CDSOA receipts foethiear ended March 31, 2007. In February 2006, lgdgislation was enacted that would
end CDSOA distributions for imports covered by dathping duty orders entering the United States &éptember 30, 2007. Instead, any
such antidumping duties collected would remain i U.S. Treasury. This legislation is not expédtehave a significant effect on poten
CDSOA distributions in our fiscal year ending 20B8t would be expected to reduce any distributiongars beyond our fiscal year ending
2008, with distributions eventually ceasing. Inagpe cases in July and September 2006, the U1Bt Gfointernational Trade, or “CIT,”
ruled that the procedure for determining recipiatitgible to receive CDSOA distributions is uncadgional. The CIT has not finally ruled «
other matters, including any remedy as a resutsafiling. We are unable to determine, at thisetimithese rulings will have a material
adverse impact on our future receipt of CDSOA itistions or our financial results. It is possilthat the CIT rulings might prevent us from
receiving any CDSOA distributions in our fiscal yeading 2008. In addition to the CIT ruling, thame a number of other factors that can
affect whether we receive any CDSOA distributiond the amount of such distributions in any yeaesehfactors include, among other
things, potential additional changes in the lawgaing and potential additional legal challengethtlaw, and the administrative operation of
the law. Any reduction of CDSOA distributions wouktuce our earnings and cash flow.

Risk Factors Related to our Common Stock
Provisions in our charter documents and under Delaare law may prevent or frustrate attempts by our sbckholders to change our

management and hinder efforts to acquire a controihg interest in us.
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Provisions of our certificate of incorporation amdaws may discourage, delay or prevent a mergguiaition or other change in
control that stockholders may consider favoralsleluding transactions in which you might otherwiseeive a premium for your shares.
These provisions may also prevent or frustratergite by our stockholders to replace or remove camagement. These provisions include:

* aclassified board of directors;
e advance notice requirements for stockholder prdpa@sa nominations;
« the inability of stockholders to act by written semt or to call special meetings; and

« the ability of our board of directors to designtte terms of and issue new series of preferrek stithout stockholder
approval.

The affirmative vote of the holders of at least66% of our shares entitled to vote is necessary terahor repeal the above
provisions of our certificate of incorporation.dddition, absent approval of our board of diregtorany of our bylaw provisions may only be
amended or repealed by the affirmative vote ofiblders of at least 68 3% of our shares entitled to vote.

Our certificate of incorporation authorizes theuesce of “blank checlkpreferred stock with such designations, rights pmederence
as may be determined from time to time by our badmdirectors. Accordingly, the board of direct@empowered, without stockholder
approval, to issue preferred stock with dividemgljidation, conversion, voting or other rights thatild materially adversely affect the voting
power or other rights of the holders of our commtotk, including purchasers in this offering. Hoklef the common stock will not have
preemptive rights to subscribe for a pro rata partf any capital stock which may be issued byirughe event of issuance, such preferred
stock could be utilized, under certain circumstanes a method of discouraging, delaying or préngrat change in control of us. Although
we have no present intention to issue any new sladrgreferred stock, we may do so in the future.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware Generap@mtion Law prohibits a publicly held Delawaremoration from engaging in a
business combination with an interested stockhoplglmerally a person which together with its adfitis owns, or within the last three years
has owned, 15% of our voting stock, for a periothoée years after the date of the transactionhichvthe person became an interested
stockholder, unless the business combination isoaep in a prescribed manner. Accordingly, Sec68 may discourage, delay or prevent a
change in control of our company.

If there are substantial sales of our common stoclqur stock price could decline.

If our existing stockholders sell a large numbesludres of our common stock or the public marketgiees that existing
stockholders might sell shares of our common sttiekmarket price of our common stock could dectigmificantly.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located at @ribology Center, Oxford, Connecticut 06478. Wepalse this facility for
manufacturing our plain bearing products, both de® lined and metal-to-metal, and commercial balidngs.

In addition, we own facilities in Hartsville, Sou@arolina; Fairfield, Connecticut; Rancho Domingu@alifornia; Santa Ana,
California; Walterboro, South Carolina; Bremen,iamdh; Plymouth, Indiana; Bishopville, South Caraliand Torrington, Connecticut. We
also have leases in effect with respect to faeditn the following locations until the followingtks: West Trenton, New Jersey, February 2,
2012; Oxford, Connecticut, September 30, 2014;imgton, Connecticut, December 22, 2008; Glasgowitieky, June 30, 2007; Delemont,
Switzerland, December 31, 2009; Reynosa, Mexicoe 18, 2013; Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, Septembe2@81; Irwindale, California,
May 31, 2008; Bishopville, South Carolina, Januaty 2016; Hartsville, South Carolina, September28d.4; and Santa Fe Springs,
California, July 1, 2009.

We also have several small field offices locateddrious locales in the United States to suppeltifsales operations. These offices
are less than twenty five hundred square feet.
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We believe that our existing property, facilitiexdaequipment are generally in good condition, aedt maintained and adequate to
carry on our current operations. We also belieat dtur existing manufacturing facilities have stiffint capacity to meet increased customer
demand. Substantially all of our owned domestigpprties and most of our other assets are subjectiém securing our obligations under our
KeyBank Credit Agreement.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in litigationcaadministrative proceedings which arise in tharay course of our business. \
do not believe that any litigation or proceedingvimich we are currently involved, either individlyabr in the aggregate, is likely to have a
material adverse effect on our business, finardatition, operating results, cash flow or prospect
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURIT Y HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitglerd during the fourth quarter of the fiscal yealed March 31, 2007.
ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following information is included in accordaneih the provisions of Part Ill, Iltem 10.

The executive officers are elected by the Boaiodctors normally for a term of one year and uthtéd election of their successors.
The executive officers of the company as of June20R7 are as follows:

Name Age Current Position and Previous Positions During LastFive Years
Dr. Michael J. Hartnel 61 1992 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off
Daniel A. Bergeron a7 2002 Vice President Finance

2002 Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and $tamy
200€ Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and Atsit Secretar

Phillip H. Beausoleil 63 1995 General Manager, ITB and TDC

2007 General Manager, ITB, TDC and All Pow
Thomas C. Crainer 49 200C General Manager Schaublin SA

2002 General Manager, Heim, RE-API and Schaublin S,
Richard J. Edward 51 199€ Vice President and General Manager, RBC Divis
Thomas J. William: 55 200€ Corporate General Counsel and Secre
Thomas M. Burigo 55 2002 Manager of Accounting

200t Director of Accounting
200€ Corporate Controlle

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Price range of our Common Stock

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Natioraak®t under the symbol “ROLL.” As of May 29, 20@ere were 49 holders
of record of our common stock.

The following table shows the high and low salésg® of our common stock (beginning August 10, 3GG85reported by the Nasdaq
National Market during the periods indicat
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Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006

High Low High Low
First Quarte! $27.1¢ $193: $ — $ —
Second Quarte 25.57 19.63 17.6€ 14.6C
Third Quartel 30.12 23.7¢ 18.27 14.2C
Fourth Quarte 34.8¢ 25.81 22.24 16.2¢

The last reported sale price of our common stoctherNasdaq National Market on June 4, 2007 wass$3%r share.
Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock and do not expect to pay castatids for the foreseeable
future. Our current policy is to retain all of cesrnings to finance future growth. In addition, eoants in our credit facilities restrict our
ability to pay dividends. Any future declarationdifidends will be determined by our board of diogs, based upon our earnings, capital
requirements, financial condition, debt covenatats,consequences and other factors deemed releyanir board of directors.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total share repurchases for the three months edech 31, 2007 are as follows:

Approximate

Number of dollar value
shares of shares still
purchased available to be
as part of the purchased
Total number Average publicly under the
of shares price paid announced program
Period purchased per share program (000’s)
DLOT2007 = 011382007 26,107 $ 26.3¢€ 26,107 $ 6,811
02/01/2007— 02/28/200 — — — 6,811
03/01/2007 — 03/31/2007 11,24¢ 32.0C 11,24¢ -
Total 37,35 $§  28.07 37,35¢ $ —

On August 31, 2006, our Board of Directors authextizs to repurchase up to $7.5 million of our comrsiock during fiscal 2007,
from time to time on the open market, in block gdchnsactions and through privately negotiatenstations depending on market
conditions, alternative uses of capital and othetdrs. This plan expired on March 31, 2007.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we did issue any common stock that was not registereémtie Securities Act.
Equity Compensation Plans

Information regarding equity compensation plansiieegl to be disclosed pursuant to this Item istided elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

Our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. N8:B®480), as amended, together with our Registr&@tatement on Form S-1
MEF (Reg. No. 333-133219), filed April 11, 2006chee effective April 11, 2006, and the offering enemced the same day. The offering
terminated subsequent to the sale of 7,817,00@sldrcommon stock, excluding shares sold in cdiorewith the exercise of the
underwriters’ overallotment optian Merrill Lynch & Co., KeyBanc Capital Markets ambbert W. Baird & Co. acted as underwriters for
the offering.

We registered 7,817,000 shares of common stoc@.8f.%ar value per share, plus 1,172,550 additisimates to cover the
underwriters’ overallotment option. 1,821,471 &lsawvere registered for our account, plus an adhditit,172,550 in connection with exercise
of the overallotment option. The aggregate pubffiering price of the 2,994,021 shares sold by as $20.50 per share resulting in gross
proceeds before expenses and underwriting commissind discounts of approximately
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$61.4 million. The selling stockholders sold 5,829 shares of common stock, resulting in aggregia@ss proceeds to the selling
stockholders of approximately $122.9 million befes@enses and underwriting commissions and dissount

Expenses incurred in connection with the issuandedistribution of the securities registered wesdadlows (excluding fees
associated with the refinancing of our senior darediility):

Underwriting discounts and commissic $ 3.1 million
Other estimated expens 1.3 million
Total estimated expens $ 4.4 million

None of such payments were direct or indirect paymt directors or officers of the issuer or tlessociates or to persons owning
10 percent or more of any class of equity secuaritiethe issuer or any of its affiliates or direcindirect payments to others. The net offe
proceeds to us after deducting underwriters’ diat®and the total expenses described above tqpteximately $57.0 million.

The proceeds of the offering (excluding paymentsammissions, fees and expenses described ab@ve)used to prepay
outstanding balances under the Amended Term Loan.

Performance Graph

The following graph shows the total return to aimckholders compared to a peer group and the NaSdatposite over the period
from July 31, 2005 to March 31, 2007. Each linglmgraph assumes that $100 was invested in oumoonstock on August 10, 2005 or in
the respective indices at the closing price on 3aly2005. The graph then presents the value sétherestments, assuming reinvestment of
dividends, through the close of trading on MarchZ107.

COMPARISON OF 19 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among RBC Bearings Incorporated, The MASDAQ Composite [ndex
And a Peer Group

250 -
%200
150
100
$50 -
50
AMONS k[l 107
—+HB—RBC Bearings hcorporated = == NASDAC Composite Index = =Peer Group
8/10/2005  4/1/2006  3/31/2007
RBC Bearings Incorporate $100.0C $134.28 $218.9¢
Nasdag Composite Inde 100.0C 109.71 115.32
Peer Groui 100.0C 124.1¢ 179.51
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The peer group consists of Kaydon Corporation, Mimeg, NN Inc., Precision Industries Castparts Cofpgnken Company and
Triumph Group Inc., which in our opinion, most @bsrepresent the peer group for our business seigme

*The cumulative total return shown on the stockK@@nance graph indicates historical results onlg Bmot necessarily indicative
future results.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selected cordsaifd historical financial and other data as ofdates and for the periods indicated.
The selected financial data as of and for the yeaded March 31, 2007, April 1, 2006, April 2, 208%ril 3, 2004 and March 29, 2003 have
been derived from our historical consolidated fitiahstatements audited by Ernst & Young LLP, inelegent registered public accounting
firm. Historical results are not necessarily indiloa of the results expected in the future. Youdtioead the data presented below together
with, and qualified by reference to, “Managememltiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations” and our
consolidated financial statements included elseirethis Form 10-K.

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2, April 3, March 29,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, except share and per share amount
Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales(1 $ 306,060 $ 274,50¢ $ 243,01¢ $ 187,331 $ 172,86(
Cost of sale: 205,95 191,56 174,60: 135,43 124,08¢
Gross margit 100,10¢ 82,94¢ 68,41¢ 51,89¢ 48,77¢
Selling, general and administrative 42,25¢ 41,94 32,74¢ 28,107 26,647
Other, ne 5,934 2,424 3,52€ 1,662 1,424
Operating incomi 51,91¢ 38,57¢ 32,13¢ 22,12¢ 20,70:
Interest expense, n 5,50¢ 15,73¢ 19,66¢ 20,38( 21,02
Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of deb 3,57¢€ 3,771 6,95C — (780)
Other nor-operating expense (incorr (1,229) — (355) 16 298
Income before income tax 44,067 19,073 5,87& 1,73¢ 162
Provision for (benefit from) income tax 15,58¢ 6,634 (1,385) 1,07C 113
Net income 28,47¢ 12,43¢ 7,26C 663 49
Preferred stock dividentc — (893) (2,280 (2,144 (1,313)
Participation rights of preferred stock in undistited
earnings — (630) (1,142) — —
Net income (loss) available to common stockhols $ 28,47¢ $ 10,91¢ $ 3,83¢ $ (1,481 $ (1,269
Net income (loss) per common share
Basic $ 138 $ 084 $% 0.62 $ (0.24) $ (0.20)
Diluted $ 132 $ 0.7€ $ 0.3t $ (0.24) $ (0.20)
Weighted average common shares
Basic 20,579,491 12,931,18! 6,202,61! 6,188,90: 6,188,90:
Diluted 21,335,300 14,452,26.  10,854,58- 6,188,90: 6,188,90:
Other Financial Data:
Capital expenditure $ 16,172 $ 10,341 9,52€ 4,951 6,522
As of
March 31, April 1, April 2, April 3, March 29,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash $ 5184 $ 16,12¢ $ 2,63t $ 325C $ 3,55¢
Working capital 138,97( 146,61: 120,65¢ 105,55( 89,411
Total asset 273,71 275,92¢ 250,16¢ 234,74¢ 232,35¢
Total debi 59,40% 165,747 220,07¢ 215,22¢ 210,93:
Total stockholder equity (deficit) 168,171 73,34( (7,759 (16,285 (17,649
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(1)

()

(3)

(4)

Net sales were $172.9 million in fiscal 2003 congplato $168.3 million in fiscal 2002, an increasé&46 million, or 2.7%. Net sales
the compared periods included net sales totaling $@lion in fiscal 2003 for RBC France, which wasquired in December 2002, and
$5.2 million in fiscal 2003 and $3.7 million in éial 2002 generated by RBC Oklahoma, which was aeduffective August 2001.
Excluding RBC France and RBC Oklahc's sales, our net sales increased $1.0 millionG$#Grom period to perioc

Net sales were $243.0 million in fiscal 2005 coneplaio $187.3 million in fiscal 2004, an increas&®5.7 million. Net sales in tt
compared periods included net sales of $19.3 miiliofiscal 2005 and $6.1 million in fiscal 2004 RBC-API, which was acquired in
December 200:

Net sales were $274.5 million in fiscal 2006 congplato $243.0 million in fiscal 2005, an increasé&81.5 million. Net sales in tf
compared periods included net sales of $1.7 milliofiscal 2006 for SWP, which was acquired in $epgber 2005

Net sales were $306.1 million in fiscal 2007 coneglatio $274.5 million in fiscal 2006, an increas&®81.6 million. Net sales in tt
compared periods included net sales of $8.4 miilicfiscal 2007 for All Power, which was acquiredSeptember 200

Selling, general and administrative expense foffidtal year ended April 1, 2006 included non-reitigy compensation expense of
$5.2 million as well as $0.4 million of stock conmgation. SeRelated Party Transactio”

Loss on early extinguishment of debt of $7.0 millia fiscal 2005 included $4.3 million for non-cashte-off of deferred financing
fees associated with retired debt, $1.8 milliomeafemption premium and $0.9 million of accruednese for the
30-day call period related to the early extinguishnr£110.0 million of €/5% senior subordinated notes in July 2C

Loss on early extinguishment of debt of $3.8 millia fiscal 2006 included $1.6 million for non-casthite-off of deferred financing
fees and unamortized bond discount associatedretitied debt, $1.3 million of redemption premiuns@sated with the retirement of
all of our 13% discount debentures in Septembeb2$0.5 million of prepayment fees related to #ygalyment of all of the outstanding
balance under our second lien term loan in Aug0eb2and $0.4 million in interest expense for theda call period related to the ea
extinguishment of our 13% discount debentu

Loss on early extinguishment of debt in fiscal 20@% $3.6 million for the non-cash write-off of defed financing costs associated
with the early termination of the senior creditiliae

Amounts shown for periods prior to August 15, 20883ude shares of both Class A common stock andsBacommon stock, all of
which were reclassified into a single class of camrstock on a one-for-one basis in connection withinitial public offering as of
such date

Amounts for the fiscal year ended April 1, 2008eeff the consummation of our initial public offegim August 2005, which included:
(1) the sale by us of 7,034,516 shares at theinffgrice of $14.50 per share, (2) the repaymentladf our $38.6 million in aggregate
principal amount of 13% senior subordinated distaigtentures due 2009, (3) the repayment of afitantling indebtedness under our
$45.0 million second lien term loan, (4) the additdof $40.0 million to our Term Loan and (5) thdemption of all of our then
outstanding Class C and Class D preferred stocarfaggregate redemption price of $38.6 mill

Amounts for the fiscal year ended March 31, 200lecethe consummation of our secondary publicriffgin April 2006, which

included: (1) the sale by us of 8,989,550 sharesiotommon stock (5,995,529 sold by certain ofsiackholders) at the offering price
of $20.50 per share and (2) the repayment of $5iflln of our Term Loan
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION
Overview

We are a well known international manufacturerighly engineered precision plain, roller and balhlings. Our precision solutions
are integral to the manufacture and operation aftmmchines and mechanical systems, reduce weantimg parts, facilitate proper power
transmission and reduce damage and energy losscchydriction. While we manufacture products inmajor bearing categories, we focus
primarily on the higher end of the bearing markbere we believe our value added manufacturing agtheering capabilities enable us to
differentiate ourselves from our competitors andagte profitability. We estimate that approximat®bp-thirds of our net sales during fiscal
2007 were generated by products for which we hwddntumber one or two market position. We have Ipeeviding bearing solutions to our
customers since 1919. Over the past ten yearsy tineléeadership of our current management teanhawve significantly broadened our end
markets, products, customer base and geograptub.réée currently operate 19 facilities of whichdré manufacturing facilities in four
countries.

Demand for bearings generally follows the markefpimducts in which bearings are incorporated &edeconomy as a whole.
Purchasers of bearings include industrial equipraadtmachinery manufacturers, producers of comiegiod military aerospace equipment
such as missiles and radar systems, agriculturehimary manufacturers, construction and speciakgdpment manufacturers and
automotive and commercial truck manufacturers. Miaekets for our products are cyclical, and genmia@lket conditions could negatively
impact our operating results. We have endeavoredtigate the cyclicality of our product markets daytering into sole-source relationships
and long-term purchase orders, through diversificadcross multiple market segments within the sfgaioe and defense and diversified
industrial segments, by increasing sales to treratirket and by focusing on developing highly costed solutions.

During fiscal 2007, the world economy continuecinerge from the slowdown experienced from 2000@B2and we experienced
favorable conditions across our two major markaitgersified industrial and aerospace and defemspatticular the economy of our
diversified industrial market has been driven hyuieements in non-residential construction, miramgl the oil and gas sectors. These
conditions have resulted in demand for bearingbfth OEM and replacement markets. In the aerospacket a strong recovery continued,
and we believe it is at the mid-stages of an exddr@ycle. Expansion of the commercial aircraft@edh response to increased passenger
demand and the need of the carriers to upgradedhdwide fleet, drove increased build scheduleBa@ing and Airbus. The defense sector
continued to replace and develop its weapons aryb gdatforms. This sector demonstrated increasgdirements for replacement bearings
for combat systems strained by extensive use ishhemvironments over the past four years. Forifialfyear ended March 31, 2007,
approximately 24% of our revenues were derived fsaites directly or indirectly outside the U.S. Weect this component of our busines
increase in response to our emphasis on contineleeltiation of foreign markets, particularly thos@érospace.

Approximately 20% of our costs are attributableaw materials, a majority of which are relatedteesand related products. During
the past three years, steel prices have increadadtorically high levels, responding to unprecgdd levels of world demand. To date, we
have generally been able to pass through thess tmostir customers through price increases andgbessment of surcharges, although there
can be a time lag of up to 3 months or more.

Competition in specialized bearing markets is basedngineering design, brand, lead times andui#tiaof product and service.
These markets are generally not as price sensitivhe markets for standard bearings.

We have demonstrated expertise in acquiring amgjiating bearing and precision-engineered compananufacturers that have
complementary products or distribution channels nodide significant potential for margin enhancem&Ve have consistently increased
profitability of acquired businesses through a pescof methods and systems improvement coupledtiétmtroduction of complementary
and proprietary new products. Since October 199have completed 15 acquisitions which have sigaifity broadened our end markets,
products, customer base and geographic reach.

Sources of Revenue

Revenue is generated primarily from sales of bgartn the diversified industrial market and theoapace and defense markets.
Sales are often made pursuant to sole-sourcear$iips, long-term agreements and purchase ordéirour clients. We recognize revenues
principally from the sale of products at the pahpassage of title, which is at the time of shipime

Sales to the diversified industrial market accodrite 50% of our net sales for the fiscal year ehiiarch 31, 2007. Sales to the
aerospace and defense markets accounted for 50uUs okt sales for the same period. We anticipatestles to the aerospace and defense
markets will increase as a percentage of our Hessa

Aftermarket sales of replacement parts for exiséiggipment platforms represented approximately 58%ur net sales for fiscal
2007. We continue to develop our OEM relationshipich have established us as a leading supplienamy
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important aerospace and defense platforms. Oveyabieseveral years, we have experienced incregsednd from the replacement parts
market, particularly within the aerospace and defesectors; one of our business strategies hasta@wmrease the proportion of sales deri
from this segment. We believe these activitiesaase the stability of our revenue base, strengihebrand identity and provide multiple
paths for revenue growth.

Approximately 24% of our net sales were derivedrfigales directly or indirectly outside the U.S.fiscal 2007, compared to 20%
for fiscal 2006. We expect that this proportionhivitrease as we seek to increase our penetratifmmeagn markets, particularly within the
aerospace and defense sectors. In fiscal 2007iszad 2006, our top ten customers, four of whicmerM@EMs and the remaining six of which
were distributors, generated 32% of our net s@e$.of the 32% of net sales generated by our tetstomers during the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007, 20% of net sales was generatedibtop four customers. No single customer was nesipte for generating more than 8%
of our net sales for the same period.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of sales includes employee compensation amefikee materials, outside processing, depreciatfomanufacturing machinery
and equipment, supplies and manufacturing overhead.

During the past three years, our gross margin magacted by rising raw material prices, in particutaeel and related products. In
response, we have, to date, managed to pass amejbdty of these price increases of raw matetialsur customers through steel surcharges
assessed on, or price increases of, our bearimypt® However, we have from time to time expergha time lag of up to 3 months or more
in our ability to pass through steel surchargesuiocustomers, which has negatively impacted ocosgmargin. We will continue to pass on
raw material price increases as competitive comufitiallow.

We have not been significantly impacted by receatgases in energy prices because energy costaptttesignificant component of
which is natural gas used in heat treating operaficepresent approximately 3% of our overall costs

We monitor gross margin performance through a m®oé monthly operation management reviews. Wedeilelop new products
to target certain markets allied to our stratefigfirst understanding volume levels and produdipg and then constructing manufacturing
strategies to achieve defined margin objectives.ovlg pursue product lines where we believe thatdéveloped manufacturing process will
yield the targeted margins. Management monitorsgmargins of all product lines on a monthly b&sidetermine which manufacturil
processes or prices should be adjusted.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, exgemnrelate primarily to the compensation and aasaticosts of selling, general
and administrative personnel, professional feesramce, facility costs and information technoldgie expect SG&A expenses will increase
in absolute terms as we increase our sales eadsncur increased costs related to the antiaipgitewth of our business and the additional
costs associated with operating as a public company

Other Expenses

On February 15, 2006, our RBC Nice Bearings, lnbsiliary and the United Steelworkers of Americ&l(ACIO) Local 6816-12
entered into a shutdown agreement in connectiom euit decision to close operations at our Kulpsyiftennsylvania facility. Under the
shutdown agreement, the union has agreed to taketium against us in connection with such shutdovre agreement also addresses
closure and other transition issues related toipassworkers compensation insurance, adjustmesigtasce and other matters. The
production that was conducted at the Nice facliiig been moved to other RBC locations, and weipat&eno material impact on our
production or our ability to service our custom&butdown costs included $0.6 million of severasce $0.4 million for fixed asset
impairments which were recorded in fiscal 2006.

On February 6, 2007, our Tyson Bearing Company,dabsidiary and the United Steelworkers of Ame(&BL-CIO) Local 7461-
01 entered into a shutdown agreement in conneetitnour decision to close operations at our Glasgéentucky facility. Under the
shutdown agreement, the union has agreed to taketium against us in connection with such shutdovre agreement also addresses
closure and other transition issues related toipassworkers compensation insurance, adjustmesigtasce and other matters. The
production that was conducted at the Tyson fadilag been moved to other RBC locations, and weipate no material impact on our
production or our ability to service our customdise consolidation is anticipated to result in ioyad gross margin for this product line fr
a negative to a positive result over the next teehonths. This consolidation resulted in a chafggpproximately $5,088 in fiscal 2007.
Approximately $2,211 of this charge related todigposal of fixed assets.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the various compdreei our consolidated statements of operationsiessed as a percentage of net
sales, for the periods indicated that are usedmmection with the discussion herein:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005

Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales 100.C% 100.C% 100.(%
Gross margir 32.7 30.2 28.2
Selling, general and administrati 13.8 15.3 13.5
Other, ne 1.9 0.9 15
Operating incom: 17.C 14.0 13.2
Interest expense, n 1.8 5.7 8.1
Loss on early extinguishment of de 1.2 1.4 2.9
Other nor-operating expense (incomr (0.4) 0.0 (0.2)
Income before income tax 14.4 6.9 2.4
Provision for (benefit from) income tax 5.1 2.4 (0.6)
Net income 9.3 4.5 3.0

Segment I nformation

We have four reportable product segments: PlainiBgs, Roller Bearings, Ball Bearings and Othehédtconsists primarily of
precision ball screws and machine tool collets. filewing table shows our net sales and operatiagme with respect to each of our
reporting segments plus Corporate for the lasktfiszal years:

Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Net External Sales

Plain $143,907 $115,097 $ 93,25(
Roller 92,12¢ 96,46¢ 92,281
Ball 50,46¢ 46,37¢ 41,881
Other 19,56¢ 16,574 15,60¢
Total $306,06: $274,50¢ $243,01¢

Operating Income

Plain $ 41,162 $ 30,958 $ 22,647
Roller 18,76¢ 23,34( 17,03
Ball 12,52: 9,692 9,07C
Other 2,20C 1,47¢ 797
Corporate (22,737 (26,886 (17,40
Total $ 51,91¢ $ 38,57¢ $ 32,13¢

Geographic I nformation

The following table summarizes our net sales, bgmhg location, for the periods shown:

Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
(in thousands)

Geographic Revenues

Domestic $265,64¢ $243,57¢ $ 215,38
Foreign 40,41¢ 30,93¢ 27,63¢

Total $306,06: $274,50¢ $243,01¢
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For additional information concerning our businesgments, see Item 8, Note 21.
Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

Net Sales. Net sales for fiscal 2007 were $306.1 million,merease of $31.6 million, or 11.5%, compared2@455 million for the
same period in fiscal 2006. During fiscal 2007,experienced net sales growth in three of our fegnsents, driven by demand across end
markets as well as continued efforts to supply pevducts to existing and new customers. Overallsakes to aerospace and defense
customers grew 25.8% in fiscal 2007 compared ts#mee period last year, driven mainly by commeraial military aerospace aftermarket,
OEM demand and the inclusion of recently acquirdd®Awer. Net sales to diversified industrial custrs grew 0.3% in fiscal 2007
compared to the same period last year. Reflectéluis change, our core markets of constructiomjmgi semiconductor capital equipment
and distribution were up 6.8% offset by a declimgéar-over-year volume in our Class 8 truck market

The Plain Bearings segment achieved net sales4#.$illion in fiscal 2007, an increase of $28.8iom, or 25.0%, compared to
$115.1 million for the same period in the prior yeEhe commercial and military aerospace markev@aeted for $28.2 million of the increase
due to an increase in airframe and aerospace lgestripments to aircraft manufacturers and contirdesdand for aftermarket product. Net
sales to diversified industrial customers accoufie®0.6 million of the increase driven by genenalustrial applications.

The Roller Bearings segment achieved net saleS2fldmillion in fiscal 2007, a decrease of $4.4lioml, or 4.5%, compared to
$96.5 million for the same period in the prior ye&8.1 million of this decrease was attributableates to customers in the industrial market,
mainly a result of the slow down in the class &krmarket. The aerospace and defense market aecbfotthe offsetting $3.7 million
increase, driven primarily by increasing build saé&d maintenance requirements for commercial aliicuy aircraft.

The Ball Bearings segment achieved net sales ab$&0lion in fiscal 2007, an increase of $4.1 ioifi, or 8.8%, compared to
$46.4 million for the same period in the prior yed@he increase was driven principally by increadechand from airframe, electro-optical,
and satellite and communications applications anteased penetration of the airframe market.

The Other segment, which is focused mainly on #he af precision ball screws and machine tool tsllachieved net sales of
$19.6 million in fiscal 2007, an increase of $3.illion, or 18.1%, compared to $16.6 million for tkame period last year. This increase was
primarily due to increased sales of machine totétoto the industrial market in Europe and priecidall screws to aerospace and industrial
applications.

Gross Margin.  Gross margin was $100.1 million, or 32.7% of sedes, in fiscal 2007, versus $82.9 million, 0r280.0f net sales,
for the comparable period in fiscal 2006. The iasein our gross margin as a percentage of net wale primarily the result of an overall
increase in volume, higher prices, increased matwriag efficiency, and overall product mix.

Slling, General and Administrative.  SG&A expenses increased by $0.4 million, or 0.@&%42.3 million in fiscal 2007 comparec
$41.9 million for the same period in fiscal 2008.€Tincrease was primarily due to higher stock careptton expense of $0.4 million, higher
professional service fees of $1.3 million and aréase of $3.9 million for personnel necessaryppsert increased volume, offset by $5.2
million in non-recurring compensation expense &tdl 2006. As a percentage of net sales, SG&ALBHY in fiscal 2007 compared to
15.3% for the same period in fiscal 2006.

Other, net. Other, net in fiscal 2007 was $5.9 million conggzhto $2.4 million for the same period in fiscaDB0In fiscal 2007,
other, net included plant consolidation expenseddth the Tyson and Nice facilities of $3.2 mitliaa loss on disposal of fixed assets of $2.7
million relating primarily to the Tyson plant coriglation, a gain on the sale of the Nice facilify$®.8 million, amortization of intangibles of
$0.7 million and $0.2 million of bad debt expense fiscal 2006, other, net included amortizatidrnntangibles of $0.7 million, severance
costs of $0.6 million and losses on fixed assqiatials of $0.4 million for the RBC Nice Bearingss.I plant consolidation, $0.2 million of
non-recurring management fees, $0.3 million of #elt expense, and $0.2 million of other expenses.

Operating Income. Operating income was $51.9 million, or 17.0% ef sales, in fiscal 2007 compared to $38.6 millmm]14.0% o
net sales, in fiscal 2006. Operating income forRken Bearings segment was $41.2 million in fi2@07, or 28.6% of net sales, compared to
$31.0 million for the same period last year, 0/926.0f net sales. The Roller Bearings segment aetien operating income in fiscal 2007 of
$18.8 million, or 20.4% of net sales, compared28.3 million, or 24.2% of net sales, in fiscal 200Ehe Ball Bearings segment achieved an
operating income of
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$12.5 million, or 24.8% of net sales, in fiscal ZDBompared to $9.7 million, or 20.9% of net salesthe same period in fiscal 2006. The
Other segment achieved an operating income of ®2ldn, or 11.2% of net sales, in fiscal 2007, quared to $1.5 million or 8.9% of net
sales, for the same period in fiscal 2006. Theciase in operating income in the Plain, Ball ande©gegments was driven primarily by an
increase in net sales. The decrease in operatiognia in the Roller segment was primarily driverthy decrease in net sales to industrial
distributor customers.

Interest Expense, net. Interest expense, net decreased by $10.2 mtti&®.5 million in fiscal 2007, compared to $15.iflion in
fiscal 2006, driven by debt reduction. Amortizatwideferred financing costs and debt discountetcerded as a component of net interest
expense. Amortization expenses included in intexegénse, net were $0.4 million in fiscal 2007 caneg to $0.8 million in fiscal 2006.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. For fiscal 2007, loss on early extinguishmendetit was $3.6 million for non-cash write-off
of deferred financing fees. For fiscal 2006, lossearly extinguishment of debt of $3.8 million iaded $1.6 million for non-cash write-off of
deferred financing fees and unamortized bond discassociated with retired debt, $1.3 million ademption premium associated with the
redemption of all our 13% discount debentures ipt&aber 2005, $0.5 million prepayment fees relédatie prepayment of all the
outstanding balance under our second lien termito&ugust 2005 and $0.4 million in interest expefs the 30-day call period related to
the early extinguishment of our 13% debentures.

Other Non-Operating Expense (Income). In fiscal 2007, we received approximately $1.8iam in payments under the U.S.
Continued Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act (CDSOA)2606. The CDSOA distributes antidumping dutia&lfoy overseas companies to
domestic firms hurt by unfair trade.

Income Before Income Taxes. Income before taxes was $44.1 million in fisca02 compared to income before taxes of
$19.1 million in fiscal 2006.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense in fiscal 2007 was $15.6 oniltompared to $6.6 million in fiscal 2006. Theeefive income
tax rate in fiscal 2007 was 35.4% compared to 34r8fiscal 2006. The increase in the effective income tax rate fy@ar to year is primari
due to the recording of a valuation allowance amaie state net operating losses due to plant skrid as well as the elimination of the ETI
benefit, partially offset by a reduction in stad® £xpense due to the elimination of most statechiese taxes.

Net Income. Net income was $28.5 million in fiscal 2007 comgzhto net income of $12.4 million in fiscal 2006.
Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

Net Sales. Net sales for fiscal 2006 were $274.5 million,merease of $31.5 million, or 13.0%, compared2430 million for the
same period in fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2006,experienced net sales growth in each of our fogmeats, driven by strong demand across
end markets as well as continued efforts to supply products to existing and new customers. Ovyeratisales to diversified industrial
customers grew 5.4% in fiscal 2006 compared ts#me period last year. Reflected in this changecore markets of construction, mining,
semiconductor capital equipment and distributiomeng 8.1% offset by a small change in year-to-yeéume in our Class 8 market sector.
Net sales to aerospace and defense customers gr2% i fiscal 2006 compared to the same periddykear, driven mainly by commerci
and military aerospace aftermarket and OEM demand.

The Plain Bearings segment achieved net salesId&. $illion in fiscal 2006, an increase of $21.8ion, or 23.4%, compared to
$93.3 million for the same period in the prior yddet sales to diversified industrial customersoacted for $9.1 million of the increase,
driven primarily by strong demand in the constroictand mining heavy equipment sectors, generakinidliapplications, and strong
industrial aftermarket demand. The commercial aflidiary aerospace market accounted for $12.7 nmiltid the increase due to an increase in
airframe and aerospace bearing shipments to dimoaiufacturers and continued demand for afternhgmceluct.

The Roller Bearings segment achieved net saleS@bdmillion in fiscal 2006, an increase of $4.23lion, or 4.5%, compared to
$92.3 million for the same period in the prior ye&0.1 million of this increase was attributalestiles to customers in the industrial market.
Net sales to the class 8 truck market declined2y #illion offset by strong demand from miningnstruction equipment and gene
industrial applications of $2.2 million. The aerasp and defense market accounted for the remadirigmillion of the increase, driven
primarily by increasing build rates and maintenarezpiirements for commercial and military aircraft.
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The Ball Bearings segment achieved net sales a#i$@lion in fiscal 2006, an increase of $4.5 ioitl, or 10.7%, compared to
$41.9 million for the same period in the prior ye@he increase was driven principally by increadechand from airframe, electro-optical,
and satellite and communications applications anteased penetration of the airframe market. Salear customers in the industrial mar
were flat year over year.

The Other segment, which is focused mainly on #he af precision ball screws and machine tool tsllachieved net sales of
$16.6 million in fiscal 2006, an increase of $1.llion, or 6.2%, compared to $15.6 million for takame period last year. This increase was
primarily due to increased sales of machine tobetto the industrial market and precision batksvs to military aerospace applications.

Gross Margin.  Gross margin was $82.9 million, or 30.2% of raes, in fiscal 2006, versus $68.4 million, or 28.8f net sales, for
the comparable period in fiscal 2005. The incréasmir gross margin as a percentage of net salepvimarily the result of an overall
increase in volume, higher prices, increased matwfiag efficiency, and overall product mix.

Sling, General and Administrative.  SG&A expenses increased by $9.2 million, or 28.i%%41.9 million in fiscal 2006 compared
to $32.7 million for the same period in fiscal 200Be $9.2 million increase was primarily due taiecurring compensation expense of §
million, stock option compensation expense of $0ikion, professional service fees associated Withimplementation of Sarbanes-Oxley
404 of $0.4 million, an increase in personnel nsagsto support increased volume, higher professiservice fees, and additional costs
associated with being a public company. As a pdacge of net sales, SG&A was 15.3% in fiscal 20@@gared to 13.5% for the same pe
in fiscal 2005.

Other, net. Other, net in fiscal 2006 was $2.4 million comgghto $3.5 million for the same period in fiscaD20In fiscal 2006,
other, net included amortization of intangibless6f7 million, severance costs of $0.6 million aoskkes on fixed asset disposals of $0.4
million for the RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. plant colidation, $0.2 million of non-recurring manageméggs, $0.3 million of bad debt expense,
and $0.2 million of other expenses. In fiscal 208ther, net consisted of amortization of intanggbdf $0.5 million, $0.5 million of
management fees, losses on fixed asset disposd&s®million, and $0.5 million of bad debt expens

Operating Income. Operating income was $38.6 million, or 14.1% ef sales, in fiscal 2006 compared to $32.1 millam]3.2% o
net sales, in fiscal 2005. Operating income forRta&n Bearings segment was $31.0 million in fi2@06, or 26.9% of net sales, compared to
$22.6 million for the same period last year, o1324.0f net sales. The Roller Bearings segment aetien operating income in fiscal 2006 of
$23.3 million, or 24.2% of net sales, compared1d.8 million, or 18.5% of net sales, in fiscal 2008e Ball Bearings segment achieved an
operating income of $9.7 million, or 20.9% of naeles, in fiscal 2006, compared to $9.1 million2&r7% of net sales, for the same period in
fiscal 2005. The Other segment achieved an operatoome of $1.5 million, or 8.9% of net salesfigzal 2006, compared to $0.8 million or
5.1% of net sales, for the same period in fisc@X2@he increase in operating income in each ofdgnents was driven primarily by an
increase in net sales. In addition, operating inre@as a percentage of net sales increased for ¢doh segments primarily as a result of
leveraging the fixed cost base over higher nessale

Interest Expense, net. Interest expense, net decreased by $4.0 milticgk156.7 million in fiscal 2006, compared to $19.iflion in
fiscal 2005. Amortization of deferred financingst®and debt discount are recorded as a compoheat imterest expense. Amortization
expenses included in interest expense, net we8erfiillion in fiscal 2006 compared to $1.1 milliamfiscal 2005.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt. For fiscal 2006, loss on early extinguishmendett of $3.8 million included $1.6 million fi
non-cash write-off of deferred financing fees andmortized bond discount associated with retirdat,d&l.3 million of redemption premium
associated with the redemption of all our 13% distaebentures in September 2005, $0.5 milliongyeent fees related to the prepayment
of all the outstanding balance under our secomdtéem loan in August 2005 and $0.4 million in net&t expense for the 30-day call period
related to the early extinguishment of our 13% déloes. For fiscal 2005, loss on early extinguishtrof debt of $7.0 million included $4.3
million for non-cash write-off of deferred finangriees associated with retired debt, $1.8 millibredemption premium and $0.9 million in
interest expense for the 30-day call period relatetie early extinguishment of our $110.0 millii® 5/ 5 % senior subordinated notes in J
2004.

Income Before Income Taxes. Income before taxes was $19.1 million in fisc@0@ compared to income before taxes of $5.9 million
in fiscal 2005.
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Income Taxes. Income tax expense in fiscal 2006 was $6.6 miliompared to a benefit of $1.4 million in fisc@l05. The
effective income tax rate in fiscal 2006 was 34 &¥npared to a benefit income tax rate of 23.6%sicaf 2005. The change in the effective
income tax rate from year to year is mostly duth&oapplication, in fiscal 2005, of the APB 23 extien for accounting for deferred taxes for
temporary differences related to undistributed iegs of foreign subsidiaries that are invested fimitely.

Net Income. Net income was $12.4 million in fiscal 2006 comgzhto net income of $7.3 million in fiscal 2005.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive. Our capital megpents include manufacturing equipment and melterin addition, we have
historically fueled our growth in part through agsitions. We have historically met our working dapi capital expenditure requirements and
acquisition funding needs through our net cashglpwovided by operations, various debt arrangensrdssale of equity to investors.

Liquidity

On April 18, 2006, pursuant to a purchase agreemihtMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, @éner & Smith Incorporated,
KeyBanc Capital Markets and Robert W. Baird & Que, along with certain of our stockholders, sol@8®,550 shares of our common stock
(5,995,529 sold by certain of our stockholders) offering yielded us aggregate net proceeds afoaqpately $57.0 million after payment
of the underwriting discount, commissions and affgexpenses. The full amount of the net proceesie used to prepay outstanding
balances under the Amended Term Loan.

On August 15, 2005, pursuant to a purchase agreemignMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Piercel-enner & Smith
Incorporated, KeyBanc Capital Markets and Jeffegigdompany, Inc., we, along with certain of ourdtbolders, sold 10,531,200 shares of
our common stock (3,496,684 sold by certain ofsiackholders). The offering yielded us aggregatgreceeds of $92.1 million after
payment of the underwriting discount and offeringenses. After redemption of our Class C and (apseferred stock for $34.6 million,
our net proceeds were $57.5 million. Immediatelpmio the consummation of the initial public offag, all outstanding shares of Class B
preferred stock were converted in accordance Wi terms into 1,846,396 shares of Class A comstock, 306,298 shares of Class C
preferred stock and 240,000 shares of Class D mpeefstock. All shares of Class C and Class D predestock were redeemed with cash or
common stock and all shares of Class A and ClassnBnon stock were reclassified as common stockameafor-one basis. In connection
with the initial public offering, we filed an Amerd and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (thsmendment”). The Amendment increased
our authorized capital stock to 70,000,000 shdie60,000,000 of which is common stock, $0.01 yelue per share, and (ii) 10,000,000 of
which is preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share

On August 15, 2005, we entered into a Fifth Amenaled Restated Credit Agreement (the “Amended Creglitement”), among
Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. (‘RBCA"he other Credit Parties signatory thereto; Gerlelesdtric Capital Corporation, a
Delaware corporation, for itself, as lender, andgesnt for the lenders, concurrently with the eigsaf our initial public offering. Pursuant to
the Amended Credit Agreement, we increased our keam borrowings by approximately $40.0 millionrirds110.0 million under the term
loan portion of the Amended Credit Agreement. Tieefdded Credit Agreement provided a $55.0 millioroh&ing credit agreement (the
“Amended Revolving Credit Facility”) and a $150.0lon term loan (the “Amended Term Loan”). Thenmipal amount of the Amended
Term Loan was to be repaid in twenty-five (25) @mngive quarterly installments commencing Decenie2005. Each loan was secured by
a lien against substantially all of our assetsangjected us to standard affirmative and negativerants, as well as financial leverage tests.

The Amended Revolving Credit Facility bore interaisa floating rate of either the higher of theebeste on corporate loans or the
federal funds rate plus 50 basis points, plus 1;25%IBOR plus 2.50%. We had the right to elea #pplicable interest rate on the Amen
Revolving Credit Facility. The Amended Term Loandaterest at a floating rate of either the higblfethe base rate on corporate loans o
federal rate plus 50 basis points, plus 1.50%;IBAR plus 2.75%. We had the right to elect the i&pple interest rate on the Amended Ti
Loan.

On June 26, 2006, RBCA terminated its August 1952@mended Credit Agreement, and the related ¢reedurity and ancillary
agreements, and entered into a credit agreementi#yBank Credit Agreement”) and related secuaityl guaranty agreements with certain
banks, KeyBank National Association, as AdministeAgent, and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as €adLArrangers and Joint Lead
Book Runners. The KeyBank Credit Agreement provRBEA, as borrower, with a $150.0 million five-yesamior secured revolving credit
facility which can be increased by up to $75.0iml] in increments of $25.0 million, under certaircumstances and subject to certain
conditions (including the receipt from one or mimeders of the additional commitment).
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Amounts outstanding under the KeyBank Credit Agreeingenerally bear interest at the prime rate,|BOR plus a specified
margin, depending on the type of borrowing beinglead@ he applicable margin is based on our condelitatio of net debt to adjusted
EBITDA from time to time. Currently, our margin@0% for prime rate loans and 0.75% for LIBOR fasns. Amounts outstanding under
the KeyBank Credit Agreement are due and payablb®expiration date of the credit agreement (Bhe011). We can elect to prepay
some or all of the outstanding balance from timén@ without penalty.

The KeyBank Credit Agreement requires us to comtia various covenants, including among other thjrfinancial covenants to
maintain a ratio of consolidated net debt to agjd€EBITDA not to exceed 3.5 to 1 (3.25 to 1 begigniune 30, 2007), and a consolidated
fixed charge coverage ratio not to exceed 1.5 #slof March 31, 2007, we were in compliance wittsach covenants.

The KeyBank Credit Agreement allows us to, amoigiothings, make distributions to shareholdersymepase its stock, incur oth
debt or liens, or acquire or dispose of assetsigeohthat we comply with certain requirements amdtations of the credit agreement. Our
obligations under the KeyBank Credit Agreementsaeured by a pledge of substantially all of our RBICA’s assets and a guaranty by u
RBCA's obligations.

On June 26, 2006, we borrowed approximately $79lomunder the KeyBank Credit Agreement and usech funds to (i) pay
fees and expenses associated with the KeyBanktQxgtiement and (ii) repay the approximately $7#8illion balance outstanding under-
Amended Credit Agreement. As of March 31, 2002.84million was outstanding under the KeyBank Crégjreement. We recorded a non-
cash pre-tax charge of approximately $3.6 milliofiscal 2007 to write off deferred debt issuanasts associated with the early termination
of the Amended Credit Agreement. Deferred finandees of $0.9 million associated with the KeyBantkdit Agreement were also recorded
in fiscal 2007.

Approximately $21.4 million of the KeyBank Credigfeement is being utilized to provide letters afdit to secure our obligations
relating to certain Industrial Development ReveBoads (the “IRB’s”) and insurance programs. As adrivh 31, 2007, we had the ability to
borrow up to an additional $86.6 million under KeyBank Credit Agreement.

On December 8, 2003, Schaublin entered into a beadit facility (the “Swiss Credit Facility”) witiCredit Suisse providing for 10.0
million Swiss francs, or approximately $8.2 milliaaf term loan (the “Swiss Term Loan”) and up t0 &illion Swiss francs, or
approximately $1.6 million, of revolving credit lastand letters of credit (the “Swiss Revolving Qrédcility”). We pledged 99.4% of the
present and future share capital of Schaublin @&/866 shares) against this facility. On Novemhe2@®4, Schaublin amended the Swiss
Credit Facility to increase the Swiss Revolvingdtr&acility to 4.0 million Swiss francs, or appimately $3.3 million. Borrowings under t
Swiss Revolving Credit Facility bear interest dlibating rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%. As of March 2007, the term loan was paid off in full
and there were no borrowings outstanding unde&thiss Credit Facility. The credit agreement for 8veiss Credit Facility contains
affirmative and negative covenants regarding tHea8blin financial position and results of operasi@md other terms customary to such
financings. As of March 31, 2007, we were in comptie with all such covenants.

Our ability to meet future working capital, capitadpenditures and debt service requirements wiedd on our future financial
performance, which will be affected by a rangeadr@mic, competitive and business factors, padityinterest rates, cyclical changes in
our end markets and prices for steel and our ghdipass through price increases on a timely bassy of which are outside of our control.
In addition, future acquisitions could have a digant impact on our liquidity position and our defer additional funds.

From time to time we evaluate our existing fa@btiand operations and their strategic importance ttf we determine that a given
facility or operation does not have future stratégiportance, we may sell, partially or completelpcate production lines, consolidate or
otherwise dispose of those operations. Althougtb@leve our operations would not be materially imghby such dispositions, relocations
or consolidations, we could incur significant casmon-cash charges in connection with them.

Cash Flows

Fiscal 2007 Compared to Fiscal 2006

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, we gerdraash of $55.7 million from operating activit@snpared to $24.6 million for
the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006. The increas#3d.1 million was mainly a result of an increa$&16.0 million in net income, a change

operating assets and liabilities of $5.8 milliomdhe net of non-cash charges of $9.3 million. Thange in working capital investment was
primarily attributable to a decrease in inventong do improved turns
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and a decrease in accounts payable offset by ageaise in accounts receivable related to increaased and an increase in non-current assets.

Cash used for investing activities for fiscal 2003luded $16.2 million relating to capital expemalés compared to $10.3 million for
fiscal 2006. Investing activities also included&8illion relating to the acquisition of the All Rer Manufacturing business offset by
proceeds of $3.6 million related primarily to tlaesof the RBC Nice Bearings facility.

In fiscal 2007, financing activities used $45.5lioil. We received net proceeds of $57.8 millionrirour secondary offering (see
Item 8, Note 1) which were used, in addition to $1illion in cash from operations, to pay down them loan under the Amended Credit
Agreement. The balance of approximately $78.0 amillivas refinanced and further reduced to $42.0anilby using approximately $36.0
million in cash from operations. In addition, weeesed $3.1 million from the exercise of stock op# and warrants, received an income tax
benefit of $3.4 million related to the exercisenoh-qualified stock options, repurchased 37,356eshaf stock for $1.1 million, used $0.3
million of funds for capital lease obligations gmaid $0.9 million of financing fees in connectioitiwour KeyBank Credit Agreement.

Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005

In the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006, we genetai@sh of $24.6 million from operating activitiesgpared to $9.9 million for the
fiscal year ended April 2, 2005. The increase @f.$Inillion was mainly a result of an increase 5fI$million in net income, a change in
operating assets and liabilities of $4.5 milliomdhe net of non-cash charges of $5.1 million. Thange in working capital investment was
primarily attributable to a decrease in accountgir@ble due to strong collection activity offsgtibcreased inventory to better service
customer demand and a decrease in accounts payable.

Cash used for investing activities for fiscal 2006uded $10.3 million relating to capital expemdéds compared to $9.5 million for
fiscal 2005. Investing activities also included®thillion relating to the acquisition of the RBCu#lbwest Products business.

In fiscal 2006, we decreased borrowings under thie#ded Revolving Credit Facility by $5.0 milliorceived proceeds from the
sale of stock of $92.1 million, used $30.6 millimredeem Class C redeemable preferred stock,d46dnillion to redeem Class D prefer:
stock, received $0.5 million from the exercisetoick options and warrants, retired term loans &.@4nillion, retired the 13% senior secured
discount debentures of $38.6 million, increasedbank term loan by $41.1 million, made paymentsesm loans of $7.1 million, used
$0.3 million of funds for capital lease obligaticensd paid $1.3 million of financing fees in connectwith our Amended Credit Agreement.

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures in fiscal 2007 were $16ilion. We expect to make capital expendituregpproximately $13.0 to $17.0
million during fiscal 2008 in connection with ouxisting business. We have funded our fiscal 20Qitabexpenditures, and expect to fund
fiscal 2008 capital expenditures, principally thghiexisting cash, internally generated funds arrdbimangs under our KeyBank Credit
Agreement. We may also make substantial additioagital expenditures in connection with acquisiion

Obligations and Commitments

The contractual obligations presented in the thblew represent our estimates of future paymendgiufixed contractual obligatio
and commitments. Changes in our business needsslion provisions and interest rates, as well@mons by third parties and other
factors, may cause these estimates to change. 8etlaese estimates are necessarily subjectiveyctuel payments in future periods are
likely to vary from those presented in the tablee Tollowing table summarizes certain of our coctiral obligations and principal and inter
payments under our debt instruments and leaselsharoh 31, 2007:

Payments Due By Perioc

Less than 1to 3to More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Total debt(1) $ 59,40t $ 750 $ 1,35C $ 43,32( $ 13,98t
Capital lease obligatior 625 169 326 130 —
Operating lease 20,142 4,44: 6,48C 3,938 5,28€
Interest payments(: 18,352 3,537 6,92C 4,61Z 3,282
Pension and postretirement bene 15,21¢ 1,187 2,612 2,90¢ 8,51C
Total contractual cash obligatio $113,74: $ 10,08 $ 17,68¢ $ 5490t $ 31,062

30




(1) Includes the $42.0 million five-year senior secureblving credit facility under our KeyBank Credigreement, a $0.7 million note
payable and other debt totaling $16.7 million.

(2) Interest payments are calculated based on begimfipgriod debt balances that reflect contractehit dmortization over the term of 1
instruments and assume a constant LIBOR rate @P6.3 0 the extent that actual rates change, oarast rate obligations will change
accordingly.

Quarterly Results of Operations

Quarter Ended

Mar. 31, Dec. 30, Sept. 30, Jul. 1, Apr. 1, Dec. 31, Oct. 1, Jul. 2,
2007 2006 2006 2006 2006 2005 2005 2005
(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)
Net sales $ 81,03¢ $ 76,544 $ 73,24¢ $ 75231 $ 75,751 $ 67,39C $ 65,367 $ 66,001
Gross margir 28,554 24,54% 23,50 23,50¢ 23,324 20,361 19,987 19,27¢
Operating incom: 11,47¢ 14,33¢ 12,61( 13,49¢ 12,30C 10,78¢ 5,092 10,39¢
Net income (loss $ 671 $ 935¢ $ 7,37¢ $ 5024 $ 5955 $ 509 $ (1,960) $ 3,34t
Net income (loss) per common she

Basic(1)(2) $ 032 $ 045 $ 036 $ 025 $ 035 $ 031 $ (018 $ 0.34
Diluted(1)(2) $ 031 $ 044 $ 035 $ 024 $ 033 $ 028 $ (018 $ 0.22

(1) See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfenesdiscussion of net income (loss) per comniares

(2) Netincome (loss) per common share is computedoridently for each of the quarters presented. Toverethe sum of the quarterly
earnings per share may not necessarily equal thkefto the year.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢‘FASB”) issued SFAS Interpretation No. 48 (\F48"), “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An InterpretatiorFé{SB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 clarifies the aguing for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial siatgs in accordance with FASB Statement No. 10@ctiinting for Income Taxes.” This
Interpretation prescribes a recognition thresholdl measurement attribute for the financial statémegognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmet This Interpretation also provides guidancalerecognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting for interim periods, disctesand transition. FIN 48 is effective for finsacstatements issued for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. We have notfpbeted our analysis of the potential impact of BiBlon our financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158players’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiordadther Postretirement
Plans.” SFAS 158 requires the employer to recogthieeoverfunded or underfunded status of a defiesfit postretirement plan (other than
a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liabilitytsxstatement of financial position and to recogrizanges in that funded status in the year in
which the changes occur through comprehensive ircofinis statement is effective for fiscal yeardezhafter December 15, 2006. We
adopted SFAS No. 158 effective March 31, 2007. Refétem 8, Notes 2, 13 and 14 for additional d&sion of the impact of adopting SFAS
No. 158.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caaditind results of operations are based upon msddiolated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with U.@rgdly accepted accounting principles. The prdjmraf these financial statements
requires us to make estimates and judgments tfeit difie reported amounts of assets, liabilitiegenues and expenses and related disclosur
of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-gdiasis, we evaluate our estimates, including thels¢ed to product returns, bad debts,
inventories, recoverability of intangible assetgome taxes, financing operations, pensions aret pitstretirement benefits and
contingencies and litigation. We base our estimaitekistorical experience and on various otherragsions that are believed to be reason
under the circumstances, the results of which fitrenbasis for making judgments about the carry@mges of assets and liabilities that are
readily apparent from other sources. Actual resubiy differ from these estimates under differesuagptions or conditions.
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We believe the following critical accounting poéisiaffect our more significant judgments and egeésased in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue in accordance with SEC 8afounting Bulletin 101 “Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements as amended by Staff Accoutirigtin 104.” The SEC requires that the follogyifour basic criteria must be met
before we recognize revenue:

e Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

»  Delivery has occurred or services have been reddere

e The seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or deteratile; and
»  Collectibility is reasonably assured.

We recognize revenue upon the passage of titthe@gdle of manufactured goods, which is at timeéhgément, and under the units-
of-delivery method in a limited number of aerospkrey-term projects.

Accounts Receivable. We are required to estimate the collectibilityoof accounts receivable, which requires a conalderamount
of judgment in assessing the ultimate realizatibthese receivables, including the current creditthiness of each customer. Changes in
required reserves may occur in the future as ciomditin the marketplace change.

Inventory. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orketavalue. Cost is principally determined by thstfin, first-out method.
We account for inventory under a full absorptiortime. We record adjustments to the value of inugnit@sed upon past sales history and
forecasted plans to sell our inventories. The glalsiondition, including age and quality, of theentories is also considered in establishing
its valuation. These adjustments are estimatesshwdould vary significantly, either favorably orfaxorably, from actual requirements if
future economic conditions, customer inventory Isw competitive conditions differ from our expatbns.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets.  Goodwill (representing the excess of the amoaid o acquire a company over the estimated fair
value of the net assets acquired) and intangildetasvith indefinite useful lives are not amortiked instead are tested for impairment
annually (performed by us during the fourth quadfeeach fiscal year), or when events or circuncstarindicate that its value may have
declined. This determination of any goodwill impaént is made at the reporting unit level and cassitwo steps. First, we determine the
fair value of a reporting unit and compare it to oarrying amount. Second, if the carrying amodurthe reporting unit exceeds its fair value,
an impairment loss is recognized for any excesbetarrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodiwiter the goodwill's implied fair value.
The fair value of our reporting units is calculat®dthe weighted average of two approaches; teedjpproach is the present value of future
cash flow technique. We projected the five yeae frash flow of each reporting unit and used an%.6@fcount rate. In addition, a terminal
value was applied using the same discount rate6®08. The discount rate of 8.69% is based on aimeigaverage cost of capital. The
discount rate was derived using an analysis ofisiilar companies which we believe have a comparksel of risk, plus RBC Bearings Inc.
The second approach is a multiple of EBITDA. Weduaenultiple of 9.72x based on the average of ithsimilar companies plus RBC
Bearings Inc. using EBITDA as of December 31, 200éiough no changes are expected as a resuleafdmparison, if the assumptions
management makes regarding estimated cash flowsssréavorable than expected, we may be requireeicord an impairment charge in the
future.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives,atthan Goodwill, were also reviewed for impairméfie reviewed the current fiscal
year, and determined there were no triggering evidait occurred during this fiscal year that wdekl to impairment of our existir
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. fidfere, no further actions were necessary.

Definite-lived intangible assets are being amodiager their useful lives of 5 to 17 years. Alsolided in intangible assets as of
April 1, 2006 is an asset relating to our minimuemgion liability.

Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing the const#difinancial statements, we are required to estirtiee income taxes
in each jurisdiction in which we operate. This @®s involves estimating the actual current taxlitas together with assessing temporary
differences resulting from the differing treatmehitems for tax and financial reporting purposBsese differences result in deferred tax
assets and liabilities, which are included in tlomsdlidated Balance Sheet. We must then asse8kdlif@ood that the deferred tax assets will
be recovered, and to the extent that we believerdtavery is not

32




more than likely, we are required to establishlaation allowance. If a valuation allowance is bfished or increased during any period, we
are required to include this amount as an expeiithénvthe tax provision in the Consolidated Statataef Operations. Significant judgment

is required in determining our provision for incotages, deferred tax assets and liabilities andvahyation allowance recognized against net
deferred tax assets.

Pension Plans and Postretirement Health Care.  We have noncontributory defined benefit pensilamg covering union employees
our Heim division plant in Fairfield, Connecticutdiin our Bremen subsidiary plant in Plymouth, &rdi.

Effective in fiscal 2007, the pension plans for Miee subsidiary in Kulpsville, Pennsylvania and #yson subsidiary plant in
Glasgow, Kentucky have been frozen in accordante tve respective Shutdown Agreements. No fultleeefits will accrue against these
two plans and no new employees will become eligiblparticipate in these plans. We will continaertaintain these plans. The impact of
curtailment for these plans was $299, which wakided in the net periodic benefit cost for fisc@0Z.

Our funding policy is to make the minimum annuattibution required by the Employee Retirement medSecurity Act of 1974.

Plan obligations and annual pension expense aeendieted by independent actuaries using a numbassafmptions provided by us including
assumptions about employee demographics, retireagentcompensation levels, pay rates, turnoveeaggd long-term rate of return on plan
assets, discount rate and the amount and timietaiphs. Each plan assumption reflects our beshesti of the plan’s future experience. The
most sensitive assumption in the determinationar pbligations for pensions is the discount réitee discount rate used in determining the
funded status as of March 31, 2007 and April 1,62@8s 6.00% and 5.75%, respectively. In develoffiegoverall expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets assumption, a building bémgkoach was used in which rates of return in exoémflation were considered separately
for equity securities and debt securities. The exceturns were weighted by the representativetaltpcation and added along with an
appropriate rate of inflation to develop the ovieeapected long-term rate of return on plan asasgsimption.

Our pension expense was $701,000 and $677,008dgrears ended March 31, 2007 and April 1, 20Gfeetively, and is
calculated based upon a number of actuarial assomspincluding an expected long-term rate of retm the assets of our pension plans of
9.0% each year.

The discount rate that we use for determining fuppgnsion obligations is based on a review of l@mgy bonds that receive one of
the two highest ratings given by a recognized gatigency. The discount rate determined on thislies decreased from 5.90% at April 2,
2005 to 5.75% at April 1, 2006, and increased @9% at March 31, 2007.

Lowering the expected long-term rate of returnlmmdssets of our pension plans by 1.00% (from 9.1a08600%) would have
increased our pension expense for fiscal 2007 pycaqmately $141,000. Increasing the expected I@mg rate of return on the assets of our
pension plans by 1.00% (from 9.00% to 10.00%) wdnalde reduced our pension expense for fiscal 29@pproximately $141,000.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deter net periodic pension cost by 1.00% (from 5.%6%.75%) would have
increased our pension expense for fiscal 2007 pyoagmately $185,000. Increasing the discount esumption used to determine net
periodic pension cost by 1.00% (from 5.75% to 6.Y®#%buld have reduced our pension expense for fa@ar by approximately $142,000.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deter the funded status as of March 31, 2007 by%.(fom 6.00% to 5.00%)
would have increased the projected benefit obligatif our pension plans by approximately $2.2 wnilliincreasing the discount rate
assumption used to determine the funded statuEMarch 31, 2007 by 1.00% (from 6.00% to 7.00%) dduave reduced the projected
benefit obligation of our pension plans by appraadiety $1.8 million.

Our investment program objective is to achieveta ofreturn on plan assets which will fund thengiabilities and provide for
required benefits while avoiding undue exposungsioto the plan and increases in funding requingieOur target allocation of plan assets
was 100 percent equity investments as of Marct28Q7 and April 1, 2006.

Our foreign operation, Schaublin, sponsors a penglian for its approximately 150 employees, in comfance with Swiss pension
law. The plan is funded with a reputable (S&PmathA-) Swiss insurer. Through the insurance atirthe Company has effectively
transferred all investment and mortality risk te thsurance company, which guarantees the federalhdated annual rate of return and the
conversion rate at retirement. As a result, tla@ plas no unfunded liability; the interest cosiactly offset by actual return. Thus, the net
periodic cost is equal to the amount of annual jwenpaid by the Company. For fiscal years 200D628nd 2005, the Company reported
premium payments equal to $475,546, $445,195, &t8,884, respectively.
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For the benefit of employees at our Heim, West imemnd Bremen facilities, we sponsor contribuidefined benefit health care
plans that provide postretirement medical andififeirance benefits to union employees who havéettaertain age and/or service
requirements while employed by us.

Effective in fiscal 2007, the postretirement medarad life insurance benefits for the Nice subsidia Kulpsville, Pennsylvania and
the Tyson subsidiary in Glasgow, Kentucky have baetailed in accordance with the respective Shutddgreements. The impact of
curtailment for these plans was $(568), which watuided in the net periodic benefit cost (inconue)fiscal 2007.

The plans are unfunded and costs are paid as @cuUPostretirement benefit obligations as of M&th2007 and April 1, 2006
were, respectively, $2.7 million ($2.5 million i@ther non-current liabilities” and $0.2 million i€urrent liabilities”) and $2.6 million in
“Other non-current liabilities” in our consolidatédlance sheet.

Our income for the Postretirement Plans was $290s0@ $30,000 for the years ended March 31, 2067Aanil 1, 2006,
respectively, and was calculated based upon a nuailaetuarial assumptions. The income for the yeamled March 31, 2007 was primarily
the result of a gain on the curtailment of twotaf plans.

We use a March 31 measurement date for our plarsvect to contribute approximately $0.2 milliorour postretirement benefit
plans in fiscal year 2008.

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Dmgrovement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the tAevas signed into law.
Our prescription drug benefit for all postretirerplans is capped at a set amount each month, vidjghid to the retirees so they can obtain
prescription drug coverage. As such, we are nétisslired for prescription drugs, and the Act hasmpact on the recorded obligation.

During fiscal 2004, the plans were amended to eatally limit the benefit to be provided for céntgroups of current and future
retirees. As a result, there is no health careltemsociated with these groups. The discount s#d in determining the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation was 6.00% as afd¥l 31, 2007 and 6.25% as of April 1, 2006. Tlsealint rate used in determining the
periodic benefit cost was 6.25% for fiscal 20080846 for fiscal 2006, and 6.25% for fiscal 2005. T®83 Group Annuity Mortality table w
used to determine the postretirement net periogiefit costs in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2005.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deter net periodic benefit cost by 1.00% (from 6.2&6.25%) would have
decreased our postretirement expense for fiscal B§@Gpproximately $24,000. Increasing the discoatg assumption used to determine net
periodic benefit cost by 1.00% (from 6.25% to 7.25%6uld have increased our postretirement expemsiistal 2007 by approximately
$23,000. A decrease in the discount rate wouldaedxpense, while an increase in the discounwatgd increase expense due to the im
of the Tyson Bearings Inc. curtailment and the ltegureduction of an accrued pension benefit adlian.

Lowering the discount rate assumption used to deter the accumulated postretirement benefit obbgaas of March 31, 2007
by 1.00% (from 6.00% to 5.00%) would have increabedaccumulated postretirement benefit obligatibaur postretirement plans by
approximately $262,000. Increasing the discourd assumption used to determine the accumulateceiostnent benefit obligation, as of
March 31, 2007 by 1.00% (from 6.00% to 7.00%) wchade reduced the accumulated postretirement bermijation of our postretirement
plans by approximately $223,000.

Sock-Based Compensation. Effective April 2, 2006, the first day of the Cpany'’s fiscal year, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R),
“Share-Based Payment”. SFAS No. 123(R) requiresttieacompensation cost relating to all share-basgdent transactions be recognized
in the financial statements. That cost is meashasgd upon the grant-date fair value of the instnisiissued recognized over the requisite
service period. We have elected to use the “matijfimspective” method in adopting SFAS No. 123@&cordingly, after the effective date,
compensation cost is recognized based on the mmairts of SFAS No. 123(R) (all awards granted tpleyees prior to the effective date of
SFAS No. 123(R) were accelerated in fiscal 2006k@n no compensation cost impact after the effectate). Results for periods prior to
fiscal 2007 have not been restated.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) in fisc@02, our net income for fiscal 2007 reflected arghdor stock option grants of
$321 (net of income taxes of $167). This represai®8.02 impact on basic and diluted earnings Iparesfor the year ended March 31, 2007.
In addition, prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 1RB(we presented the tax benefit of stock opticgreises as operating cash flows in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Upon thptamoof SFAS No. 123(R),
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tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in exocafsthe compensation cost recognized for thosempare classified as financing cash
inflows. Stock compensation costs for option agetricted stock awards are being amortized undesttiaight-line method over the requisite
service period.

The fair value of each option grant was estimatethe date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricmglel. We used an outside
valuation firm to assist in estimating the fairwalof stock option grants made during fiscal 2007.

Prior to fiscal 2007, we accounted for options aadrants granted to employees using the intringlueszmethod pursuant to APB
No. 25,“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employeesyider which compensation cost is recognized ortlydfexercise price of grants issue
below the fair market value of our common stocthatdate of grant. Had compensation cost for thjesets been determined based on the
value at the grant dates consistent with SFAS 198, 1Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” net income would have been reduced
to the following pro forma amounts:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 1, April 2,

2006 2005
(in thousands)

Net income, as reporte $12,43¢ $ 7,26C
Plus: stoc-based compensation expense included in reportddaahe, net of the ta 230 264
Less: stoc-based compensation expense determined under faé weethod, net of ta (1,842) (540)
Pro forma net incom $10,827 $ 6,984
Net income per common share, as repol

Basic $ 084 $ 062

Diluted $ 076 $ 0.35
Net income per common share, pro fori

Basic $ 072 $ 057

Diluted $ 064 $ 0.33

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures, thenaséid fair value of the options and warrants isriiged to expense over the sen
period that generally is the option or warrant wesperiod. The weighted average fair value peresbfoptions and warrants granted was
$8.70 in fiscal 2007, $6.00 in fiscal 2006 and $drifiscal 2005.

The fair value for our options and warrants wagresed at the date of grant using the Black-Schofg®n pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected weighte-average life 4.9 7.0 3.0
Risk-free interest rat 5.0% 3.5% 3.5%
Expected volatility 34.4% 32.0% 0.4%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was devetbjoe use in estimating the fair value of tradetiaps and warrants which have
no vesting restrictions and are fully transferableaddition, option and warrant valuation modeiguire the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the expected stock pricatility. Because our options and warrants haveattaristics significantly different from
those of traded options and warrants, and becda®es in the subjective input assumptions canrratiyeaffect the fair value estimate, the
existing models do not necessarily provide a rédiaingle measure of the fair value of our optiand warrants.

On April 1, 2006, we accelerated the vesting of,583 stock options whose exercise prices were belovelosing stock price on t
date the vesting of the options was accelerate@ esult, a charge of approximately $73,000, h&q was recorded in fiscal 2006. The
accelerated vesting of these stock options wasdiete to eliminate compensation expense associatedhgse options in future periods due
to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Basegiigat.” The impact of the acceleration of vestis@lso included in the pro forma table
above.
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Impact of Inflation and Changes in Prices of Raw Mégerials and Supplies

To date, inflation in the economy as a whole hassigmificantly affected our operations. Howeveg purchase steel at market
prices, which during the past three years haveeasad to historical highs as a result of a reltivsv level of supply and a relatively high
level of demand. To date, we have generally beéntalpass through these price increases throtgl picreases on our products, the
assessment of steel surcharges on our customenrgrgrinto long-term agreements with our customérih often contain escalator
provisions tied to our invoiced price of steel. Hower, even if we are able to pass these steelauged or price increases to our customers,
there may be a time lag of up to 3 months or meteséen the time a price increase goes into effetioar ability to implement surcharges or
price increases, particularly for orders alreadgun backlog. As a result, our gross margin peagainay decline, and we may not be able to
implement other price increases for our products.

Competitive pressures and the terms of certairuofang-term contracts may require us to absotbagt part of these cost increases,
particularly during periods of high inflation. Oprincipal raw material is 440c and 52100 wire aod steel (types of stainless and chrome
steel), which has historically been readily avddalRecently, because of extraordinarily high dediiam certain grades of steel, suppliers t
in some instances allocated certain types of gtdehited quantities to customers. However, toedate have never experienced a work
stoppage due to a supply shortage. We maintainpteutources for raw materials including steel hade various supplier agreements.
Through sole-source arrangements, supplier agrésraad pricing, we have been able to minimize aposure to fluctuations in raw
material prices.

Our suppliers and sources of raw materials arechiastne U.S., Europe and Asia. We believe thatsmurces are adequate for our
needs in the foreseeable future, that there elte&shative suppliers for our raw materials and thanost cases readily available alternative
materials can be used for most of our raw materials

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks, which arise dutieghnormal course of business from changes indateates and foreign currency
exchange rates.

Interest Rates. We are exposed to market risk from changes imntieeest rates on a significant portion of ourstanding
indebtedness. Outstanding balances under our KéyBeedit Agreement bear interest at a variable lvaed on prime (for any day, a
floating rate equal to the higher of (1) the ratdlgcly posted as the base rate posted by at T&dstof the nation’s 30 largest banks or (2) the
Federal Funds Rate plus 50 basis points per yeddBOR (the London inter-bank offered rate for dejis in U.S. dollars for the applicable
LIBOR Period) ranging from 30 to 120 days as adidstach interest period. As of March 31, 2007, dhasethe aggregate amount of
$42.0 million outstanding under our KeyBank Crelireement, a 100 basis point change in interessnabuld have changed our interest
expense by approximately $0.4 million per year.

Interest rate fluctuations affect the fair markeltue of our fixed rate debt, but with respect tohsfixed rate instruments, do not
impact our earnings or cash flow.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates. As a result of increased sales in Europe, ouosux to risk associated with fluctuating curre
exchange rates between the U.S. dollar, the EuddrenSwiss Franc has increased. Our Swiss opesatiidlize the Swiss franc as the
functional currency and our French operationsagtithe Euro as the functional currency. Foreigmenay transaction gains and losses are
included in earnings. Approximately 14% of our sales were denominated in foreign currencies gwafi2007 compared to 12% in fiscal
2006. We expect that this proportion is likely mariease as we seek to increase our penetratiames§ii markets, particularly within the
aerospace and defense markets. Foreign curremsatrion exposure arises primarily from the trangfdéoreign currency from one
subsidiary to another within the group, and to iffmecurrency denominated trade receivables. Urmedlcurrency translation gains and losses
are recognized upon translation of the foreign islidnses’ balance sheets to U.S. dollars. Becausdioancial statements are denominated in
U.S. dollars, changes in currency exchange rategclea the U.S. dollar and other currencies have doad will continue to have, an impact
our earnings. We currently do not have exchangelratiges in place to reduce the risk of an adwensency exchange movement. Although
currency fluctuations have not had a material impacour financial performance in the past, suabtfiations may materially affect our
financial performance in the future. The impacfutfire exchange rate fluctuations on our resultspefrations cannot be accurately predicted.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
RBC Bearings Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of RBC Bearings Incorporated as of Mat¢i2007 and April 1,
2006, and the related consolidated statementsesiitipns, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and conffaesive income (loss), and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Mat¢c@07. Our audits also included the financialesteent schedule listed in the Index at Item
15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedaltha responsibility of the Company’s managem@ant. responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and schdzhged on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf8iqUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
RBC Bearings Incorporated at March 31, 2007 andIAp2006, and the consolidated results of itsrafiens and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended March 31, 2@03gnformity with U.S. generally accepted accaumprinciples. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when conaitlier relation to the basic financial statemerksiaas a whole, presents fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Notes 2 and 13 to the consolidatadcial statements, effective April 2, 2006, empany adopted the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Mt3(R), “Share-Based Payment,” using the modifiedsjpective transition method and,
effective March 31, 2007, adopted the provisionStaftement of Financial Accounting Standards N@&, IBmployers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremesm$?t

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
effectiveness of RBC Bearings Incorporated’s irdéaontrol over financial reporting as of March 2007, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued byGlmenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TnesdCommission, and our report
dated June 8, 2007 expressed an unqualified optheneon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Hartford, Connecticu
June 8, 200

37




RBC Bearings Incorporated
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

ASSETS
Current asset:

Cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $867 in 2007 and $838 in 2!

Inventory

Deferred income taxe

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse

Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaif@®2,329 in 2007 and $1,616 in 2C
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amation of $409 in 2007 and $1,269 in 2(
Deferred income taxe
Other asset

Total asset

See accompanying notes.
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March 31, April 1,
2007 2006
$ 5184 $ 16,12¢
54,63¢ 50,93t
103,022 103,14¢
7,115 5,412
2,914 2,45%
172,87! 178,07
61,20¢ 58,02¢
29,631 25,15(
5,79¢ 3,981
1,207 4,235
— 4,61€
3,00z 1,841
$273,71: $ 275,92:




March 31, April 1,

2007 2006
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 21,29¢ $ 19,43¢
Accrued expenses and other current liabili 11,68: 8,572
Current portion of lon-term debt 750 3,217
Capital lease obligatior 169 237

Total current liabilities 33,901 31,462
Long-term debt, less current porti 58,65¢ 162,53(
Capital lease obligations, less current por 456 170
Deferred income taxe 6,47¢ —
Other nol-current liabilities 6,051 8,421

Total liabilities 105,54 202,58:

Commitments and contingencies (Note

Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized sha®&800,000 in 2007 and 2006; none issued andamalisty — —
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized share®060000 in 2007 and 2006; issued and outstandiages:

21,408,994 in 2007 and 16,976,381 in 2 214 170
Additional paic-in capital 169,48¢ 103,317
Accumulated other comprehensive |i (2,20€) (3,392)
Retained earnings (accumulated defi 1,724 (26,755
Treasury stock, at cost, 37,356 shares in : (1,050) —

Total stockholder equity 168,17 73,34(

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $273,71:  $275,92:

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Net sales $ 306,060 $ 27450¢ $ 243,01¢
Cost of sale: 205,95:¢ 191,561 174,60:
Gross margir 100,10¢ 82,94¢ 68,41
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 42,25¢€ 41,94% 32,74¢
Other, ne 5,934 2,424 3,52€
Total operating expens: 48,19( 44,36¢ 36,27¢
Operating incom: 51,91¢ 38,57¢ 32,13¢
Interest expense, n 5,50% 15,73¢ 19,66¢
Loss on early extinguishment of d¢ 3,57€ 3,771 6,95C
Other nol-operating expense (incorr (1,229 — (355)
Income before income tax 44,067 19,07: 5,87&
Provision for (benefit from) income tax 15,58¢ 6,634 (1,38E)
Net income 28,47¢ 12,43¢ 7,26C
Preferred stock dividenc — (893) (2,280
Participation rights of preferred stock in undistried earning — (630) (1,142)
Net income available to common stockholc $ 2847¢ $ 10,91¢ $ 3,83¢
Net income per common sha
Basic $ 1.38 $ 084 $ 0.62
Diluted $ 133 $ 0.76 $ 0.35
Weighted average common shal
Basic 20,579,49¢ 12,931,18! 6,202,61!
Diluted 21,335,300 14,452,26:  10,854,58:

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Cfcit) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(dollars in thousands)

Balance at April 3, 2004

Net income

Grants of options to purchast
Class A common stock at
below fair market valu

Amortization of deferred stock
compensatiol

Exercise of stock optior

Currency translation
adjustment:

Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of taxes
of $338

Comprehensive income

Balance at April 2, 200

Net income

Stock compensation charge 1
options granted at below
market value

Amortization of deferred stock
compensatiol

Conversion of Class B
preferred stocl

Redemption of Class C
preferred stocl

Redemption of Class D
preferred stocl

Net proceeds from issuance of
common stocl

Exercise of common stock
options and warran

Income tax benefit on IRS
settlemen

Cashless exercise of commo
stock options and warrar

Income tax benefit on exercise
of non-qualified common
stock options and warrar

Currency translation
adjustment:

Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of taxes
of $223

Comprehensive income

Balance at April 1, 200

Net income

Net proceeds from issuance of
common stocl

Repurchase of common sto

Stock-based compensatic

Exercise of common stock
options and warran’

Issuance of restricted sto

Income tax benefit on IRS
settlemen

Income tax benefit realized on
exercise of non-qualified
common stock options and
warrants

Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of taxes of
$549

Currency translation
adjustment:

Adoption of SFAS No. 158,
net of taxes of $37

Comprehensive income

Balance at March 31, 2007

Accum-
ulated Retained Total
Class B Class C Class D Addit - Other Earnings Stock- Compre-
Preferred Preferred Preferred Common ional Deferred Compre- (Accum- holders’ hensive
Stock Stock Stock Stock Paid-in Comper- hensive ulated Treasury Stock Equity Income/
Amount Amount Amount Shares Amount Capital sation Loss Deficit) Shares Amount (Deficit) (Loss)
$ S — s = 6,188,90: $ 6. $ 3344 $ —  $ 3343 $ (4645) — 3 — ~ $ (16,289
— — — — — — — — 7,260 — — 7,260 $  7,26(
— — — — — 769 (769) — — — — —
— — — — — — 420 — — — — 420
— — — 13,86€ — 25 — — — — — 25
— — — — — — — 488 — — — 488 488
— — — — — — — 323 — — — 323 323
$ 8,07
2 — — 6,202,76¢ 62 34,252 (349) (2,532) (39,1949 — — (7,759)
— — — — — — — — 12,43¢ — — 12,43¢ $ 12,43¢
— — — — — 16 (16) — — — — —
— — — — — — 365 — — — — 365
() 3 2 1,846,39¢ 19 (22) — — — — — —
— @3) — — — (30,627 — — — — — (30,630)
— — 2) 275,862 3 (4,001) — — — — — (4,000)
— — — 7,034,51¢ 70 92,05¢ — — — — 92,12¢
— — — 139,284 1 497 — — — — — 498
— — — — — 2,478 — — — — — 2,478
— = — 1,477,55¢ 15 (15) — — — — — _
— — — — — 8,681 — — — — — 8,681
— — — — — — — (569) — — — (569) (569
— — — — — — — (291 — — — (291) (291
$  11,57¢
— — —  16,976,38: 170 103,317 — (3,392 (26,755) — — 73,34 —
— — — — — — — — 28,47¢ — — 28,47¢ $ 28,47¢
— — — 2,994,02: 30 57,794 — — — — 57,824
_ — = — — — — — — (37,35€) (1,050 (1,050)
— — — — — 767 — — — — — 767
— — — 1,362,91° 13 3,077 — — — — — 3,090
— — — 75,67¢ 1 — — — — — — 1
— — — — — 1,122 — — — — — 1,122
— — — — — 3,412 — — — — — 3,412
— — — — — — — 887 — — — 887 887
— — — — — — — 908 — — — 908 908
_ — — — = — — (609) — (609)
$ 30,27:
$ — $ — $ — 21,408,99: $ 21 $ 169,48¢ $ = $ 12,206 $ 172 (37,356 $ (1,050 $ 168,17:

See accompanying notes.
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RBC Bearings Incorporated
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciatior
Deferred income taxes (bene
Amortization of intangible asse
Amortization of deferred financing costs and debtdunt
Stocl-based compensatic
Loss on disposition of asse
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (-cash portion
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqtiisitions
Accounts receivabl
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other nor-current assel
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Other non-current liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipr
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Proceeds from sale of assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in revolving credit fac
Net proceeds from sale of stock in initial publftecing
Net proceeds from issuance of common s
Repurchase of common sta
Redemption of Class C redeemable preferred ¢
Redemption of Class D preferred st
Exercise of stock options and warra
Retirement of senior subordinated nc
Income tax benefit realized on exercise of-qualified common stock options and warre
Proceeds from term loau
Retirement of senior subordinated discount deben
Retirement of term loar
Payments on term loal
Principal payments on capital lease obligati
Financing fees paid in connection with senior dréatiility
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Cash and cash equivalents:
Increase (decrease) during the y
Cash, at beginning of year
Cash, at end of year
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year fc
Interest
Income taxe:

See accompanying notes.
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Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,

2007 2006 2005
$ 2847¢ $ 12,43¢ $ 7,26C
8,93¢ 8,664 8,28E
9,282 3,95€ (3,119
713 667 500
353 829 1,113
767 365 420
1,917 24 1,77€
3,57¢ 1,53¢€ 4,303
(169) 20 21
(1,215) 2,71¢ (9,251)
2,48¢ (8,025) (4,725)
(401) 246 232
37 298 (377)
917 470 5,451
1,32€ (224) (1,879
(1,269) 664 (150)
55,73¢ 24,642 9,86¢
(16,179  (10,34]) (9,526)
(8,759 (2,682 (755)
3,574 44 274
(21,359 (12,979 (10,007
42,00( (5,000 2,50C
— 92,12¢ —
57,82¢ — —
(1,050) — —
— (30,630 —
— (4,000) —
3,09C 498 35
— — (110,000
3,412 — —
— 41,10C 155,00(
—  (38,562) —
(144,875 (45,000 (40,000
(4,654) (7,054) (3,190
(317) (257) (282)
(903) (1,312) (4,400)
(45,477 1,911 (337)
149 (83) (139)
(10,942) 13,491 (615)
16,12¢ 2,63E 3,25C
$ 5184 $ 16,12¢ $ 2,63E
$ 592¢ $ 17,13t $ 20,301
$ 780 $ 892 $ 207







RBC Bearings Incorporated
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(dollars in thousands, except share and per shareath)

1. Organization and Business

RBC Bearings Incorporated (the “Company”, colleetyvwith its subsidiaries), is a Delaware corpanatiThe Company operates in
four reportable business segments—roller beariplg®) bearings, ball bearings, other and corporaterhich it manufactures roller bearing
components and assembled parts and designs andactames high-precision roller and ball bearingse Tompany sells to a wide variety of
original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”) and disitors who are widely dispersed geographicallyfidoal 2007, 2006 and 2005, no one
customer accounted for more than 8% of the Comgasgles. The Company’s segments are further disduissNote 21.

On August 15, 2005, pursuant to a purchase agraemignMerrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Piercel-enner & Smith
Incorporated, KeyBanc Capital Markets and Jeffetigsompany, Inc., the Company and the selling stodders sold 10,531,200 shares of
the Company’s common stock (3,496,684 sold by #fieng stockholders). The offering yielded aggregaét proceeds to the Company of
$92,128 after payment of the underwriting disccaamd offering expenses. After redemption of the Canyfs Class C and Class D preferred
stock for $34,630, the net proceeds to the Compaarg $57,498. Immediately prior to the consummatibtine initial public offering, all
outstanding shares of Class B preferred stock e@ngerted in accordance with their terms into 1,886 shares of Class A common stock,
306,298 shares of Class C preferred stock and @a®0ares of Class D preferred stock. All shareSlass C and Class D preferred stock
were redeemed with cash or common stock and aleshad Class A and Class B common stock were rgified as common stock on a one-
for-one basis. In connection with the initial patdiffering, the Company filed an Amended and Rest&ertificate of Incorporation (the
“Amendment”). The Amendment increased the Compaaythorized capital stock to 70,000,000 share§Q(p00,000 of which is common
stock, $0.01 par value per share, and (i) 10,@md¥ which is preferred stock, $0.01 par valueghare.

The proceeds of the offering and additional teremlborrowings under the Amended Credit Agreementliscussed in Note 10)
were used as follows: (1) to redeem all of the Canys outstanding 13% senior subordinated discdabentures by payment to the Bank of
New York, as trustee for the holders of debenturg,total payoff amount of approximately $40,0(®);to redeem 293,536 shares of Cla
Preferred Stock held by Whitney RBHC Investor, L{E@/hitney”) for an aggregate redemption price 0B$54; (3) to redeem 12,762 shares
of Class C Preferred Stock held by Dr. Michael Hetttfor an aggregate redemption price of $1,2Zptq repurchase 230,000 shares of
Class D Preferred Stock held by Whitney for an eggte repurchase price of $7,667, of which $3,888 paid in cash out of the proceeds of
the offering and term loan borrowings and the badaof which was paid by issuance of 264,368 shafr€ommon Stock; (5) to repurchase
10,000 shares of Class D Preferred Stock held ynkté for an aggregate repurchase price of $38&hach $167 was paid in cash out of the
proceeds of the offering and term loan borrowirggl the balance of which was paid by issuance @@Blshares of Common Stock; (6) to
repay approximately $45,000 of indebtedness udteCompanys second lien term loan credit facility, which regented repayment in full
all amounts owing under such facility, plus appnoaiely $1,400 in fees and expenses in connectitinssich repayment and amendment;
(7) to pay approximately $5,000 in mandatory prepamts under the Company'’s credit facility in cortietwith the initial public offering;
and (8) to pay $2,732 in legal, printing, accoummd other miscellaneous expenses payable in cbonevith the initial public offering.

On February 15, 2006, the Company’s RBC Nice Begatiinc. subsidiary and the United Steelworker8rogrica (AFL-CIO) Local
6816-12 entered into a shutdown agreement in caoiomewith its decision to close operations at itdsville, Pennsylvania facility. In
connection with the shutdown agreement, the unamdgreed to take no action against the Compaggrinection with such shutdown. The
agreement also addresses closure and other teemisisues related to pensions, workers compensaiitstment assistance and other
matters. The production that was conducted at fbe facility, part of the Ball Bearings segments lien moved to other RBC locations,
the Company anticipates no material impact on petidi or its ability to service its customers. Stawwn costs included $624 of severance
and a loss of $400 for fixed asset disposals whiete recorded in operating expenses (Other, néigdal 2006.

On February 6, 2007, the Company’s Tyson Bearingn@my, Inc. subsidiary and the United Steelworkésmerica (AFL-CIO)
Local 7461-01 entered into a shutdown agreemecommection with its decision to close operationgsaGlasgow, Kentucky facility. In
connection with the shutdown agreement, the unamdgreed to take no action against the Compaggrinection with such shutdown. The
agreement also addresses closure and other teemisisues related to pensions, workers compensaiitstment assistance and other
matters. The production that was conducted at stsoi facility, part of the Roller Bearings segmérats been moved to other RBC locations,
and the Company anticipates no material impactrodyztion or its ability to service its customerhe consolidation is anticipated to result
in improved gross margin
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for this product line, from a negative to a postiesult over the next twelve months. This consdiioh resulted in a charge of approximately
$5,088 which was recorded in operating expensdsefOnet) in fiscal 2007. Approximately $2,211 listcharge related to the non-cash
disposal of fixed assets.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General

The consolidated financial statements include to®@ants of RBC Bearings Incorporated, Roller Beaf@ompany of America, Inc.
(“RBCA") and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, InduatrTectonics Bearings Corporation (“ITB”), RBC lgar Precision Products, Inc.
(“LPP™), RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. (“Nice”), RBC Piison Products — Bremen, Inc. (“Miller”), RBC Prsmn Products — Plymouth, Inc.
(“Bremen”), Tyson Bearings., Inc. (“Tyson”), SchédintHoldings S.A. and its wholly-owned subsidiar{¢Schaublin”), RBC de Mexico S
DE RL DE CV (“Mexico”), RBC Oklahoma, Inc. (“‘RBC @&homa”), RBC Aircraft Products, Inc. (“API”), Shgimai Representative office of
Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. (“RBC Shhatij), RBC Southwest Products, Inc. (“SWP”) and Rwer Manufacturing Co. &ll
Power”), as well as its Transport Dynamics (“TD@gim (“Heim”) and Engineered Components (“ECD'Yidions. U.S. Bearings (“USB”)
is a division of SWP and Schaublin USA is a divisad Nice. All material intercompany balances arahsactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

The Company has a fiscal year consisting of 523awéeks, ending on the Saturday closest to MarciB&4ed on this policy, fiscal
years 2007, 2006 and 2005 contained 52 we

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investmegmnischased with an original maturity of three maendh less to be cash
equivalents.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtanksing the first-in, first-out method. A reseagainst inventory is recorded for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory within each glasinventory. Effective April 2, 2006, the Compamas adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 151, “Inventorgsts, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,” wiichnot have a material impact
on the consolidated financial position, result®pérations or cash flows of the Company (see Npte 5

Shipping and Handling

The sales price billed to customers includes tlsscassociated with shipping and handling, whidhdkided in net sales. The costs
to the Company for shipping and handling are inetuth cost of sales.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at Bagireciation and amortization of property, plami @quipment, including
equipment under capital leases, is provided fahkystraight-line method over the estimated udafes of the respective assets or the lease
term, if shorter. Amortization of assets under tapéases is reported within depreciation and émaiion. The cost of equipment under
capital leases is equal to the lower of the nesgmevalue of the minimum lease payments or thierfarket value of the leased equipment at
the inception of the lease. Expenditures for nontmaintenance and repairs are charged to expenseuased.

The estimated useful lives of the Company’s propgtant and equipment follows:

Buildings 20-30 years
Machinery and equipme! 3-10 years
Leasehold improvemen Shorter of the term of lease or estimated usef
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Recognition of Revenue and Accounts Receivable a@bncentration of Credit Risk
The Company recognizes revenue only after theviatig four basic criteria are met:
e Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

»  Delivery has occurred or services have been reddere

The seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or deteratile; and

Collectibility is reasonably assured.

Revenue is recognized upon the passage of titlehvit at the time of shipment. Accounts receivablt of applicable allowances,
is recorded when goods are shipped.

The Company sells to a large number of OEMs arriloligors who service the aftermarket. The Compsueyédit risk associated
with accounts receivable is minimized due to itstomer base and wide geographic dispersion. Thep@oynperforms ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial conditiardayenerally does not require collateral or chamggrest on outstanding amounts. At March
31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, the Company had no eotrations of credit risk greater than 10% of actsueceivables.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaats for estimated losses resulting from the iitglmf its customers to make
required payments. The Company reviews the callityi of its receivables on an ongoing basis takiinto account a combination of factors.
The Company reviews potential problems, such assduesaccounts, a bankruptcy filing or deteriomaiio the customer’s financial condition,
to ensure the Company is adequately accrued fengiat loss. Accounts are considered past due bas@hen payment was originally due.
If a customer’s situation changes, such as a batdywor creditworthiness, or there is a chang&édurrent economic climate, the Company
may modify its estimate of the allowance for doubtfccounts. The Company will write-off accountsai@able after reasonable collection
efforts have been made and the accounts are dagmetiectible.

Goodwill and Amortizable Intangible Assets

Gooduwill (representing the excess of the amourd pmacquire a company over the estimated fairevafithe net assets acquired)
and intangible assets with indefinite useful liges not amortized but instead are tested for impait annually, or when events or
circumstances indicate that its value may haveimeat! This determination of any goodwill impairméntnade at the reporting unit level and
consists of two steps. First, the Company detersiine fair value of a reporting unit and compatés its carrying amount. Second, if the
carrying amount of the reporting unit exceedsats¥alue, an impairment loss is recognized for exgess of the carrying amount of the
reporting unit’s goodwill over the goodwill's imgld fair value. The fair value of the Compasyeporting units is calculated by comparing
weighted average of the net present value of futash flows and a market approach based on thetirggpanits’ carrying value. The
Company utilizes discount rates determined by mamagt to be similar with the level of risk in itsreent business model. The Company
performs the annual impairment testing during theth quarter of each fiscal year and has detemirinat, to date, no impairment of
goodwill exists. Although no changes are expedfdtie actual results of the Company are less favierthan the assumptions the Company
makes regarding estimated cash flows, the Compayyba required to record an impairment chargeérfukure.

The Company’s definite-lived intangible asset catags, which are described in Note 8, are amortaexd their estimated useful
lives of 5 to 17 years. Also included in intangibksets, as of April 1, 2006, is an asset reldtitge Company’s minimum pension liability,
as further described in Note 13.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are amortized by the &ffednterest method over the lives of the relateetlit agreements (5 to 25 years).
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using thditiamethod, which requires it to recognize aremt tax liability or asset for
current taxes payable or refundable and a deféasetiability or asset for the estimated future &dfects of temporary differences between

financial statement and tax reporting bases oftassal liabilities to the extent that they areimdile. Deferred tax expense (benefit) results
from the net change in deferred tax assets antlitiied during the year.
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Temporary differences relate primarily to the tignof deductions for depreciation, goodwill amortiaa relating to the acquisition
of operating divisions, basis differences arisiranf acquisition accounting, pension and retirenbemtefits, and various accrued and prepaid
expenses. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesem@rded at the rates expected to be in effect whetemporary differences are expected to
reverse.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share is cordpagadividing net income (loss) available to comnstockholders (both Class
and Class B common stockholders share equallytimoeme (loss)) by the weighted-average numbeoaimon shares outstanding. Prior to
August 15, 2005, the Company also had outstandiags® convertible participating preferred stodle(Class B preferred stock participated
in all undistributed earnings with the common s)odlhe Company allocated earnings to the commarkbtidders and the Class B
convertible participating preferred stockholderglemthe two-class method as required by Emergisigets Task Force Issue No. 03-6,
“Participating Securities and the Two-Class Methader FASB Statement No. 128.” The two-class meth@m earnings allocation method
under which basic net income per share is calalifatethe Companyg common stock and its Class B convertible pasiiiy preferred stoc
considering both accrued preferred stock divideardbparticipation rights in undistributed earniagsf all such earnings had been distribi
during the year. Since the Company’s Class B cdilemparticipating preferred stock was not contraly responsible to share in the
Company’s losses, in applying the two-class methambmpute basic net income per common share,location was made to the Class B
preferred stock if a net loss existed or if an striiuted net loss resulted from reducing net inedoy the accrued preferred stock dividends.

Diluted net income (loss) per common share is cdetphy dividing net income (loss) by the sum of weghtedaverage number «
common shares, dilutive common share equivaleets dlutstanding using the treasury stock method fanat, to August 15, 2005, the
assumed conversion of the Class B convertiblegpatiing preferred stock to common shares (if-col@eemethod). If the if-converted
method was anti-dilutive (that is, the if-convertadthod resulted in a higher net income per comshame amount than basic net income per
share calculated under the two-class method), ttreetwo-class method was used to compute dilutechoeme (loss) per common share,
including the effect of common share equivalentan@ion share equivalents consist of the incremenotaimon shares issuable upon the
exercise of stock options and warrants.

If the above calculations resulted in a net losslakile to common stockholders (due to a net losshe period or the effect of
accrued preferred stock dividends) and if the ¢f¢including common shares equivalents and tlseragd conversion of preferred stock, or
use of the two-class method, was anti-dilutiventiiduted net loss per common share would equat Iveet loss per common share.

The table below reflects the calculation of weighteerage shares outstanding for each year presasteell as the computation of
basic and diluted net income (loss) per commoneshar

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Numerator:
Net income $ 28,47¢ % 12,43¢ % 7,26C
Preferred stock dividend:s — (893) (2,280)
Participation rights of preferred stock in undistiied earnings* — (630) (1,142
Numerator for basic and diluted net income per comshar—income available to commc
stockholders under the t-class metho 28,47¢ 10,91¢ 3,83¢
Preferred stock dividends and participation rigiftpreferred stoc — 1,523 3,422
Numerator for diluted net income per common s—income available to commc
stockholders after assumed conversion of prefestack $ 2847¢ $ 1243¢ $ 7,26C
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Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Denominator
Denominator for basic net income per common s—weightec-average share 20,579,49: 12,931,18! 6,202,61!
Effect of dilution due to employee stock optionsl avarrants 755,80¢ 866,72°¢ 2,805,57:
Effect of dilution due to convertible preferred cltd — 654,35¢ 1,846,39!
Denominator for diluted net income per common s—adjusted weighte-average share 21,335,300 _14,452,26: _ 10,854,58:
Basic net income per common sh $ 1.38 $ 084 $ 0.62
Diluted net income per common shi $ 133 $ 0.76 $ 0.35
* through August 15, 2005 (see Note 1).
* Since the Company'’s Class B convertible particigppireferred stock was not contractually respoedibishare in the Company’s

losses, in applying the two-class method to compatgc net income per common share, no allocatismwade to the Class B
preferred stock if an undistributed net loss resliftom reducing net income by the preferred stiieldends.

For additional disclosures regarding the outstagg@ireferred stock and the employee stock optiodsaarrants, see Note 16.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities, and disclos@imntingent assets and liabilities, at the
of the financial statements, and the reported atsoofirevenues and expenses during the reportingdpedctual results could differ from
those estimates. Estimates are used for, butmdeti to, the accounting for the allowance for déultaccounts, valuation of inventories,
accrued expenses, depreciation and amortizatioarria taxes and tax valuation reserves, pensiopasidetirement obligations and the
valuation of options and warrants.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the net realizable valug lohigtived assets and evaluates such assets for impainnfenever indicators
impairment are present.

For amortizable long-lived assets to be held ard Li§ indicators of impairment are present, managy@ determines whether the
sum of the estimated undiscounted future cash fiewess than the carrying amount. The amount sétaspairment, if any, is based on the
excess of the carrying amount over its fair valieich is estimated based on projected discounteadiwoperating cash flows using a discc
rate reflecting the Company’s average cost of fuidsdate, no indicators of impairment exist.

Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale oratteans are reported at the lower of carrying arhoufair value, less costs to sell.
Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign igens are translated into U.S. dollars usingetkehange rate in effect at the
balance sheet date. Results of operations ardatadsising the average exchange rate prevailimogitfinout the period. The effects of
exchange rate fluctuations on translating foreigmency assets and liabilities into U.S. dollars iacluded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss, while gains and losses regultim foreign currency transactions, which werématerial for any of the fiscal years
presented, are included in interest expense. Netme of the Company’s foreign operations for fi@07, 2006 and 2005 amounted to
$5,767, $2,624, and $2,148, respectively. Net asdedhe Company’s foreign operations were $30208$24,304 at March 31, 2007 and
April 1, 2006, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the balance dbeetsh, accounts receivable, prepaids and otlreertt assets, and accounts
payable and accruals approximate their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s borrowingdeurits KeyBank Credit Agreement, Amended Creditefegnent, Swiss Credit

Facility and Industrial Development Revenue Borplsraximate fair value, as these obligations hater@st rates which vary in conjunction
with current market conditions.
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The components of comprehensive income (loss)yétate to the Company are net income, foreign oggréranslation adjustments
and the pension plan additional minimum liabilitydaafter-tax impact of the adoption of SFAS No. bB8ension benefits, all of which are
presented in the consolidated statements of stéa&isd equity (deficit) and comprehensive inconuss)).

The following summarizes the activity within eaadngponent of accumulated other comprehensive indtoss):

Pension and
Currency Postretirement
Translation Liability Total
Balance at April 3, 200 $ (1,304 $ (2,039) $ (3,343)
Currency translatio 488 — 488
Minimum pension liability — 323 323
Balance at April 2, 200 (816) (1,71¢€) (2,532)
Currency translatio (569) — (569)
Minimum pension liability — (291) (291)
Balance at April 1, 200 (1,38%) (2,007) (3,392)
Currency translatio 908 — 908
Minimum pension liability — 887 887
Adoption of SFAS No. 15 — (609) (609)
Balance at March 31, 20( $ (477) $ (1,729 $ (2,206)

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective April 2, 2006, the first day of the Comnmyés 2007 fiscal year, the Company adopted SFASIR8(R), “Share-Based
Payment”. SFAS No. 123(R) requires that the comgiims cost relating to all share-based paymensgetions be recognized in the financial
statements. That cost is measured based uponahedate fair value of the instruments issued reizegl over the requisite service period.
The Company has elected to use the “modified pasme method in adopting SFAS No. 123(R). Accoglin after the effective date,
compensation cost is recognized based on the srgairts of SFAS No. 123(R) (the vesting of all awagchnted to employees prior to the
effective date of SFAS No. 123(R) was acceleratdiscal 2006 and has no compensation cost imgtstthe effective date). Results for
periods prior to fiscal 2007 have not been restated

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) in fisc@0d2, the Company’s net income for fiscal 2007 wfld a charge for stock option
grants of $321 (net of income taxes of $167). Tamesents a $0.02 impact on basic and dilutedreggriper share for the year ended March
31, 2007. In addition, prior to the adoption ofA&No. 123(R), the Company presented the tax bieofesitock option exercises as operating
cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of Céslid= Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), taxdfgs resulting from tax deductions
excess of the compensation cost recognized foetbpsons are classified as financing cash inflo®sck compensation costs for option and
restricted stock awards are being amortized urdestraight-line method over the requisite serpiegod.

The fair value of each option grant was estimatethe date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricmglel. The Company used an
outside valuation firm to assist in estimating fhie value of stock option grants made during fiz07.

Prior to its adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Compaccounted for options and warrants granted tol@yees using the intrinsic
value method pursuant to APB No. 25, “AccountingStock Issued to Employees,” under which compémsaist was recognized only if
the exercise price of grants issued was belowdherfarket value of the Company’s common stockatdate of grant. Had compensation
cost for these grants been determined based daithalue at the grant dates consistent with SR&S123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” the Company’s net income would Hsaen reduced to the following pro forma amounts:

Fiscal Year Ended
April 1, April 2,

2006 2005
Net income, as reporte $12,43¢ $ 7,26C
Plus: stoc-based compensation expense included in reportedamhe, net of ta 230 264
Less: stoc-based compensation expense determined under faé weethod, net of ta (1,842 (540)
Pro forma net incom $10,827 $ 6,984
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Net income per common share, as repol

Basic $ 084 $ 0.62
Diluted $ 076 $ 0.3t
Net income per common share, pro fori

Basic $ 072 $ 0.57
Diluted $ 064 $ 0.33

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures, theneséid fair value of the options and warrants wasrtimed to expense over the
service period that generally was the option orarsrvesting period.

On April 1, 2006, the Company accelerated the mgsif 523,585 stock options whose exercise prica®welow its closing stock
price on the date the vesting of the options wasglacated. As a result, a charge of approximatés; $iet of tax, was recorded in fiscal 2006.
The accelerated vesting of these stock optionsintasded to eliminate compensation expense assdaidth these options in future periods
due to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The impdi¢he acceleration of vesting is also includethia pro forma table above.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢‘FASB”) issued SFAS Interpretation No. 48 (\F48"), “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An InterpretatiorF#{SB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 clarifies the agtiing for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial siatds in accordance with FASB Statement No. 10@ctinting for Income Taxes.” This
Interpretation prescribes a recognition thresholdl measurement attribute for the financial statémegognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmet This Interpretation also provides guidancelerecognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting for interim periods, disctesand transition. FIN 48 is effective for finglcstatements issued for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. The Companybasompleted its analysis of the potential imgEdEIN 48 on its financial statements.

3. Acquisitions

On September 12, 2006, the Company acquired Alldeosvmanufacturer of highly-engineered precisiamproller and ball
bearings for the industrial, defense and aerospalestries, for approximately $9,926. The purchasee included approximately $8,753 in
cash, a $750 note payable and approximately $4gamsaction expenses. The purchase price allocatias follows: accounts receivable
($1,969), inventory ($1,382), other current asé@4€9), property, plant and equipment ($1,614pngtble assets ($3,672), goodwill ($4,4:
current liabilities ($1,508) and long-term liakigis ($2,093). The products associated with theiaitiqun are complementary with products
already provided by other Company businesses. @id?, which is located in Santa Fe Springs, Califoris included in the plain bearings
reportable segment. Goodwill associated with thipussition is expected to be deductible for tax msegs.

On September 2, 2005, SWP purchased certain agsbts Southwest Products Company, a manufactdirgsterical bearings,
journal bearings, and pL-pull controls for military weapon systems and taily and commercial aerospace applications lodatéavindale,
California. The total consideration paid was $2,6B2 purchase price allocation is as follows: act® receivable ($114), inventory ($630),
property, plant and equipment ($720), intangibkets ($1,449) and accrued expenses ($231). Thegisdssociated with the acquisition are
complementary with products already provided byeotbompany businesses. SWP is included in the Bladmings reportable segment.

On December 22, 2004, RBCA purchased certain setasf the US Bearings division of Network ElentcoCorporation, a
manufacturer of lined and unlined spherical, rod-and other specialty bearings located in Chat$w@alifornia. The total consideration
paid was $1,228. The purchase price allocatios i®kows: inventory ($522), property, plant andugmment ($585), intangible assets ($438)
and accrued expenses ($317). All of the produdscated with the acquisition are complementary pibducts already provided by other
Company businesses. US Bearings is included iRthie Bearings reportable segment.

The results of operations subsequent to the effediates of the acquisitions are included in tiselts of operations of the Company.
Unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operatiof the Company, based upon pre-acquisitionditexlihistorical information provided
for the years ended March 31, 2007, April 1, 2G0&] April 2, 2005, as if the All Power, SWP and U&Rjuisitions took place on April 4,
2004, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Net sales $311,51¢ $289,187 $258,13¢
Net income $ 29,52( $ 1391€¢ $ 7,56¢
Net income per common sha
Basic $ 143 $ 096 $ 0.67
Diluted $ 138 $ 086 $ 0.38
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4, Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The activity in the allowance for doubtful accouatssists of the following:

Balance at

Beginning of Balance at
Fiscal Year Ended Year Additions Other* Write -offs End of Year
March 31, 200° $ 838 $ 183 $ 39 $ (193) $ 867
April 1, 2006 628 244 — (34) 838
April 2, 2005 770 472 — (614) 628

*acquired in All Power transaction (see Note 3).
5. Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtanksing the first-in, first-out method, and anensnarized below:

March 31, April 1,

2007 2006
Raw materials $ 8,13z $ 7,84t
Work in proces: 32,457 30,147
Finished good 62,432 65,15¢€

$103,02: $ 103,14¢

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 15yéftory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, ChapteFhe amendments
made by SFAS No. 151 clarify that abnormal amoohidle facility expense, freight, handling cosisd wasted materials (spoilage) should
be recognized as current-period charges and retiugrallocation of fixed production overheads teeimtory based on the normal capacity of
the production facilities. The Company adopted SRS 151 in fiscal 2007. This adoption did not haveaaterial impact on the consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cdsiwé of the Company.

6. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foihay

March 31, April 1,

2007 2006
Land $ 8,15z $ 7,40t
Buildings and improvemen 18,32t 17,06(
Machinery and equipment 109,05¢ 118,03(
135,53¢ 142,49t
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 74,32t 84,467

$ 61,20¢ $ 58,02¢

7. Restructuring of Operations

On December 18, 2006, the Company completed tlaé fimase of its Nice consolidation plan with thke €4 its facility located in
Kulpsville, Pennsylvania. The asset was sold faragpimately $3,507 after expenses and the Compealized a gain on the sale of
approximately $807 before taxes.

In January 2007, the Company began the consolidafiits tapered bearing manufacturing capacitye Toempany has discontinued
manufacturing tapered bearings in its Glasgow, K&kt facility and has consolidated the remaining
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manufacturing into other Company manufacturinglifées. The consolidation is anticipated to resnlimproved gross margin for this prod
line from a negative to a positive result over tiegt twelve months. This consolidation resulted charge of approximately $5,088 in fiscal
2007. Approximately $2,211 of this charge relatethie non-cash disposal of fixed assets. The rentagharge of $2,877 includes
termination benefits of approximately $1,153, mavaosts of approximately $755, rent of approximakd28 and cleanup and turnover costs
of approximately $250. As of March 31, 2007, $1,884 been paid and $893 has been accrued. Inadtiitthe accrued costs, $113 is
expected to be incurred and paid in the first eqarant fiscal 2008,

In addition to the sale and disposal of fixed asaethe Kulpsville, Pennsylvania and Glasgow, Keky facilities, during the year
ended March 31, 2007, the Company recorded a fdb51@ on the sale and disposal of property, ot equipment no longer expected to
be used. During the year ended April 1, 2006, then@any recorded a loss of $24 on the sale and sh$pb property, plant and equipment
and recorded a $400 reserve for the impairmernikeéifassets in connection with the shutdown ofbkpsville facility. During the year
ended April 2, 2005, the Company recorded a loglof78 on the sale and disposal of property, @adtequipment related to the
consolidation of production lines and outsourcieg&in components to low-cost producers.

8. Goodwill and Amortizable Intangible Assets
Goodwill

During fiscal 2007, goodwill increased $4,481 imgection with the acquisition of All Power. No clgas to goodwill occurred in
fiscal 2006.

Gooduwill balances, by segment, consist of the Yoilhay:

March 31, April 1,

2007 2006
Roller $ 15,67C $ 15,67
Plain 13,95¢ 9,477

$ 29,631 $ 25,15C

I ntangible Assets

The Company’s definite-lived intangible assetsarmrtized over their useful lives of 5 to 17 yed@iso included in intangible
assets, at April 1, 2006, is an asset relatinpeodompany’s minimum pension liability, as furtidescribed in Note 13.

March 31, 2007 April 1, 2006
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Product approvals $ 3,08 $ 240 $ 161z $ 135
Customer relationships and li 2,704 987 1,30¢ 695
Trade name 1,19t 316 989 206
Distributor agreemen 722 612 722 468
Minimum pension liability intangible ass — — 508 —
Other 418 174 461 112
Total $ 8,12z $ 2,32¢ $ 5597 $ 1,61€

Amortization expense for definite-lived intangilalesets during fiscal year 2007, 2006, and 20058%48, $667 and $500,
respectively. Estimated amortization expense feffite succeeding fiscal years and thereafter fslémvs:

2008 $752
2009 512
2010 512
2011 512
2012 512
2013 and thereaftt 2,992
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9. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

The significant components of accrued expensestrad current liabilities are as follows:

March 31, April 1,

2007 2006
Employee compensation and related ben $ 429C $ 3,90¢
Plant consolidation cos 893 718
Interest 178 1,014
Taxes 3,14C 386
Insurance 1,10C 681
Other 2,082 1,864

$ 1168 $ 8572

10. Debt

On August 15, 2005, the Company entered into & Rifhended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Arérigtedit Agreement”),
among RBCA, the other Credit Parties signatorydteerGeneral Electric Capital Corporation, a Dele@orporation, for itself, as lender, :
as agent for the lenders, concurrently with theialg of the Company'initial public offering. Pursuant to the Amendegedit Agreement, tr
Company increased its term loan borrowings by apprately $40,000 from $110,000 under the term Ipartion of the Amended Credit
Agreement. The Amended Credit Agreement provid€85000 revolving credit agreement (the “AmendeddReng Credit Facility”) and a
$150,000 term loan (the “Amended Term Loan”). Thagpal amount of the Amended Term Loan was tedpaid in twenty-five
(25) consecutive quarterly installments commeng&egember 31, 2005. Each loan was secured by adjaimst substantially all of the assets
of the Company and subjected the Company to stdraffirmative and negative covenants, as well aarftial leverage tests.

The Amended Revolving Credit Facility bore interaisa floating rate of either the higher of theebeste on corporate loans or the
federal funds rate plus 50 basis points, plus 1;25%IBOR plus 2.50%. The Company had the righglert the applicable interest rate on
the Amended Revolving Credit Facility. The Amendeam Loan bore interest at a floating rate of eithe higher of the base rate on
corporate loans or the federal rate plus 50 basigg plus 1.50%; or LIBOR plus 2.75%. The Comphagy the right to elect the applicable
interest rate on the Amended Term Loan.

On June 26, 2006, RBCA terminated the Amended Chagglieement, and the related credit, security ardllary agreements, and
entered into a credit agreement (the “KeyBank Gradgreement”) and related security and guarantgaigients with certain banks, KeyBank
National Association, as Administrative Agent, anid. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as-Lead Arrangers and Joint Lead Book Runners. The
KeyBank Credit Agreement provides RBCA, as borrgwéth a $150,000 five-year senior secured revg\gredit facility which can be
increased by up to $75,000, in increments of $25,00der certain circumstances and subject toinegtanditions (including the receipt from
one or more lenders of the additional commitment).

Amounts outstanding under the KeyBank Credit Agreeingenerally bear interest at the prime rate,|BOR plus a specified
margin, depending on the type of borrowing beinglead he applicable margin is based on the Compamyisolidated ratio of net debt to
adjusted EBITDA from time to time. Currently, the@pany’s margin is 0.0% for prime rate loans arfdb% for LIBOR rate loans. Amounts
outstanding under the KeyBank Credit Agreementareand payable on the expiration date of the teggleement (June 24, 2011). The
Company can elect to prepay some or all of thetautiing balance from time to time without penalty.

The KeyBank Credit Agreement requires the Compargotply with various covenants. As of March 31020the Company was
compliance with all such covenants.

The KeyBank Credit Agreement allows the Companyitoong other things, make distributions to shaadrs| repurchase its stock,
incur other debt or liens, or acquire or disposassiets provided that the Company complies wittaicerequirements and limitations of the
credit agreement. The Company’s obligations ungieikieyBank Credit Agreement are secured by a plefilgabstantially all of the
Company’s and RBCA'’s assets and a guaranty by ¢mep@ny of RBCA's obligations.

On June 26, 2006, the Company borrowed approxim&#,000 under the KeyBank Credit Agreement ared ssich funds to
(i) pay fees and expenses associated with the KeyBaedit Agreement and (ii) repay the approxima$:8,000 balance outstanding under
the Amended Credit Agreement. As of March 31, 2@2,000 was outstanding under the KeyBank Credieément. The Company
recorded a non-cash pre-tax charge of approxim&®76 in fiscal 2007 to write off
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deferred debt issuance costs associated with theteemination of the Amended Credit Agreementféeed financing fees of $903
associated with the KeyBank Credit Agreement weoemded in fiscal 2007.

Approximately $21,410 of the KeyBank Credit Agreernis being utilized to provide letters of creditdecure RBCA's obligations
relating to certain Industrial Development ReveBoads (the “IRB’s”) and insurance programs. As adrivh 31, 2007, RBCA had the ability
to borrow up to an additional $86,590 under the Bayk Credit Agreement.

On December 8, 2003, Schaublin entered into a beadit facility (the “Swiss Credit Facility”) witiCredit Suisse providing for
10,000 Swiss francs, or approximately $8,212, whtan (the “Swiss Term Loangnd up to 2,000 Swiss francs, or approximately 44,61
revolving credit loans and letters of credit (tf8wiss Revolving Credit Facility”RBCA pledged 99.4% of the present and future sbapéa
of Schaublin S.A. (1,366 shares) against thisifgciDn November 8, 2004, Schaublin amended thesS®@redit Facility to increase the Sw
Revolving Credit Facility to 4,000 Swiss francs approximately $3,285. Borrowings under the Swissd@ Facility bear interest at a floati
rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%. As of March 31, 2007 rtherere no borrowings outstanding under the SwissliCFacility.

During fiscal 1995, the Company entered into a lagreement with the South Carolina Jobs Economiedpment Authority (“SC
JEDA") which provides for borrowings up to $10,7@@der two industrial development revenue bondsi€Sér994 A and B) and, during
fiscal 1999, the Company entered into an addititmexh agreement with the SC JEDA which providesbfmrowings up to $3,000 under an
industrial development revenue bond (Series 1988).interest rate is variable and based on thea0-dS. Treasury Bill rate. Additionally,
during fiscal 2000, the Company entered into a lgmeement with the California Infrastructure amdomic Development Bank which
provides for borrowings up to $4,800 under an indalsdevelopment revenue bond (Series 1999) (ctillely, “Bonds”). The interest rate on
the Bonds is variable and based on the Bond Makstciation 7-day Municipal Swap Index. The prosefedm the Bonds are restricted for
working capital requirements and capital expendifpurposes. On March 1, 2002, the Company retivedimused portion of the Series 1998
bonds of $1,845. As of March 31, 2007, all of thegeeds have been expended with the exception2fbich has been invested by the
trustee in marketable securities. The Series 1984d\B bonds and the Series 1998 bonds are seoyi@dirrevocable direct-pay letter of
credit issued by one of the Company’s lenders.|&tter of credit is equal to the aggregate prinicgmount of the bonds plus not less than
forty-five days’ interest thereon, calculated a¥df@er annum ($12,534 at March 31, 2007). The S&868 bonds are likewise secured by an
irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit issued Ime @f the Company’s lenders. The Company’s obligetd its lenders is secured pursuant to
the provisions of the Credit Facility and is equeathe aggregate principal amount of the bonds phidess than fifty days’ interest thereon,
calculated at 12% per annum ($4,879 at March 32720
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The balances payable under all borrowing facilidies as follows:

KeyBank Credit Agreement

Five-year senior secured revolving credit facility; amtsuoutstanding bear interest at the prime ratdBOR,
plus a specified margin, depending on the typeoofdwing being made (6.06% at March 31, 20

Amended Credit Agreement

Amended Term Loan, payable in quarterly installmearit$375, commencing December 31, 2005, with !
payment of $137,750 due July 1, 2011; bears intetegriable rates (weighted average interestwate7.24%
for the fiscal year ended April 1, 2006), payablentily and upon maturity at prime or LIBOR, plus an
applicable margin, at the Compi’s electior

Swiss Credit Facility

Term Loan, payable in se-annual installments ranging from approximately $4@nmencing March 31, 20C
to approximately $1,000 from September 30, 2008 funal payment due March 31, 2009; bears inteaiest
variable rates, plus an applicable margin (weiglategtage interest rate was 4.82% and 4.21% fdigbal years
ended March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, respeactly@ayable quarterl

Note Payable(amounts outstanding bear interest at 6.5%, d$ptember 2007

Industrial Development Revenue Bond:

Series 1994 A, bears interest at a variable ragégfed average interest rate was 5.76% and 4.29%é fiscal
years ended March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, rspgdy), payable monthly through September 2

Series 1994 B, bears interest at a variable ratggfved average interest rate was 5.76% and 4.fi@%he fiscal
years ended March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, r&smy), payable monthly through December 2!

Series 1998, bears interest at variable rates tesigaverage interest rate was 4.39% and 3.10%hddiscal year:
ended March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, respectly@ayable monthly through December 2C

Series 1999, bearing interest at variable rategyfwed average interest rate was 4.05% and 3.57%hddiscal
years ended March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, r&spy), payable monthly through April 20:

Total Debt

Less: Current Portion

Long-Term Debt

March 31, April 1,
2007 2006
$ 42,00 $ —
— 145,25(
— 3,84z
750 —
7,70C 7,70C
3,00C 3,00C
1,15¢ 1,15E
4,80C 4,80C
59,40¢ 165,741
750 3,217
$ 58,655 $162,53(

The current portion of long-term debt as of Mardh 3007 includes $750 note payable related to thBdwer acquisition. As of
April 1, 2006, the current portion of long-term déirludes $1,537 of borrowings under the Swisgd@eacility, $1,500 payable under the

Amended Term Loan and $180 payable under the IRB’s.
Maturities of debt during each of the followingdifiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013 and thereaftt

11. Obligations Under Capital Leases

Machinery and equipment additions under capitaidsamounted to $440, $246 and $270 in fiscal 200¥% and 2005,

$ 750
810
540
660

42,66(

13,98t

respectively. The average imputed rate of intevastapital leases at each year end was 3.9%, 4d%.8% in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively.
Included in property, plant and equipment are thiewing assets held under capital leases:

Machinery and equipme
Accumulated depreciatic

Future minimum lease payments under capital leatskkarch 31, 2007 are as follows:

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
Total minimum lease paymer
Less: amount representing inter
Present value of net minimum lease paym
Less: current maturitie
Non-current capital lease obligatio

12. Other Non-Current Liabilities

The significant components of other non-currertilises consist of:

Additional minimum pension liabilit'

March 31, April 1,
2007 2006
$ 4,077 $ 5,397
(3,28¢) (4,866)
$ 789 $ 531

$186

174

171

114

19

664

39

625

169

456

March 31, April 1,
2007 2006
$ — $ 3,75¢



Non-current pension liabilit 1,117 _
Other postretirement benef 2,467 2,637
Other 2,471 2,028

$ 6051 $ 8421
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13. Pension Plans

At March 31, 2007, the Company has noncontributtafined benefit pension plans covering union emgdsyin its Heim division
plant in Fairfield, Connecticut and its Bremen sdiasy plant in Plymouth, Indiana.

Effective March 31, 2007, the pension plan forTlyson subsidiary in Glasgow, Kentucky has beeraded in the terms of the
Shutdown Agreement between Tyson Bearings Companyand the United Steelworkers of America (AFLSLocal 7461-01 dated
February 6, 2007. No further benefits will accrgaiast this Plan and no new employees will becoligéke for participation in the Plan.
However, the Company will continue to maintain EHan. The impact of curtailment was $202, whicincduded in the net periodic benefit
cost in fiscal 2007.

Effective May 1, 2006, the pension plan for thed\stibsidiary in Kulpsville, Pennsylvania has baemdn in accordance with the
terms of the Shutdown Agreement between RBC NiaiBgs, Inc. and the United Steelworkers of Ame(&BL-CIO) Local 6816-12 dated
February 15, 2006. No further benefits will accagginst this plan and no new employees will beceligéble for participation in the plan.
However, the Company will continue to maintain ghen. The impact of curtailment was $97, whichmiduded in the net periodic benefit
cost in fiscal 2007.

Plan assets are comprised primarily of equity sgear The plans provide benefits of stated amobated on a combination of an
employee’s age and years of service. The Compagyy aisDecember 31 measurement date for its plaesCémpany expects to contribute
approximately $1,863 to its pension plans in figesr 2008.

On March 31, 2007, the Company adopted the redograind disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158, “HEagprs’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremesmt$! SFAS No. 158 required the Company to recagthie funded status (i.e., the
difference between the Company’s fair value of @asets and the projected benefit obligationsjsadéfined benefit pension plans in the
March 31, 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheet withreesponding adjustment to accumulated other congmisiiie income, net of tax. The
adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive inamdoption represents the net unrecognizedrédtlesses, unrecognized prior
service costs and unrecognized transition obligatmnaining from the initial adoption of SFAS N@. &1d SFAS No. 106, all of which were
previously netted against the plans’ funded stattse Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet inrdece with the provisions of SFAS
No. 87 and SFAS No. 106. These amounts will beesgulently recognized as net periodic benefit costtordance with the Compé's
historical accounting policy for amortizing thesaaunts. In addition, actuarial gains and lossesdhse in subsequent periods and are not
recognized as net periodic benefit cost in the saaneds will be recognized as a component of otleenprehensive income. Those amounts
will be subsequently recognized as a componenéebperiodic benefit cost on the same basis asrttoeiats recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income at adoption of SFAS No. 158.

The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 158 to thagion benefit plans increased non-current asge#8%0, increased non-current
liabilities by $786 and increased the loss in aadiated other comprehensive loss by $264, net @rdad tax benefit of $163. The adoptiol
SFAS No. 158 had no effect on the Company’s Codat#d Statement of Operations for the year endedhViil, 2007, and it will not affect
the Company’s operating results in subsequent grio

The following table sets forth net periodic benetist of the Company’s plans for the three fisesrg in the period ended March 31,

2007:
Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Components of net periodic benefit cc
Service cos $ 484 $ 575 $ 507
Interest cos 1,03z 984 944
Expected return on plan ass (1,309 (1,130 (972
Amortization of prior service co: 28 39 19
Amortization of losse 166 209 239
Additional amount recognized due to curtailment 299 — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 701 $ 677 $ 737
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The following tables set forth the funded statuthef Company’s defined benefit pension plans, theumt recognized in the balance
sheet at March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006:

March 31,

April 1,
2007 2006
Change in benefit obligatiol
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $18,02¢ $16,23¢
Service cos 484 575
Interest cos 1,03z 984
Actuarial (gain) los: (166) 1,197
Benefits paid (1,264) (967)
Benefit obligation, at measurement date $18,111 $18,02¢
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $14,267 $12,79¢
Actual return on plan asse 2,167 1,61¢
Employer contribution 1,827 817
Benefits paid (1,264) (967)
Fair value of plan assets $16,997 $14,26i
Reconciliation of funded statu
Underfunded statL $ (1,114 $(3,757)
Unrecognized prior service cc n/a (1) 413
Unrecognized actuarial net loss n/a (1) 3,34¢€
Accrued benefit cost (1,119 2
Contributions in fourth quarter 360 n/a
Net liability $ (754) $ 2
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancets
Non-current assel $ 359 $na(d
Non-current liability (1,113 —
Intangible asse — 508
Prepaid benefit co: n/a (1) 2
Accrued benefit cos na(l) (3,759
Accumulated other comprehensive loss n/a (1) 3,251
Net (liability) asset recognized $ (754) $ 2
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekiensss:
Prior service cos $ 2,157 $ n/la()
Net actuarial loss 85 n/a (1)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ 224z $ nla(d)
Amounts included in accumulated other compreherisis® expected to be recognized as components penedic
benefit cost in fiscal 200t
Prior service cos $ (36) $ na(l
Net actuarial loss 80 n/a (1)
Total $ 44 $na(d

(1) These disclosures are not applicable due to SFAS B®being effective as of March 31, 2007.
As of March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, all of tiempany’s defined benefit pension plans had accatedlbenefit obligations in

excess of plan assets. Benefits under the uniovs @lee not a function of employees’ salaries; tthesaccumulated benefit obligation equals
the projected benefit obligation.
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The assumptions used in determining the net perioeinefit cost information are as follows:

FY 2007 FY 2006 FY 2005
Discount rate 575% 5.90% 6.25%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%

The discount rate used in determining the fundatlistas of March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006 wa®8%. @nd 5.75%, respectively.

In developing the overall expected long-term retummlan assets assumption, a building block amtress used in which rates of
return in excess of inflation were considered saedyy for equity securities and debt securitiee €hcess returns were weighted by the
representative target allocation and added alotiy avi appropriate rate of inflation to develop dverall expected long-term return on plan
assets assumption.

The Company’s investment program objective is ttieae a rate of return on plan assets which wildfthe plan liabilities and
provide for required benefits while avoiding undugposure to risk to the plan and increases in imdequirements. The Company'’s target
allocation of plan assets was 100 percent equitgstments at March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006.

The following benefit payments, which reflect fudigervice as appropriate, are expected to be Paabenefit payments are based
on the same assumptions used to measure the Cotmbamgfit obligation at the end of fiscal 2007.

2008 $ 960
2009 1,012
2010 1,154
2011 1,204
2012 1,267
201:-2018 7,395

The Company’s foreign operation, Schaublin, spanagoension plan for its approximately 150 empley@econformance with
Swiss pension law. The plan is funded with a raplat (S&P rating AA-) Swiss insurer. Through theurance contract, the Company has
effectively transferred all investment and moriatisk to the insurance company, which guaranteesdderally mandated annual rate of
return and the conversion rate at retirement. Assalt, the plan has no unfunded liability; theefest cost is exactly offset by actual return.
Thus, the net periodic cost is equal to the amotiahnual premium paid by the Company. For fisegrs 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
Company recorded contribution and premium paymeqtml to $476, $445 and $518, respectively.

The Company also has a defined contribution plateusection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Codalloof its employees not
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Tae i3 funded by eligible participants through eaygle contributions and by Company
contributions equal to 25% of the first 4% of dbilgi employee compensation. Effective October 112€@% Company suspended matching
contributions to this plan. Effective April 4, 200#e Company resumed a program of employer majatontributions to this plan. Employer
contributions under this plan amounted to $328%2&# in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Effective September 1, 1996, the Company adopteshaqualified Supplemental Executive RetiremenhRf8ERP”) for a select
group of highly compensated management employesgraged by the Board of Directors of the Compdarme SERP allows eligible
employees to elect to defer, until terminationtit employment, the receipt of up to 25% of theeirent salary. The Company makes
contributions equal to the lesser of 50% of theettels, or 3.5% of the employees’ annual salaryclwhiest in full after three years of service
following the effective date of the SERP. Emplogentributions under this plan amounted to $154, $8@ $67 in fiscal 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

14. Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefs

The Company, for the benefit of employees at its1H&Vest Trenton and Bremen facilities, sponsorgrioutory defined benefit
health care plans that provide postretirement naédiced life insurance benefits to union employebs wave attained certain age and/or
service requirements while employed by the Compa@hg. plans are unfunded and costs are paid ag@wtUPostretirement benefit
obligations are included in “Accrued expenses ahdrocurrent liabilities” and “Other non-currerdbilities” in the consolidated balance
sheet.

The postretirement medical and life insurance hienfefr the Tyson subsidiary in Glasgow, Kentuclayé been addressed and
curtailed in the terms of the Shutdown Agreemeimtben Tyson Bearing Company, Inc. and the Unitegl@torkers of America (AFL-CIO)
Local 7461-01 dated February 6, 2007. The impacudfilment was $(437), which was included in peiodic benefit cost (income) for
fiscal 2007.
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Effective May 1, 2006, the postretirement medical lfe insurance benefits for the Nice subsidianKulpsville, Pennsylvania have
been addressed in the terms of the Shutdown Agmdmeéveen RBC Nice Bearings, Inc. and the Unitee@/orkers of America (AFL-
CIO) Local 6816-12 dated February 15, 2006. Lifsurance benefits terminated July 31, 2006. Postretint medical benefits will be
available until the contract expires on January28D8. The impact of curtailment was $(131), whias included in net periodic benefit cost
(income) for fiscal 2007.

The Company uses a March 31 measurement dates folaits. The Company expects to contribute apprately $227 to its
postretirement benefit plans in fiscal 2008.

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Dmgrovement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the tAevas signed into law.
The Companys prescription drug benefit for all postretiremplans is capped at a set amount each month, whigdid to the retirees so th
can obtain prescription drug coverage. As suchCihimpany is not self-insured for prescription dragd the Act has no impact on the
recorded obligation.

SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Definedrigdit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans” ssised in September 2006.
SFAS No. 158 requires plan sponsors of definedfitgrension and other postretirement benefit pl@odiectively, “postretirement benefit
plans”) to recognize the funded status of theitqgdisement benefit plans on the balance sheehdasure the fair value of plan assets and
benefit obligations as of the date of the plan spos fiscal year end, and to provide additionatttisures. The Company adopted the
recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS N&8 dn March 31, 2007. The effect of adopting SFAS N8 on the Company’s financial
condition as of March 31, 2007 has been includetiéraccompanying consolidated financial statemdtis impact of the adoption of SFAS
No. 158 to other postretirement benefit plans iaseel current liabilities by $227, increased-current liabilities by $332 and increased the
loss in accumulated other comprehensive loss b8t of deferred tax provision of $214. The regmient for the Company to measure the
fair value of plan assets and benefit obligationhsfdts fiscal year end is effective for fiscabys ending after December 15, 2008.

The following table set forth the funded statush&f Company’s postretirement benefit plans, thelarthcecognized in the balance at
March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006:

March 31, April 1,
2007 2006

Change in benefit obligatiol

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 3,45t $ 3,72¢
Service cos 112 141
Interest cos 182 198
Actuarial (gain) los: (188) (453)
Benefits paic (211) (159)
Curtailment (gain) loss (656) —
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 2694 $ 3,45
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ — 3 —
Actual return on plan asse — —
Company contribution 211 159
Benefits paid (211) (159
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ —  $ —
Funded status, end of ye $ (2,694 $ (3,45%)
Unrecognized prior service cc n/a (1) (157)
Unrecognized actuarial net loss n/a (1) 975

&

Accrued benefit cost, end of year (2,694 $ (2,637)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balancets

Non-current liability $ (2,467 $ nla(])
Current liability (227) n/a (1)
Accrued benefit cost n/a (1) (2,637)

Net liability recognized $ (2,699 $ (2,637

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekiersss:

Prior service cost (credi $ (20) $ n/a())
Net actuarial (gain) loss 578 n/a (1)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ 558 $ nla(d)

Amounts included in accumulated other compreherisis® expected to be recognized as components penedic
benefit cost in fiscal 200t
Prior service cos $ 201 n/a (1)
Net actuarial loss 11 n/a (1)
Total $ 212 $ n/a(d)

&




(1) These disclosures are not applicable due to SFAS B®being effective as of March 31, 2007.
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Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,

Components of net periodic benefit c¢ 2007 2006 2005
Service cost $ 112 $ 141 $ 121
Interest cos 182 198 217
Prior service cost amortizatic (45) (486) (496)
Amount of loss recognize 29 117 161
Curtailment (568) — —
Net periodic benefit cost (incom $ (290 $ (30) $ 3

During fiscal 2004, the plans were amended to eaiually limit the benefit to be provided for céntgroups of current and future
retirees. As a result, there is no health careltemsociated with these groups. The discount s#d in determining the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation was 6.00% at Ma&8t, 2007 and 6.25% at April 1, 2006. The discoatd used in determining the net
periodic benefit cost was 6.25% for fiscal 20080856 for fiscal 2006 and 6.25% for fiscal 2005. TI®83 Group Annuity Mortality table was
used to determine the postretirement net periogiefit costs in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005.

The following benefit payments, which reflect fudigervice as appropriate, are expected to be Paébenefit payments are based
on the same assumptions used to measure the Cotspamgfit obligation at the end of fiscal 2007:

2008 $227
2009 222
2010 224
2011 222
2012 216
201:-2018 1,11¢
15. Income Taxes

Income before income taxes for the Company’s domastd foreign operations is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,

2007 2006 2005
Domestic $ 37,21 $ 1595 $ 3,27¢
Foreign 6,854 3,12C 2,597

$ 44,067 $ 19,07 $ 5,87¢

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes catsiof the following:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federa $ 3,14C $ 161t $ 915
State 2,07¢ 566 364
Foreign 1,087 497 449
6,30€ 2,67¢€ 1,72¢
Deferred:
Federa 9,50€ 3,694 (2,6449)
State (224) 262 (469)
9,282 3,95€ (3,11%)
Total $ 1558t $ 6,634 $ (1,38
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A reconciliation of income taxes computed usingth8. federal statutory rate to that reflectedperations follows:

Income taxes using U.S. federal statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal ber

Increase in valuation allowan

Adjustment of taxes to tax returns as fi

Foreign rate differentic

Impact of indefinite postponement of remittancesimdistributed earnings of foreign subsidial

Other

Net deferred tax assets consist of the following:

Deferred tax asset
Postretirement benefi
Employee compensation accru
Alternative minimum tax credit
General business cred
Net operating losse
Inventory
Stock warrant:

Pensior

Other

Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipme
Amortization of intangibles
Total deferred tax liabilities

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
$ 1542/ $ 6,67€ $ 1,99¢
1,101 660 (66)
500 — —
37 94 849
(1,312) (595) (434)
— — (3,781)
(162) (201) 49

$ 1558t $ 6,634 $ (1,385

March 31, April 1,
2007 2006

$ 740 $ 875
1,784 1,635

— 2,481
777 777
628 4,763

4,83¢ 3,407

— 1,364

502 1,244
1,194 1,28C

(500) —
9,964  17,82¢

(5497 (5,54
(3,831) (2,250
(9,326) (7,799

Net deferred tax assets $ 636 $ 10,02¢

A valuation allowance has been recorded on cestaite net operating losses as it is more likely that that these losses will be
utilized.

The Company has reassessed its needs internafgianallhas determined that, despite the benefitsdated by the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004, its undistributed foreignréags of approximately $15,000 at March 31, 200If vé re-invested indefinitely based
upon the need for cash in its foreign operationgemtial foreign acquisitions and the Company’sility to remit cash back to the United
States under its current foreign debt obligations.

At March 31, 2007, the Company has federal netaipey loss carryforwards of approximately $9,500ffset future income taxes,
which expire at various dates through 2026. The @y also has state net operating losses in diffgueisdictions at varying amount
ranging from zero to $12,100, which expire at vasidates through 2026. In addition, the Companyahamative minimum tax credit and
general business tax credit carryforwards of apprately $3,800 and $800, respectively. The netaipey loss carryforwards may be subject
to certain limitations provided in IRC Sections 38# 383.
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The Company’s tax returns are subject to reviewex@nination by various taxing authorities, whictuld result in changes to accrued tax
estimates. The Company has a tax benefit of apmately $7,100 related to the exercise of godified stock options. Pursuant to SFAS
123(R), the benefit will be recognized and recorttedPIC when the benefit is realized through théuction of taxes payable. The gross
amount of the net operating losses and alternatimémum tax credits not yet realized are approxatya$9,500 and $3,800, respectively.

During fiscal 2006, the Company and the IRS firadia settlement relating to the year 2000. Thdtresthe settlement, to the
Company, was an additional $8.5 million of deddetitompensation expense. The related tax benedippfoximately $3.6 million was
credited to additional paid-in capital of which $2nillion was recorded in fiscal 2006 and the rermg $1.1 million was recorded in fiscal
2007 when the benefit amount was finalized.

16. Stockholders’ Equity

Prior to the initial public offering in August 200he Company had three classes of capital stotdtanding: Class B preferred stc
Class A common stock and Class B common stockr Rrithe consummation of the initial public offegithe Company effectuated a series
of transactions in order to, among other thingapéiy its capital structure. The Company’s simiglif capital structure has two classes of
authorized capital stock (common stock and prefiesteck), of which only shares of common stock ri@ex outstanding after the Compasy’
initial public offering. The recapitalization traacgion involved a number of steps that were effetett contemporaneously with the
consummation of the Company’s initial public offegi These steps were as follows:

Sock Split. The Company amended its certificate of incorporato effect a 5-for-2 stock split of its commaonck. All share and
per share information in the consolidated finanstatements has been retroactively restated tecteafie stock split for all years presented.

Conversion of Class B Preferred Sock. Immediately prior to the consummation of the ptadization, all outstanding shares of
Class B preferred stock were converted in accomarith their terms into 1,846,396 (on a post steglit basis) shares of Class A common
stock, shares of Class C preferred stock and sb&@kass D preferred stock. All shares of Classn@ Class D preferred stock were
redeemed with cash or common stock as describeavbel

Redemption of Class C Preferred Sock. Immediately after the conversion of the Clasg@&grred stock, the Company used proc:
from its initial public offering and the refinangjrof its then existing credit facility to redeenh@ltstanding Class C preferred stock, incluc
any accrued and unpaid dividends, for an aggregdemption price determined in accordance witpri¢soffering certificate of
incorporation. The aggregate redemption price efGlass C preferred stock was equal to $30,600.

Repurchase of Class D Preferred Sock. Immediately after the conversion of the Clasg@&grred stock, the Company repurchased
all of the outstanding Class D preferred stockafioaggregate repurchase price equal to $8.0 mplaymble as follows: $4.0 million of the
repurchase price paid in cash using proceeds fnenmitial public offering and the refinancing ¢$ Senior Credit Facility, and $4.0 million
paid in shares of its Class A common stock baseth@imitial public offering price of $14.50 perask (before giving effect to the
underwriting discount).

A summary of the status of the Company’s prefestedk outstanding as of March 31, 2007, April@Q&, April 2, 2005 and
April 3, 2004 and changes during the year endedl Ap2006 is presented below.

Class B Class C Class D
Balance at April 3, 2004 and April 2, 2005 240,00( — —
Conversion of Class B preferred stc (240,000  306,29¢ 240,00(
Redemption of Class C preferred stt — (306,299 —
Redemption of Class D preferred stock — — (240,000

Balance at April 1, 2006 and March 31, 2007 — — _

Reclassification of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. Immediately after the transactions described apthe
Company amended and restated its certificate affparation to provide for, among other things, autted capital stock of 60.0 million
shares of common stock and 10.0 million shareseafepred stock after giving effect to the 5-fortdck split. As a result, all of the
Company'’s Class A common stock and Class B comrtawk gincluding shares of Class A common stockasisupon conversion of the
Class B preferred stock and repurchase of the Clgegferred stock) were reclassified as commookston a one-for-one basis.

Sock Options and Warrants. Following the reclassification of the Companyaees, all outstanding options and warrants to
purchase the Company’s Class A common stock anmss@aommon stock became exercisable into sharthe @ompany’s newly created
common stock in accordance with the terms of carksbption plans and stock option and warrant agess. As of March 31, 2007, there
were 1,294,319 outstanding options, 961,319 of vhiere exercisable. There are no outstanding wiatran

As part of its preparation for the initial publiffering, the Company reassessed the value oféis @lass A Common Stock given
significant improvement in the Company’s operafiegformance during the fiscal year ended April@)2 The retrospective review
indicated that the fair value of the then Classdkxfthon Stock was in excess of the option exercige [($8.00 per share) at the various grant
dates. As a result, deferred compensation of appaiely $785,000 was record
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for the intrinsic value of the stock (based on2t&00 options and 179,575 options granted dursgafi2006 and 2005, respectively), which
was amortized over the vesting period. Approxima$365,000 and $420,000 was recorded as compengdpense in fiscal 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

On April 1, 2006, the Company accelerated the mgsif 523,585 stock options whose exercise prica®Wwelow its closing stock
price on the date the vesting of the options wasglacated. As a result, a charge of approximatés; $iet of tax, was recorded in fiscal 2006.
The accelerated vesting of these stock optionsimtasded to eliminate a possible compensation esgpassociated with these options in
future periods due to the adoption of SFAS No. R}3{Share-Based Payment.”

Stock Option Plans
1998 Stock Option Plan

Effective February 18, 1998, the Company adoptedRBC Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearingdihg Company, Inc.)
1998 Stock Option Plan. The terms of the 1998 oppian provide for the grant of options to purchagdo 8,413,900 shares of common
stock to officers and employees of, and consulténtsuding members of the board of directors)tie, Company and its subsidiaries. Opti
granted may be either incentive stock options (usdetion 422 of the Internal Revenue Code) or quoalified stock options. The 1998
option plan, which expires on December 31, 2008 se governed by the Company’s board of direatoiss committee to which the board
delegates its responsibilities. As of March 31,2G8ere were outstanding options to purchase 5%Bdres of common stock granted under
the 1998 option plan, all of which were exercisable of August 15, 2005, the 1998 Stock Option Plas been frozen and no additional
stock options will be awarded pursuant to the plan.

2001 Stock Option Plan

The RBC Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Beatitmding Company, Inc.) 2001 Stock Option Plan wdepted in fiscal 2002
and amended and restated on October 24, 2003 efins bf the 2001 option plan provide for the gi@riptions to purchase up to 1,008,553
shares of common stock to officers and employeganaf consultants (including members of the bo&udirectors) to, the Company and its
subsidiaries selected by the CEO to participataérplan. Options granted may be either incentiseksoptions (under Section 422 of the
Internal Revenue Code) or non-qualified stock agsidrhe 2001 option plan, which expires in July204 to be governed the Company’s
board of directors or a committee to which the Hazrdirectors delegates its responsibilities. AMarch 31, 2007, there were outstanding
options to purchase 250,542 shares of common g@aked under the 2001 option plan, all of whichienexercisable. As of August 15, 20
the 2001 Stock Option Plan has been frozen andlditienal stock options will be awarded pursuanthi® plan.

2005 Long-Term I ncentive Plan

The Company adopted the 2005 Long-Term Incentiae Bifective upon the completion of its initial fialoffering in August 2005.
The plan provides for grants of stock options, lstagpreciation rights, restricted stock and perfmoe awards. Directors, officers and other
employees and persons who engage in servicesd@dmpany are eligible for grants under the pldre purpose of the plan is to provide
these individuals with incentives to maximize stozkler value and otherwise contribute to the Compfmsauccess and to enable the Com,
to attract, retain and reward the best availabteqes for positions of responsibility.

1,139,170 shares of common stock were authorizeidgaance under the plan, subject to adjustmetieirevent of a reorganization,
stock split, merger or similar change in the Conypgmnorporate structure or in the outstanding shafecommon stock. Of this amount,
683,502 options were awarded to the Company’s CHfeaime of the Company’s initial public offerimg August 2005 at the offering price
of $14.50 per share and the remainder had beervegstor grants to the Company’s employees (othan the Company’s CEO) at the
discretion of the Company’s compensation commitégeamendment to increase the number of shareabiafor issuance under the 2005
Long-Term Incentive Plan from 1,139,170 to 1,639,WaAs approved by shareholder vote in Septembes. 2062 Company may grant shares
of restricted stock to its employees and direcdtothe future under the plan. The Company’s comatms committee will administer the
plan. The Company'’s board of directors also hasttkority to administer the plan and to take efians that the compensation committee is
otherwise authorized to take under the plan. Thegend conditions of each award made under the pleluding vesting requirements, is
forth consistent with the plan in a written agreaineith the grantee.

Sock Options. Under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, the censation committee or the board may approve thechefa

grants of incentive stock options and other noatified stock options. The compensation commiétise has the authority to approve the ¢
of options that will become fully vested and exsatile automatically upon a change in control.
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The compensation committee may not, however, agpaovaward to any one person in any calendar y#ams to purchase common stock
equal to more than 10% of the total number of sharghorized under the plan (other than the indtvgdrd to the Company’s CEO discussed
above), and it may not approve an award of incentiptions first exercisable in any calendar yeavsehunderlying shares have a fair market
value greater than $100,000 determined at the dihgeant. As of March 31, 2007, there were outditagy options to purchase 1,026,502
shares of common stock granted the 2005 plan, 823ybwhich were exercisable.

The compensation committee will approve the exerprice and term of any option in its discretioowever, the exercise price may
not be less than 100% of the fair market value sliae of common stock on the date of grant. Irc#se of any incentive stock option, the
option must be exercised within 10 years of the dd@igrant. The exercise price of an incentiveaptiwarded to a person who owns stock
constituting more than 10% of our voting power may be less than 110% of such fair market valusumh date and the option must be
exercised within five years of the date of grant.

Restricted Sock. Under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, the cemsation committee may approve the award of réstristock
subject to the conditions and restrictions, andHerduration that it determines in its discretids.of March 31, 2007, there were 75,675
shares of restricted stock outstanding, 900 of whiad vested.

Sock Appreciation Rights. The compensation committee may approve the gifsstbck appreciation rights, or SARS, subjecti® t
terms and conditions contained in the plan. Under2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, the exercisegpofca SAR must equal the fair market
value of a share of the Company’s common stockerdate the SAR was granted. Upon exercise of a, 8fRgrantee will receive an
amount in shares of our common stock equal to ififiereince between the fair market value of a slofiitmmon stock on the date of exer
and the exercise price of the SAR, multiplied by tltumber of shares as to which the SAR is exercised

Performance Awards. The compensation committee may approve the gfgmerformance awards contingent upon achievement b
the grantee or by the Company, of set goals anettibgs regarding specified performance critengr@ specified performance cycle.
Awards may include specific dollar-value target edgaperformance units, the value of which is disthed at the time of grant, and/or
performance shares, the value of which is equtdedair market value of a share of common stockhendate of grant. The value of a
performance award may be fixed or fluctuate onbih&s of specified performance criteria. A perfonceaward may be paid out in cash
and/or shares of common stock or other securities.

Amendment and Termination of the Plan. The board may amend or terminate the 2005 LongiTecentive Plan at its discretion,
except that no amendment will become effective avitiprior approval of the Company’s stockholdersui€h approval is necessary for
continued compliance with the performance-basedpemsation exception of Section 162(m) of the IrakRevenue Code or any stock
exchange listing requirements. If not previoushyrimated by the board, the plan will terminate loa tenth anniversary of its adoption.

A summary of the status of the Company’s warrantsstock options outstanding as of March 31, 2@@ril 1, 2006 and April 2,
2005, and changes during the years ended on tladss, s presented below. All cashless exerciseptadns and warrants are handled
through an independent broker.

Number Of
Common Stock Weighted Average Weighted Average
Warrants/Options Exercise Price Contractual Life Intrinsic Value
Outstanding, April 3, 200 3,139,42! 1.72
Awarded fiscal 200! 179,57¢ 8.0C
Exercised fiscal 200 (13,86€) 2.49 $ 132
Cancelled fiscal 200 (21,034 8.07
Outstanding, April 2, 200 3,284,10( 2.06 33 % 36,57¢
Awarded fiscal 2001 698,50: 14.4¢
Exercised fiscal 200 (1,658,36() 0.67 $ 25,081
Outstanding, April 1, 200 2,324,23t 6.78 50 $ 31,89(C
Awarded fiscal 200 335,50( 22.5¢
Exercised fiscal 200 (1,362,91) 2.27 $ 31,52t
Forfeited fiscal 200 (2,500) 21.0z
Outstanding, March 31, 20( 1,294,31¢ 3 15.6C 75 §$ 23,07¢
Exercisable, March 31, 20( 961,31¢ g 13.1¢€ 78 $ 19,471
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The expected weighted-average life assumption whsileted by taking the average of the weightedimg$erm and the contractual
term of the options. This falls under the guidaotthe SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107.determining its risk-free interest rate
assumption, the Company used the yield on zero@oupS. Treasury strips to extrapolate a forwaedeycurve. Finally, since the Company
has only been public since August 2005, it useé@sgublic companies, engaged in the manufactubeafings, for the determination of the
volatility.

The fair value for the Company’s options and watsavas estimated at the date of grant using thekB&tholes option pricing
model with the following weighted-average assumpgio

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected weighte-average life 4.9 7.0 3.0
Risk-free interest rat 5.0% 3.5% 3.5%
Expected volatility 34.4% 32.0% 0.4%

The weighted average fair value per share of optérd warrants granted was $8.70 in fiscal 200008 fiscal 2006 and $8.17 in
fiscal 2005.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was devetbjoe use in estimating the fair value of tradetiaps and warrants which have
no vesting restrictions and are fully transferableaddition, option and warrant valuation modelguire the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the expected stock pricatility. Because the Company’s options and warrhaige characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options and warraat&l because changes in the subjective input gegns can materially affect the fair va
estimate, the existing models do not necessardyige a reliable single measure of the fair valtigsooptions and warrants.

As of March 31, 2007, there was $2,344 of unrecphcompensation costs related to options whielpected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of 3.6 years. Tta fair value of options that vested in fiscal Z0Q006 and 2005 was $0, $5,106 and $792,
respectively.

As of March 31, 2007, the weighted average exemmige of the outstanding exercisable options wi&k #8. Of the total awards
outstanding at March 31, 2007, 1,284,329 are eftiigrvested or are expected to vest. These shwes a weighted average exercise pric
$15.55, an intrinsic value of $22,970, and a weidhdverage contractual term of 7.5 years.

Under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, the compdan committee may approve the award of resttisteck subject to the
conditions and restrictions, and for the duratiuet it determines in its discretion.

The Company recorded $180 (net of taxes of $98pmpensation in fiscal 2007 related to restrictedisawards. These awards
were recorded at the fair market value of the Camgfsacommon stock on the date of issuance andosithmortized as expense over the
applicable vesting period.

Unrecognized expense for restricted stock was $laBMarch 31, 2007. This cost is expected to begrized over a weighted
average period of approximately 3.7 years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s restristedk outstanding as of March 31, 2007 and chadgesg the year then ended,
is presented below.

Number Of
Restricted Stock Weighted-Average
Shares Grant Date Fair Value
Nonr-vested, April 1, 200! — 8 —
Grantec 75,67¢ 22.62
Vested (900) 22.41
Forfeited — —
Non-vested, March 31, 20( 74778 $ 22.62
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17. Commitments and Contingencie

The Company leases facilities under non-cancelgéeating leases, which expire on various datesitir September 2021, with
rental expense aggregating $3,708, $1,936 and $2(fscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Company also has non-cancelable operatingddastransportation, computer and office equipmetiich expire at various
dates. Rental expense for fiscal 2007, 2006 an8 2QQregated $1,356, $1,220 and $1,172, respectivel

Certain of the above leases are renewable while bear material contingent rent or concession ekus

The aggregate future minimum lease payments urgkyatng leases are as follows:

2008 $ 4,445
2009 3,86¢€
2010 2,614
2011 2,142
2012 1,791
2013 and thereaftt 5,28€

$20,142

The Company entered into an agreement with Whitaeg|ated party, whereby a quarterly managemevices fee was paid for
certain consulting and management advisory servaedirected by the board of directors of the Camypand agreed to by Whitney. Such
ongoing fees aggregated $173 and $450 for fisdab 2B1d 2005, respectively. As of August 2005, #gjeeement is no longer in effect.

As of March 31, 2007, approximately 15% of the Camygs hourly employees in the U.S. and abroad wepeesented by labor
unions. One of the collective bargaining agreemeot®ring approximately 82 employees (6.5% of tbenany’s hourly employees) expires
in January 2008.

The Company enters into government contracts abdosiracts that are subject to audit by the goventmin the opinion of the
Company’s management, the results of such aufldsyi are not expected to have a material impache financial condition or results of
operations of the Company.

The Company is subject to federal, state and leaironmental laws and regulations, including thgseerning discharges of
pollutants into the air and water, the storagedhag and disposal of wastes and the health aretysaf employees. The Company also may
be liable under the Comprehensive EnvironmentapBese, Compensation, and Liability Act or simileats laws for the costs of
investigation and cleanup of contamination at féaed currently or formerly owned or operated bg ompany, or at other facilities at which
the Company may have disposed of hazardous sulestancconnection with such contamination, the Camypmay also be liable for natural
resource damages, government penalties and clairtisrd parties for personal injury and propertyrdae. Agencies responsible for
enforcing these laws have authority to impose fianit civil or criminal penalties for non-complieg. The Company believes it is currently
in material compliance with all applicable requikamts of environmental laws. The Company does ntitipate material capital expenditures
for environmental controls in fiscal years 20082609.

Investigation and remediation of contaminationrig@ing at some of the Company’s sites. In particdate agencies have been
overseeing groundwater monitoring activities at@wmnpany’s facilities in Hartsville, South Caroliaad Fairfield, Connecticut. At
Hartsville, the Company is monitoring low levelsamintaminants in the groundwater caused by formerations. The state will permit the
Company to cease monitoring activities after twosazutive sampling periods demonstrate contamirsaatbelow action levels. In
connection with the purchase of the Fairfield, Gatitut facility in 1996, the Company agreed tauass responsibility for completing clean-
up efforts previously initiated by the prior own&he Company submitted data to the state that tmepany believes demonstrates that no
further remedial action is necessary, althoughsthte may require additional clean-up or monitariighough there can be no assurance, the
Company does not expect any of those to be material

The Company received notice in 2003 from the Ursienmental Protection Agency that the Company beeh named a
potentially responsiblde minimis party for past disposal of hazardous substanciee @perating Industries, Inc. Landfill in Monter&alif.
Any such disposal would have been conducted poitlié Company’s ownership, and the Company nottfieformer owners of a potential
claim for indemnification based on the indemnitgciibed above. The Company is currently negotiadidgminimis settlement with the U.!
Environmental Protection Agency and expects thgtsattlement,
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even if the Company is unsuccessful in obtainirgmnification, will not be material to its finantfosition or results of operations.

There are various claims and legal proceedingsagtie Company relating to its operations in themal course of business, none
of which the Company believes is material to it&ficial position or results of operations. The Camypcurrently maintains insurance
coverage for product liability claims.

18. U.S. Continued Dumping and Subsidy Qfét Act (CDSOA) Payment

On December 1, 2006, the Company received appragiyndl,229 in payments under the U.S. Continuethping and Subsidy A«
(CDSOA) for 2006. The CDSOA distributes antidumpthgies paid by overseas companies to qualifiededim firms hurt by unfair trade.
This payment has been classified below Operatingrire in “Other non-operating expense (income)’fenGonsolidated Statements of
Operations.

19. Related Party Transactions

On June 13, 2005, subject to the approval of the@amy’s senior lenders under the Credit Facility Second Lien Term Loan,
which was subsequently obtained, the Board of Dirscagreed to pay the CEO a one-time special cosgtien payment of $5,200 to
reimburse the CEO for taxes owed by him in conoactiith a previous stock sale by the CEO to Whitrighe Company’s senior lenders
approved the payment on July 13, 2005. As suchCtmepany recorded a charge of $5,200 (classifiexkbbisng, general and administrative
expense) in the second quarter of fiscal 2006.
20. Other Operating Expense, Net

Other operating expense, net is comprised of thewmng:

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,

2007 2006 2005
Management fee $ — % 173 $ 474
Loss on disposition of asse 1,917 24 1,98¢
Plant consolidation cos 3,18¢ 1,024 —
Provision for doubtful accoun 183 244 472
Amortization of intangible: 713 667 500
Other expense (incom (67) 292 91

$ 5934 $ 2424 $ 352€

21. Reportable Segments

The Company operates through operating segmentghich separate financial information is availalaled for which operating
results are evaluated regularly by the Compsuwehief operating decision maker in determiningpuese allocation and assessing performa
Those operating segments with similar economicastiaristics and that meet all other required déténcluding nature of the products and
production processes, distribution patterns anskelsof customers, are aggregated as reportalniestsyy Certain other operating segments
do not exhibit the common attributes mentioned alenvd do not meet the quantitative thresholdsdpasate disclosure, and their informa
is combined and disclosed as “Other”. There is alsegment reflecting corporate charges.

The Company has four reportable business segmegéged in the manufacture and sale of the following

Roller Bearings. Roller bearings are anti-friction bearings thee wollers instead of balls. The Company manufasttour basic
types of roller bearings: heavy duty needle rdkearings with inner rings, tapered roller bearingsck rollers and aircraft roller bearings.

Plain Bearings. Plain bearings are produced with either selfittdiing or metal-to-metal designs and consist és# sub-classes,
including rod end bearings, spherical plain beariagd journal bearings. Unlike ball bearings, wtdoh used in high-speed rotational
applications, plain bearings are primarily usecdettify inevitable misalignments in various meclahicomponents.

Ball Bearings. The Company manufactures four basic types ofldrings: high precision aerospace, airframe obritrin section
and commercial ball bearings which are used in-sjgged rotational applications.
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Other. Other consists of two minor operating locatidmat tdo not fall into the above segmented categofies Company produces
precision ground ball bearing screws at its Lirfeaacision Products (LPP) plant that offer repeatglolsitioning accuracy in machine tools,
transfer lines, robotic handling and semiconduetpmipment. The Company’s Schaublin location prodyrecision machine tool collets that
provide effective part holding and accurate pacatmn during machining operations.

Corporate. Corporate consists of expenses incurred at thgocate office.

The accounting policies of the reportable segmargshe same as those described in Note 2. Segradatmance is evaluated ba
on segment net sales, operating income and tatatsadtems not allocated to segment operatingniedaclude corporate administrative
expenses and certain other amounts. Identifialsletady reportable segment consist of those djritehtified with the segmerst’operations
Corporate assets consist of cash, fixed assetsataln prepaid expenses.

Fiscal Year Ended

March 31, April 1, April 2,
2007 2006 2005
Net External Sales
Roller $ 92,12 $ 96,46¢ $ 92,281
Plain 143,907 115,091 93,25(
Ball 50,46¢ 46,37¢ 41,881
Other 19,56¢ 16,57 15,60~

$ 306,06: $ 27450¢ $ 243,01¢

Operating Income

Roller $ 18,76¢ $ 23,34C % 17,03(
Plain 41,162 30,95¢ 22,647
Ball 12,52¢ 9,69z 9,07C
Other 2,20C 1,47€ 797
Corporate (22,737) (26,88¢€) (17,405

$ 5191¢ $ 3857¢ $  32,13¢

Total Assets

Roller $ 64491 $ 5254t $  43/11:
Plain 168,35( 142,95} 115,93(
Ball 27,417 21,02 26,43¢
Other 7,59¢ 6,932 8,287
Corporate 5,86( 52,46€ 56,401

$ 27371t $ 27592t $  250,16¢

Capital Expenditures

Roller $ 10,872 % 439C $ 3,49¢€
Plain 2,50z 3,49C 2,66¢
Ball 1,374 1,13C 936
Other 1,007 832 784
Corporate 419 499 1,641

$ 16,172 $ 10,341 $ 9,52¢

Depreciation & Amortization

Roller $ 3,358 % 3,07 $ 2,61€
Plain 3,658 3,03t 2,501
Ball 601 1,29¢ 1,30C
Other 1,23€ 1,151 1,281
Corporate 799 773 1,088
$ 9,64€ $ 9,331 $ 8,78E
Geographic External Sales
Domestic $ 26564 $ 24357¢ $ 215,38
Foreign 40,41¢ 30,93: 27,63t
$ 306,06: $ 27450¢ $ 243,01¢
Geographic Long-Lived Assets
Domestic $ 5791C $ 5522/ $  52,56¢
Foreign 3,29¢ 2,804 2,777
$ 61,20¢ $ 58,026 $ 55,342
Intersegment Sales
Roller $ 851z $ 9,41z $ 7,27E
Plain 1,017 851 1,982
Ball 5,058 5,09¢ 4,07z
Other 14,82¢ 13,31¢ 10,147

$ 29,407 $ 28,67 $ 23,47
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All intersegment sales are eliminated in consoidat
22. Subsequent Event

On May 22, 2007, the Company acquired the capiteksof Phoenix Bearings Limited (“PhoenixXgr approximately $4.3 million i
cash. Phoenix, located in Gloucestershire, Englarashufactures bearings for the steel and miningstrées as well as other general indus
applications with bore sizes ranging from 100 mmiiters to one meter. Phoenix generated revenusgpobximately $4.5 million in its most
recent calendar year. The financial results of Rhowill be reported as part of the Company’s RoBearings segment.

ITEM 9. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management is responsible for estabyj and maintaining effective disclosure contesid procedures, as defined
under Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities ExchangeofA&B34. As of the end of the period covered hy thport, the Company performed an
evaluation, under the supervision and with theigipgtion of the Company’s management, includisgdhief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Camyp's disclosure controls and procedures. Based thad evaluation, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer congéd that the Company’s disclosure controls andemtores provide reasonable assurance
that the material information required to be diseld by the Company in the reports that it filesudymits to the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act ofti83ecorded, processed, summarized and repoitkihuhe time periods specified in
the Commission'’s rules and forms. No changes wergento the Company’s internal control over finah@aorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)rdythe last fiscal quarter that materially afettor are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over finaiceporting.
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Managemen’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of RBC Bearings Incorporated is respda$or establishing and maintaining adequate iatlecontrol over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Securitieshiange Act of 1934.

The Company'’s internal control over financial repay is supported by written policies and procedutet (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detalrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the Company’s assets; (ii)
provide reasonable assurance that transactione@eded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andrdtipts and expenditures of the Company are beaudg only in accordance with
authorizations of the Company’s management andtdire; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance diggprevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of@mnpany’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effeatigss of the Company'’s internal control over fir@nmeporting as of March 31, 2007 as
required by Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Ikimgthis assessment, we used the criteria sét forthe framework iinternal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission. Based on our evaloatialer the
framework inInternal Control-Integrated Framework , our management concluded that our internal cbatrer financial reporting was
effective as of March 31, 2007.

Our management’s assessment of the effectivenams d@fiternal control over financial reporting dMarch 31, 2007 has been
audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent regedd public accounting firm, as stated in theioréprhich appears on the following

page.
RBC Bearings Incorporated
Oxford, Connecticut

June 8, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
RBC Bearings Incorporated

We have audited management’s assessment, inclndbed accompanying Management’s Report on IntéCoatrol Over Financial
Reporting, that RBC Bearings Incorporated main@iefective internal control over financial repagias of March 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrafedmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgp@irations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). RBC Bearings Inooaped’s management is responsible for maintaiaffertive internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifrecéiveness of internal control over financial oefing. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinitimeceffectiveness of the RBC Bearings Incorparatmternal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéug the design and operating effectivenessitefrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @pess designed to provide reasonable assuranadiregthe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircéal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financékstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jde reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companyseds that could have a material effect on then@iizé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etmisstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiade subject to the risk that controls may becmaéequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whithpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that RBEiRgs Incorporated maintained effective interraitool over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2007, is fairly statedall material respects, based on the COSO critatsn, in our opinion, RBC Bearings
Incorporated maintained, in all material respeetf®ctive internal control over financial reporting of March 31, 2007, based on the COSO
criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of RBC Bearings Incatgd as of March 31, 2007 and April 1, 2006, ddrelated consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and coeffensive income (loss), and cash flows for eagchethree years in the period ended
March 31, 2007, and our report dated June 8, 28pissed an unqualified opinion thereon.

[sSIERNST & YOUNG LLP

Hartford, Connecticu
June 8, 200
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART III

The information called for by Part Il (Items 10,112, 13 and 14) of Form 10-K will be includedor Proxy Statement for our
2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which the Canygntends to file within 120 days after the clo$és fiscal year ended March 31,
2007 and which is incorporated herein by referd¢ncgich Proxy Statement.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@ 1. Financial Statements

The following Consolidated Financial Statementthef Company are included in Iltem 8, “Financial &tatnts and Supplementary
Data™

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2007 anidi 4 2006
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yerded March 31, 2007, April 1, 2006, and Apri2@p5

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equityfifiite and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the gearded
March 31, 2007, April 1, 2006, and April 2, 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaaled March 31, 2007, April 1, 2006, and Apri2@05
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(@ 2. Financial Statement Schedules
The following Financial Statement Schedule of tlwenPany is filed with this report:

SCHEDULE Il.  VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEARS END ED MARCH 31, 2007, APRIL 1, 2006,
AND APRIL 2, 2005

Charged Charged to
Balance at to Costs Other Balance at

Description Beginning of Year and Expense: Accounts Deductions End of Year
Allowance for doubtful accounts, deduct

from accounts receivable in the balance

sheet;
2007 $ 838 $ 183 $ 39 $ (193) $ 867
2006 628 244 — (34) 838
2005 770 472 — (614) 628

Schedules other than those listed above have breited because of the absence of conditions undatwhey are required or
because the required information is presenteddrittancial statements or notes thereto.

(@) 3. Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed as part of thipoet.
Certain of the following exhibits have been prewigifiled with the Securities and Exchange Comnaisdly the Company pursuant

to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1988 #he Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such ethibie
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identified by the parenthetical references follogvthe listing of each such exhibit and are incoapeat herein by reference. The Company’s
Commission file number is 333-124824.

Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.8

10.1C

10.11

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioRBC Bearings Incorporated dated August 13, 2608led with
Amendment No. 4 to RBC Bearings Incorporated’s Regiion Statement on Form S-1, file No. 333-1248B4 “Registration
Statemer”) dated August 8, 2005 is hereby incorporated byreafee hereir

Bylaws of RBC Bearings Incorporated, as filed ahigit 3.3 to Amendment No. 4 to the Registratioat&ment on Form-1
dated August 8, 2005 is hereby incorporated byeefe herein

Form of stock certificate for common stock, asdibes Exhibit 4.3 to RBC Bearings Incorporés Amendment No. 3 t
Registration Statement on Forr-1 dated August 4, 2005 is hereby incorporated fereace hereir

Form of Amended and Restated Warrants to Purchaser®n Stock, as filed as Exhibit 4.7 to RBC Bealimgprporate’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8 dated March 15, 2006, is hereby incorporatecebsrence hereir

Amended and Restated Warrants to Purchase Clagp@&\®ting Common Stock, as filed as Exhibit 4. REBC Bearing
Incorporate’s Registration Statement on Forl-8 dated March 15, 2006, is hereby incorporateceligrence hereir

Fifth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, daseaf August 15, 2005, filed as Exhibit 99.1 onR@&-K dated August 1¢
2005 is hereby incorporated by reference he

Stock Option Plan of RBC Bearings Incorporated/&MRoller Bearing Holding Company, Inc.), datedfEebruary 18, 199
with form of agreement filed as Exhibit 10.2 to fRegistration Statement on Form S-1 dated May @@52s hereby
incorporated by reference here

Form of Stock Transfer Restriction Agreement betwiBBC Bearings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearingiding Company
Inc.) and certain of its stockholders filed as Exhi0.2 to the Registration Statement on Formdated May 11, 2005 is hereby
incorporated by reference here

Amended and Restated 2001 Stock Option Plan of B8&ings Incorporated (f/k/a Roller Bearing Holdidgmpany, Inc.)
dated October 24, 2003 filed as Exhibit 10.2 toRegistration Statement on Form S-1 dated May @@52s hereby
incorporated by reference here

Form of RBC Bearings Inc. 2005 Lc-Term Equity Incentive Plan, as filed as Exhibit tb@RBC Bearing Incorporat’s
Registration Statement on Forr-8 dated November 18, 2005, is hereby incorporayetference hereit

Agreement of Lease between Robear West Trentoncfees, L.P. and Roller Bearing Company of Amerina,, datec
February 10, 1999, for West Trenton, New Jersegnmes filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrationt&taent on Form S-1 dated
May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by referenceihe

First Amendment to Office Lease, dated July 26 22@@tween Robear West Trenton Associates, L.PRatldr Bearinc
Company of America, Inc. filed as Exhibit 10.7 he tRegistration Statement on Form S-1 dated Ma@ad5 is hereby
incorporated by reference here

Indenture of Lease dated March 31, 2004 betweeleRBéaring Company of America, Inc., and Raymonuhidke, LLC, &
Connecticut limited liability company filed as Ekiti 10.8 to the Registration Statement on Formd&ted May 11, 2005 is
hereby incorporated by reference her

Executed counterpart of the Pledge and Securite@&ment, dated as of September 1, 1994, betweearBahring Company (
America, Inc., Heller Financial, Inc. and Mark Twdank filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registratioat8inent on Form S-1 dated
May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by referenceihe

Loan Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1994 gleetthe South Carolina —Economic Development Authority and Rol
Bearing Company of America, Inc. with respect te 8eries 1994A Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.10 toRlegjistration Statement «
Form ¢-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byresfee herein

Trust Indenture, dated as of September 1, 199%dest the South Carolina —Economic Development Authority and Me

Twain Bank, as Trustee, with respect to the S&9EBIA Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the RegistratStatement on Form S-1
dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by refséerein
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10.12

10.12

10.14

10.15

10.1€

10.17

10.1¢€

10.1¢

10.2C

10.21

10.22

10.2¢

10.24

10.2¢

10.2€

10.27

10.2¢

Loan Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1994 gleeitthe South Carolina —Economic Development Authority and Rol
Bearing Company of America, Inc., with respecte Series 1994B Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.13 toRkgistration Statement
on Form &1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byreefee herein

Trust Indenture, dated as of September 1, 199%dast the South Carolina —Economic Development Authority and Me
Twain Bank, as Trustee, with respect to the SdréegIB Bonds filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the RegistraStatement on Form S-1
dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by ref@éderein

Collective Bargaining Agreement between Heim, titerinational Union, United Automobile, Aerospaced &gricultural
Implement Workers of America, U.A.W., and Amalgaetat.ocal 376, U.A.W., expires January 31, 2008Ifds Exhibit 10.15
to the Registration Statement on For-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byreefee herein

Collective Bargaining Agreement between Roller BeaCompany of America, Inc. and the Internatiddalon U.A.W. and its
Local 502, expires June 30, 2007 filed as Exhibiflh to the Registration Statement on Form S-1ddsltey 11, 2005 is hereby
incorporated by reference here

Collective Bargaining Agreement between Tyson Bep@ompany, Inc. and the United Steelworkers of Acage AFL-CIO,
Local 7461- 01, expires June 13, 2008, as fileBExsbit 10.18 to Amendment No. 2 to the RegistratBiatement on Form S-1
dated July 26, 2005, is hereby incorporated byreefee herein

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2005yéeh the Company and Michael J. Hartnett, Ph.[d fie Exhibit 10.19 t
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement dateglist 8, 2005 is hereby incorporated by referdraein.

Amended and Restated Promissory Note, dated asadber 15, 2000, for $500,000, made by Michadhdtnett, Ph.D. an
payable to Roller Bearing Company of America, lifedfas Exhibit 10.20 to the Registration StatenmenEForm S-1 dated May
11, 2005 is hereby incorporated by reference he

Loan Agreement, dated as of April 1, 1999, by aetivieen California Infrastructure and Economic Depetent Bank an
Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc filed as bih10.21 to the Registration Statement on Forth &ted May 11, 2005 is
hereby incorporated by reference her

Indenture Of Trust, dated as of April 1, 1999, bestw California Infrastructure and Economic DeveleptrBank and U.S. Bar
Trust National Association, as Trustee filed asibixl10.22 to the Registration Statement on Forth &ted May 11, 2005 is
hereby incorporated by reference her

Tax Regulatory Agreement, dated as of April 1, 1989and among California Infrastructure and Ecoicddevelopment Bank
U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as Trusteg, Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc filedEehibit 10.23 to the
Registration Statement on Forr-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfee herein

Lease Agreement, dated as of December 17, 1998ebrtSchaublin SA and RBC Schaublin SA filed asiltixth0.24 to the
Registration Statement on Forr-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfee herein

Guarantee dated August 15, 2005, by and betweenB#€ings Incorporated and General Electric Cafitaboration, as age
and Lender filed as Exhibit 99.2 on For-K dated August 19, 2005 is hereby incorporatedgigrence hereir

Security Agreement, dated May 30, 2002, by and anRwiler Bearing Company of America, Inc., certairits domestic
subsidiaries, General Electric Capital Corporatasiagent and Lender, as filed as Exhibit 10.2AédRegistration Statement on
Form ¢-1 dated May 11, 2005, is hereby incorporated bgresfce hereir

Pledge Agreement, dated May 30, 2002, by and arRafigr Bearing Company of America, Inc., certairitefdomestic
subsidiaries, General Electric Capital Corporatamsagent and Lender, as filed as Exhibit 10.2BédRegistration Statement on
Form ¢-1 dated May 11, 2005, is hereby incorporated bgregfce hereir

Pledge Agreement, dated August 15, 2005, by anddeet RBC Bearings Incorporated and General EleCjuital Corporatior
as agent and Lender filed as Exhibit 99.3 on Fc-K dated August 19, 2005 is hereby incorporateddigrence hereir

Master Reaffirmation, dated August 15, 2005, by amibng the Company and certain of its subsidiaesGeneral Electri
Capital Corporation, as agent and Lender filedxdslit 99.4 on Form 8-K dated August 19, 2005 ischg incorporated by
reference hereir

Master Reaffirmation and Amendment to Loan Documetidited June 29, 2004, by and among Roller Be&amgpany o

America, Inc., certain of its domestic subsidiari@eneral Electric Capital Corporation, as ageutleemder, as filed as Exhibit
10.32 to the Registration Statement on Fo-1 dated May 11, 2005, is hereby incorporated bgregfce hereir
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Lease Agreement dated May 17, 2004 by and betweaddBvmoss Properties, LLC, a South Carolina limiigaility company
and Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc filedeadhibit 10.33 to the Registration Statement omi&r1 dated May 11,
2005 is hereby incorporated by reference he

Credit Agreement, dated December 8, 2003, betweedilCSuisse and Schaublin SA filed as Exhibit 20the Registration
Statement on Form-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfee herein

Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated Nover8b@004, between Credit Suisse and Schaublin 84 &is Exhibit 10.35
to the Registration Statement on For-1 dated May 11, 2005 is hereby incorporated byregfee herein

Letter Agreement by and among RBC Bearings Incateol; Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. Waitr& Co. and Dr.
Michael J. Hartnett dated June 17, 2005, as fifeHxhibit 10.36 to Amendment No. 2 to the RegigiraStatement on Form S-1
dated July 26, 2005, is hereby incorporated byreefee herein

Second Amended and Restated Stockholders’ Agreelmyesmid among RBC Bearings Incorporated, WhitneyiRBnvestor,
LLC, Whitney V.L.P., Dr. Michael J. Hartnett and fitteett Family Investments, L.P. dated Februaryd®3filed as Exhibit
10.37 to Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statgrdated August 9, 2005 is hereby incorporatecefgrence hereir

Amendment No. 1 dated August 13, 2005 to the Seéanended and Restated Stockholders’ Agreement dyaarong RBC
Bearings Incorporated, Whithey RBHC Investors, LMZhitney V.L.P., Dr. Michael J. Hartnett and Hattriéamily
Investments, L.P. dated February 6, 2003, fileBxdsbit 10.38 to Amendment No. 4 to the RegistraiBiatement dated August
9, 2005 is hereby incorporated by reference he

Purchase Agreement dated August 9, 2005 filed aghiEx.1 to Form 8-K dated August 15, 2005 is hgrimcorporated by
reference hereir

Purchase Agreement dated April 11, 2006 filed dsbéx1.1 to Form 8-K dated April 13, 2006 is heyebcorporated by
reference hereir

Credit Agreement, dated as of June 26, 2006, arRatigr Bearing Company of America, Inc., RBC Begsnncorporated, the
Lenders named therein, KeyBank National Associatidd. Morgan Securities Inc. and LaSalle Bankdweatii Association, filed
as Exhibit 99.1 to Form-K dated July 18, 2006 is hereby incorporated bgregfce hereir

Parent Guaranty, dated as of June 26, 2006, by BEEings Incorporated, in favor of KeyBank NatioAgkociation, filed as
Exhibit 99.2 to Form -K dated July 18, 2006 is hereby incorporated bgregfce hereir

Security Agreement, dated as of June 26, 2006, grRatler Bearing Company of America, Inc., RBC Begs Incorporated,
the Subsidiary Guarantors (as defined therein) KaydBank National Association, filed as Exhibit 3% Form 8-K dated July
18, 2006 is hereby incorporated by reference he

Code of Ethics of the Registrant filed as Exhilfitté Form 10-Q dated February 14, 2006 is herebgrporated by reference
herein.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant. Filed herew

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP. Filed herewi

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ecurities Exchange Act Rule -14(a). Filed herewitt
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ecurities Exchange Act Rule -14(a). Filed herewitt

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuantt8 U.S.C. Section 1350 and Securities Exchange Ac
Rule 13i-14(b).* Filed herewith

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 and Securities Exchang&ale 13a-14(b).* Filed
herewith.

This certification accompanies this Annual Report@rm 10-K, is not deemed filed with the SEC andat to be incorporated by
reference into any filing of the Company under $seurities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Seearifxchange Act of 1934, as
amended (whether made before or after the datéofnnual Report on Form 10-K), irrespective of general incorporation language
contained in such filing.

74







SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this Ref
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetien duly authorized.

RBC BEARINGS INCORPORATEL
(Registrant’

By: /s/IDR. MICHAEL J. HARTNETT
Name: Dr. Michael J. Hartne!
Title: Chief Executive Office
Date: June 12, 200

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this Report has been signed dydltowing persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature

Title

/s/ DR. MICHAEL J. HARTNETT

Dr. Michael J. Hartne!
Date: June 12, 20C

/s/ DANIEL A. BERGERON

Daniel A. Bergerot
Date: June 12, 20(C

/sl THOMAS BURIGO

Thomas Burigc
Date: June 12, 20C

/s RICHARD R. CROWELL

Richard R. Crowel
Date: June 12, 20C

/s/ WILLIAM P. KILLIAN

William P. Killian
Date: June 12, 20C

/s/ ALAN B. LEVINE

Alan B. Levine
Date: June 12, 20C

/sl DR. AMIR FAGHRI

Dr. Amir Faghri
Date: June 12, 20C

/s/ DR. THOMAS J. (BRIEN

Dr. Thomas J. 'Brien
Date: June 12, 20C

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Chairman)

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Corporate Controller

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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RBC Precision Produc—Plymouth, Inc

Industrial Tectonics Bearings Corporati

RBC Linear Precision Products, It

RBC Precision Produc—Bremen, Inc
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RBC Oklahoma, Inc
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RBC De Mexico S DE RL DE C'

Schaublin Holding S/
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J. Bovagnet S/

RBC France SA!

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-129828fgning to the RBC Bearings
Incorporated 2005 Long-Term Equity Incentive Pldne, RBC Bearings Incorporated Amended and Resggiedl Stock Option Plan, the
RBC Bearings Incorporated 1998 Stock Option Plad,the June 23, 1997 RBC Bearings Incorporated &iarkgreements of our reports
dated June 8, 2007 with respect to the consolidatadcial statements and schedule of RBC Beaiiingsrporated, management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, and the effectivenesitdrnal control over financial reporting of
RBC Bearings Incorporated, included in this AnnRaport (Form 10-K) for the year ended March 31,7200

/SIERNST & YOUNG LLP

Hartford, Connecticu
June 8, 200°




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Dr. Michael J. Hartnett, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIRBC Bearings Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including any consolidaseibsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgritie period in which this report is being prepared

b) designed such internal control over financiglmting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed unt
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles; and

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluati
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallyciéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affettie registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 12, 20C By: /s/IDR. MICHAEL J. HARTNETT
Dr. Michael J. Hartne!
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Daniel A. Bergeron, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fIRBC Bearings Incorporated;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including any consolidaseibsidiaries, is made known to
by others within those entities, particularly dgritie period in which this report is being prepared

b) designed such internal control over financiglmting, or caused such internal control over fgiahreporting to be designed unt
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles; and

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentéisineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluati
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallyciéf@, or is reasonably likely to materially affettie registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdhon our most recent evaluation of internal @miver financial reporting
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: June 12, 20C By: /s DANIEL A. BERGERON
Daniel A. Bergerot
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

The undersigned, Dr. Michael J. Hartnett, the Flersi and Chief Executive Officer of RBC Bearingsdrporated (the “Company”), pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. 81350, hereby certifies that:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year etddarch 31, 2007 of the Company (the “Report”lyfabmplies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of teeusities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: June 12, 2007

/ s/ DR. MICHAEL J. HARTNETT
Dr. Michael J. Hartne!
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The undersigned, Daniel A. Bergeron, Chief Findr@ifficer, of RBC Bearings Incorporated (the “Comg8), pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350,
hereby certifies:

(i) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the periawtled March 31, 2007 of the Company (the “Repdttlly complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of teeusities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: June 12, 2007

/s DANIEL A. BERGERON
Daniel A. Bergerot
Chief Financial Officel




